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OUR MISSION
Healthcare with compassion for all

OUR VISION
To be the region’s leader by providing quality healthcare services

OUR VALUES
Compassion, Commitment, Teamwork, Quality, Respect and 
Accountability

OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
	 Physician Partnership and Enhanced Clinical Quality

	 Provide Seamless/Easy Access Care Delivery

	 Financial Strength/Viability

	 Strategic Growth
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FOR THE  
FINANCIAL YEAR

SIHL ACHIEVED
PROFIT

2022

Million
Rs. 1,163

Million

CONTRIBUTION
TO NATIONAL
EXCHEQUER

Rs. 1,568

EARNINGS PER

FOR THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR ENDED 2022

SHARE

Rs. 18.39



DIVIDEND
PAYOUT

30%

NET REVENUE
INCREASED

14%

Net
Profit
Margin

Retained
Earnings

Current
Ratio

Return
on Equity

(including 15%  
interim cash  

dividend)

DEBT EQUITY
RATIO
27: 73
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Habib Ur Rahman 
Chairman

Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Habib Ur Rahman is also serving as Director on the Boards of 
following Shifa International Hospitals Group companies:

•	 Shifa Development Services (Private) Limited
•	 Shifa CARE (Private) Limited
•	 Shifa Medical Center Islamabad (Private) Limited
•	 Shifa National Hospital Faisalabad (Private) Limited
•	 Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute Islamabad (Private) Limited

Dr. Habib Ur Rahman graduated from King Edward Medical College. 
He received his internal medicine training at D. C. General Hospital, 
Howard University, Washington D.C. and Wayne State University, 
Detroit, Michigan and Wright State University, Dayton Ohio. He 
completed his fellowship of Cardiovascular Disease from Mount Sinai 
Hospital, University of Connecticut, Hartford, Connecticut. He is Board 
Certified by American Board of Internal Medicine and also American 
Board of Cardiovascular Diseases. He has extensive experience 
in cardiology as well as in education, training and management. 
He has been Consultant Cardiologist and Head of Cardiology at 
Graham Hospital, Canton, Illinois and later at Byrd Regional Hospital 
at Leesville, Louisiana in USA. In addition to teaching experience in 
Wright State University, Connecticut he is presently member of the 
Senate of Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University. He has been member 
of different scientific councils and committees including Pakistan 
Lifesavers Foundation, Pakistan Cardiac Society and Faculty of 
Cardiology, College of Physicians and Surgeons Pakistan. He is 
among the founding members of Shifa International Hospital and 
Shifa Foundation.

Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi is also serving as Director on the Boards of 
following Shifa International Hospitals Group companies:

•	 Shifa Medical Center Islamabad (Private) Limited
•	 Shifa National Hospital Faisalabad (Private) Limited
•	 Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute Islamabad (Private) Limited
•	 Shifa International DWC-LLC

Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi is a founding member of Shifa International 
Hospital and has been a board member since its inception. He was 
appointed as Chief Executive of the company on 10th October 2011. 
He received his medical degree from King Edward Medical College 
Lahore. Later he was trained in USA at Little Company of Mary Hospital 
in Chicago and Flushing Hospital in New York for Internal Medicine and 
later in Louisiana State University for Cardiology. He is Board certified 
in Internal Medicine and Cardiology from American Board of Internal 
Medicine and Cardiology. He has an extensive experience of practice 
of cardiology as well as administration and management. He was 
Consultant Cardiologist and President Medical Staff at Byrd Regional 
Hospital, Leesville, Louisiana for several years. He has also served as 
President of local chapter of American Heart Association and State 
Medical Society. He previously has been fellow American College of 
Cardiology, American Chest Physician and American Board of Quality 
Assurance and Utilization Review for Physicians. He was actively 
involved in the initial planning and founding stages of Shifa and later 
on in the management of the Hospital and has been Medical Director 
of Shifa International Hospitals Limited since its conception, through 
planning and implementation until when he accepted the position of 
Chief Executive Officer. He is also member BOG of Shifa Foundation, 
a non-profit organization involved in healthcare for poor and medical 
education.

12 ANNUAL  
REPORT 2022



Mr. Muhammad Zahid
Executive Director

Muhammad Zahid, is also serving as Director on the Boards of all 
of  Shifa's associated and subsidiary companies. He is a healthcare 
professional with enviable experience, is a founding member of the 
team that conceived and built Shifa International Hospitals Limited. 
His association with Shifa dates back to 1985 when a group of 
Pakistani Americans, mainly healthcare professionals, started 
developing the idea of a world-class hospitals chain in Pakistan — the 
country of their origin. Zahid is a graduate of University of Karachi 
with major in Pharmaceutical Sciences. Later on he graduated from 
the USA in the discipline of Business Administration & Economics. 
Zahid’s expertise and career encompasses diversified areas 
including Healthcare Projects, Hospital Management and Leadership 
Development. He established and successfully ran healthcare related 
businesses in the USA for over 30 years. Simultaneously he remained 
associated with the landmark project of Shifa International Hospitals 
Islamabad; besides his critical role in administration, Zahid had major 
contribution in the strategic development and growth of the Hospital 
as a member of the Board of Directors. As a founder member, he 
closely worked with Center Research Inc. (CRI) — a Princeton, New 
Jersey based hospital design consultancy firm — to design and 
develop the initial hospital plan to ensure realization of the founder 
team’s concepts. This involvement continued till the development 
of a master plan in 1989. Following this, Zahid moved to Islamabad 
and gave quality input in the development of business processes, 
procedures, system development in different areas of the hospital and 
leadership development at different and diversified levels till 1997. His 
contribution in the development of this new hospital had far-reaching 
impact on the growth of the organization in the years to come and was 
highly commended by his colleagues. After playing his part in setting 
Shifa International Hospitals to a smooth sailing, Zahid returned to 
the USA in 1997 but always made himself available to the team at 
Shifa when and where needed to cope with the emerging business 
challenges. Towards the end of 2014, nevertheless, he bade farewell 
to his engagements in the USA and again returned to Islamabad at 
a time when Shifa needed him to explore newer areas and develop 
new sites. Presently as Executive Director, Zahid looks after the critical 
areas of Planning, Project and Business Strategy & Development.

Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad
Vice Chairman

Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad is also serving as Director on the Board of

•	 Shifa CARE (Private) Limited

Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad brings young blood and new dimension 
to the Board of Shifa International Hospitals. He did his Bachelor of 
Science in Information Systems and Bachelors of Arts in Economics 
from Stony Brook University, Stony Brook NY. He furthered his 
education with a Master of Science degree in Computer Science from 
Columbia University, New York, in 2007. He has over 20 years of diverse 
experience in the technology sector focusing on production systems 
engineering with a strong background in software engineering. This 
includes 7 years of extensive experience working with high volume 
financial and reporting applications for companies on Wall Street 
such as Lehman Brothers and Barclays Capital. Current major 
responsibilities include change management, incident management, 
performance planning, capacity planning, business continuity 
planning and disaster recovery, Sarbanes Oxley compliance and 
vendor management for all Fund Systems which includes the Front, 
Middle and Back Office applications. His previous experiences as the 
lead developer for the NYC Law Department include analysis, design, 
development and implementation of different technical projects.
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Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad
Non-Executive Director

Dr. Samea Kausar Ahmad is also serving as Director on the Board of:

•	 Shifa Development Services (Private) Limited

Dr. Samea is a graduate of Ayub Medical College, Abbottabad. 
She joined the Board in 2011 and has been helpful in guiding the 
Board and the administration towards the future direction of the 
corporation. She has been serving as the Vice Chairperson of Tameer-
e-Millat Foundation (TMF) for the past 10 years. Greatly inspired and 
influenced by the philanthropic work of her father, Dr. Zaheer Ahmad, 
she was determined to carry on the vision and legacy laid down 
by him. As Vice Chairperson, Dr. Samea governs the running and 
management of over 50 educational institutions in the TMF network, 
all across Pakistan. In addition, Dr. Samea also serves as a member of 
the Senate of the federally registered Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Shafquat Ali Chaudhary
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shafquat A. Chaudhary earned a B.Sc. degree in Electrical 
Engineering from West Pakistan University of Engineering and 
Technology and an M.Sc. degree in Industrial Engineering from the 
Polytechnic Institute of Brooklyn, USA in 1973. Though he holds 
two impressive engineering degrees, he assumed control over his 
destiny by transforming himself into an entrepreneur. He secured an 
insurance brokerage license and in 1978 opened Triboro Brokerage 
Inc. the first taxi medallion and insurance brokerage business owned 
by a South Asian American. In 1986, he founded Elite Limousine Plus 
Inc. which today is one of the largest, privately owned, executive 
transportation companies in the tri-state area and an established 
leader in developing and applying state-of-the-art technology in 
this industry. As a true entrepreneur, Mr. Chaudhary over a period 
of time pursued various other business ventures. However, in 2003, 
Mr. Chaudhary founded SoundView Broadcasting and expanded into 
cable and satellite television broadcasting business. Headquartered 
in Long Island City, NY, SoundView operates a 60,000 SF television 
facility to provide production, transmission and distribution services 
for international TV channels originating overseas and broadcast 
in the United States, Canada and Europe. Currently, SoundView 
Broadcasting is the exclusive licensee for 15 TV channels that are 
being transmitted from India, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Africa and 
France (Paris). Mr. Chaudhary is a founding owner of “AFRO” a 
black focused, English language mainstream TV Channel which is 
carried by Comcast on its domestic Digital Tier nationally. He recently 
started Soundview DAM LLC and got involved in Bitcoin Mining. Mr. 
Chaudhary still manages to find the time to devote his energies and 
financial resources to charitable organizations which promote and 
foster traditional family values and social responsibility. He was the 
president of the Society for International Help, a U.S. based not for 
profit organization that through Tameer-e-Millat Foundation operates 
over 400 schools for poor children in remote areas of Pakistan. He is 
a shareholder and Director of Shifa International Hospital, Islamabad, 
Pakistan. In addition, he is a founding shareholder and Director of 
Sialkot International Airport. He is also the owner and founder of Elite 
International School, Islamabad.
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Syed Ilyas Ahmed
Independent Director

Prof. Dr. Shoab Ahmed Khan
Non-Executive Director

Syed Ilyas Ahmed has a long and illustrious career spanning over 
45 years in healthcare management and its implementation. He has 
served in different capacities; Secretary, Scientific Governing Board 
and Head of Administration in Salahuddin University Hospital, Tripoli, 
Libya. After returning to Pakistan, he joined The Kidney Center, 
Karachi as its Chief Executive (1993 – 2000). Later he proceeded to 
Islamabad in Shifa International Hospitals Ltd and accepted the post 
of Chief Operating Officer (2001 – 2005). At present he is Chief Advisor 
Operations at Tabba Heart Institute, Karachi. During his phenomenal 
professional tenure, he successfully managed premier healthcare 
facilities, both in Pakistan and abroad. His acumen includes but not 
limited to, strategic planning, policies and procedures, budgeting and 
fiscal control, human resource, public relations and quality assurance 
management. He introduced ISO Quality Management System in 
Pakistan for the first time in 1995 and is known as Baba-e-ISO in quality 
conscious circles in Pakistan. Mr. Ahmed, during his university days 
was a Badminton Champion and accomplished Debater, Gymkhana 
Secretary and Magazine Editor of University of Karachi (1968-72). He 
was President of Sind Pharmacy Graduates Association (1970-72). He 
plays golf and has a refined taste in literature and shows keen interest 
in a wide range of aesthetic disciplines including culture and history.

Dr. Khan is a Ph.D. in Electrical and Computer Engineering from 
Georgia Institute of Technology, Atlanta, GA, USA. He is an inventor 
of 5 awarded US patents and has 350+ international publications. 
His book on Digital Design is published by John Wiley & Sons and 
is being followed in national and international universities. Dr. Khan 
has more than 25 years of industrial experience in companies in 
USA and Pakistan. He has been awarded Tamgha-e-Imtiaz (Civil), 
National Education Award 2001 and NCR National Excellence Award 
in Engineering Education. He is the chancellor of Sir Syed CASE 
Institute of Technology (SS-CASE IT) and founding member of Center 
for Advanced Research in Engineering (CARE). SSCASE IT is a 
federally chartered engineering institution that runs one of the largest 
post graduate engineering programs in the country and has already 
graduated 70+ PhDs and more than 2000+ MS in different disciplines 
in Engineering. Whereas CARE, under his leadership, has risen to be 
one of the most profound high technology engineering organizations 
in Pakistan developing critical technologies worth millions of US 
dollars for organizations in Pakistan. CARE has also made history by 
winning 12 PASHA ICT awards and 10 Asia Pacific ICT Alliance Awards 
while competing with the best products from advanced countries like 
Australia, Singapore, Hong Kong, Malaysia etc. Dr. Khan has served 
as Chairman of Pakistan Association of Software Houses (P@SHA) 
and as member of Board of Governance of three entities in the 
Ministry of IT and Commerce. He has also served as Deputy Chairman 
of National Computing Education Accreditation Council (NCEAC). He 
is also an adj. Professor of Computer Engineering at NUST College of 
EME. His book of Urdu poetry is recently published with title, “Kagazi 
ha parahan”. He is a member and focal person of Prime Minister 
Taskforces on Knowledge, Economy, Science & Technology and IT 
and Telecommunication.
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Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari
Independent Director

Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui
Independent Director

Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari graduated from the Punjab University, 
Department of Pharmaceutical Science. He went for his postgraduate 
studies at Columbia University, New York City, USA and was granted a 
full talent scholarship. He has a very rich and illustrious career spanning 
over forty years both State side and upon his return to Pakistan. After 
the completion of his studies, he joined Mt. Sinai Hospital and School 
of Medicine, New York City for the internship and training program. He 
served there in different administrative capacities for about eighteen 
years. He returned Pakistan in 1988 and joined Shifa International 
Hospitals Limited from its inception and was assigned different roles 
such as Director Operations during the construction phase and Chief 
Operative Officer and Chief of Special Services once in operations. He 
was instrumental along with the other members in the establishment of 
Shifa College of Medicine in 1988 under the aegis of Shifa Foundation 
and became its first Chief Operating Officer. After the establishment of 
Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University in March 2012 he served at different 
administrative positions at STMU. He is a member of American 
Hospital Association and also the “Rho Chi” Honor Society, Columbia 
University, New York City, USA. He also served on the board of 
International School of Islamabad as a member and then as the Board 
Chair for a few years. He also has the honor and privilege of serving on 
the Board of Shifa International Hospitals Limited, Islamabad.

Mr. Siddiqui is a senior Chartered Accountant, fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountant of Pakistan, and a “Certified Director” on the data bank 
listing of Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. He has a very rich and 
diversified exposure spanning over 40 years, 2 continents, 4 countries and 
11 industries including banking, oil and gas, manufacturing, FMCG, trading, 
hospitality, regulatory organization and consulting, and has worked with several 
multinationals. He has worked for 15 years in various countries and for 25 years 
in Pakistan, in the fields of corporate, organizational, financial, human resource, 
and I.T management, held progressively senior management positions in various 
multinational companies and large international & local organizations, both in 
private sector and public sector, and a regulatory authority. Mr. Siddiqui started 
his carrier in 1974 with PWc, (A. F. Ferguson & Co) Chartered Accountants, 
where he completed the requisite training for Chartered Accountants, after which 
he was hired by Smith & Nephew Pharmaceutical Co., a subsidiary of a British 
pharmaceutical and cosmetics company. Later he joined Pakistan Petroleum 
Ltd., the then subsidiary of Burma Oil Company, U.K., and worked in the Project 
& Development Division. He was then hired by Saudi Naval Forces to head their 
internal audit Department in Jeddah. On completion of 5 year term with Saudi 
Navy, he joined Unilever Pakistan Ltd., later moving on to Dubai in 1990 where 
he worked for 10 years for various organizations, his last assignment being with 
Dubai Investments. He has also worked for Toronto Dominion Bank in Canada 
as Financial Analyst. In the year 2000, Mr. Siddiqui was hired by a public sector 
financial institution in Islamabad, Pakistan, as its Chief Financial Officer with a 
mandate to restructure it and convert it into an incorporated entity amalgamating 
another public sector financial institution with it. He was a key member of the 
team that was responsible for the restructuring and amalgamation process & 
incorporation of SME Bank, which is still the only specialised bank catering to the 
needs of SME sector. On incorporation of SME Bank he was assigned additional 
responsibilities as Company Secretary of the Bank. After 4+ years with the 
Bank, Mr. Siddiqui then moved on to Securities & Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan, the apex regulator of the corporate sector and securities market, as 
Executive Director for Company Law Division, where he served for 8 years and 
headed various other Divisions as well. Since 2013, Mr. Siddiqui is a Partner in 
a Chartered Accountant and consulting firm in Islamabad. He has served on 
the Board of a Bank’s subsidiary leasing Company, Chairman of the Board of 
an I.T Company, and also performed as Acting CEO of a public sector financial 
institution. He has also served on the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan’s committee on ‘Public Sector’. This committee is responsible 
for interacting with the Auditor General and the Controller General Accounts 
officials on the adoption of IPSAS and corporate governance in State Owned 
Enterprises in Pakistan among other related areas. Mr. Siddiqui is a certified 
trainer and have conducted Directors Orientation Programme for the Board of 
Directors of a Bank. Travelled widely, attended numerous conferences, seminars 
and workshops in various countries, and spoken on international and national 
forums on professional topics

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
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Assalam o Alaikum
We have completed another year under the shadow of Covid19 pandemic with a slew of 
other negative developments. Thankfully Pakistan and most of the global community is 
seeing the tail end of this viral catastrophe. Washing away the impact is an uphill battle. At 
least repeated interruptions of normal healthcare operations seem to be behind us. We will 
have one less problem as the regional war, currency devaluation, surging inflation, energy 
crisis and wrecking effect of floods in four provinces destabilise the economic environment.

Our resolve is to provide comfort and care to ailing and suffering population regardless of 
the magnitude and nature of medical challenges. Shifa team has maintained its focus on 
professional excellence and maintaining standards while assuring financial sustainability and 
meeting our obligations to all stakeholders.

We are implementing our renewable energy project to diversify generation and mitigate 
impact of imported fossil fuel cost. Allah Almighty has rewarded vigilence and intense 
preventive efforts of facility management team by keeping us safe in the face of repeated 
heavy downpours. Medical and paramedical staff as well as support departments have 
braved illness and affliction to keep up services.

As I write these lines our volunteer doctors, nurses, technicians, professionals of Shifa Tameer 
e Millat University and several thousand staff of Shifa Foundation in South Punjab, Sindh, 
Balochistan as well as KPK have engaged in relief and rehabilitation work in the service of 
fellow citizens. May Allah accept their sincere efforts.

I wish to express my heartfelt gratitude to members of Shifa family, Shareholders, bankers, 
vendors for their hard work and support, to our patients for their trust in these trying times.

Pakistan Zindabad.

DR. HABIB UR RAHMAN
Chairman
Islamabad

September 28, 2022
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company take pleasure in presenting 
Annual Report along with financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2022
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OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS 
During the year under review the operations of Shifa International Hospitals Limited (Shifa/Hospital) 
translated into an overall revenue increase of 14% as compared to the previous year. Operating costs also 
increased in the same proportion. 

Significant increase in “other income” head is reflection of appreciation of US Dollar against Pak Rupee.

EARNINGS PER SHARE 
During the year under review earnings per share increased by 66.12% from Rs. 11.07 to Rs. 18.39.

RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS
The Directors have recommended a final cash dividend of Rs. 1.50 per share. This is in addition to the 
interim cash dividend of Rs. 1.50 per share already declared and paid to the shareholders thereby making 
it a total cash dividend of Rs. 3 per share i.e 30% for the year 2021-22 subject to approval by shareholders 
in Annual General Meeting of the Company.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL EXCHEQUER 
The Company’s contribution to the national exchequer during the year under review is as follows: 

Sr. No. Description Rs. “in 000”
1 Direct Taxes 405,208
2 Indirect taxes 309,505
3 Tax deducted and deposited from supplies, employees, etc. 852,931

Total 1,567,644
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, DEVELOPMENT & PERFORMANCE
Like the preceding year, 2021-22 also brought along COVID-19 pandemic as one of the major external 
challenges which was effectively dealt with by implementing key initiatives and strategies. Alhamdulillah, with 
a team driven approach and proactive management strategies related to patient accessibility, operations 
and facility management, Shifa achieved its budgetary targets by catering to healthcare needs of all major 
patient segments.

Shifa organ transplant services have also shown a remarkable progress in terms of sustainability, success 
rate, outreach and expansion. This year marked completion of over 350 bone marrow transplants. Shifa BMT 
is the most affordable private sector program in the country which has been managing most challenging 
cases in the region. It is also a matter of great pride for the institution that first unique stem cell transplant 
in Pakistan for Primary Central Nervous System Lymphoma (PCNSL) was performed this year.

Kidney transplant program has completed over 700 procedures since inception for adult and pediatric 
patients by experts in Transplant Surgery & Urology, Nephrology, Transplant Immunology & Pathology, 
Cardiology & other cross functional teams.

Shifa International Hospital is also Pakistan’s first facility to complete over 1,100 living donor liver transplants 
this year since start of the program with the success rate comparable to the international standards. Strict 
adherence to quality guidelines and a multidisciplinary team of specialists make it a leading program.

In continuation of the resolve to invest into latest medical technologies and equipment, a 4D CT Simulator 
scanner was commissioned this year to provide next level of precision radiotherapy assistance in cancer 
treatment in addition to the previous capabilities, i.e., 2DRT, 3DCRT, IMRT, intracavitary & interstitial 
Brachytherapy.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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In continuation of building up resource and technical capability to introduce unique and latest treatment 
innovations, Cardiology department successfully performed live complex multi-vessel angioplasty at 
“Pakistan Live 2021” by Pakistan Society of Interventional Cardiology. Furthermore, Cardiology department 
being part of its structural heart disease center has performed multiple complex cardiac interventions with 
successful outcomes this year.

ENT Department in coordination with a multidisciplinary team of professionals performed a unique 
procedure of activating an implanted cochlear device in a 3-year-old child. Previously, 1st cochlear implant 
was performed at Shifa by the same team.

Department of Plastic surgery also launched a state of the art cosmetic suite. The facility is equipped with 
advanced technology and an experienced team to offer a range of complex aesthetic surgery services to 
the patients. 

To ensure optimum utilization of resources, hospital has been assessing smart and innovative alternatives 
to scale up efficiency and reduce cost. The project of installing solar panels has been in process to reduce 
utility costs. A sprinkler irrigation system has also been introduced to conserve water.

2021-22 also marked start of construction work for Shifa Medical Center Islamabad (Private) Limited, 
which is a subsidiary of Shifa International Hospitals Limited for which Shifa & Interloop group joined 
hands to provide quality outpatient, diagnostic and ambulatory surgery care to the patients. The ground 
breaking ceremony was also held for Shifa National Hospital Faisalabad (Private) Limited to provide quality 
healthcare services to the residents of Faisalabad and surrounding areas.
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FACTORS LIKELY TO AFFECT THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT & PERFORMANCE 
Pakistan, being the world’s 5th largest nation by population, faces various constraints and limitations to ensure 
equitable & convenient access of specialized quality healthcare services to the masses. Therefore, many 
developing countries have adopted Universal Health Coverage (UHC) to provide equitable health coverage 
to the people in the recent years. The Government of Pakistan has also announced a health card for the entire 
population of Punjab after piloting that in KPK province. For a corporate healthcare model like Shifa, provision of 
quality healthcare in compliance with international accreditation standards is cost intensive. However, keeping 
in view the prevailing trend, provision of healthcare in Pakistan will be impacted by an ongoing partnership 
between public and private sectors to address the challenges of affordability, and availability of healthcare. 

In recent years, Shifa has also adopted a market development strategy of expanding its footprint in major cities 
within its catchment area through digital means and on-ground presence to emerge as a local healthcare 
service provider for local communities. As part of the execution, throughout the year specialty OPD clinics are 
conducted in various cities as multi-specialty consultants visit these cities and examine patients in person.

Furthermore, by anticipating the increase in presence of Chinese nationals in Pakistan as part of CPEC projects, 
efforts are underway to facilitate these patients by establishing Chinese patients’ coordination office on the 
same pattern through which Afghan citizens are facilitated.

With start of Phase 1 of Shifa Neurosciences Institute, the facility infrastructure for various interrelated medical 
and surgical specialties has been redesigned and revamped to examine and treat patients in a better way. The 
initiative will help improve patient flow and manage burden during peak hours to ultimately improve patient 
experience as well. 

Sunday OPD clinics is another initiative which was launched recently to not only facilitate patients by offering 
convenient time slots for OPD consultations but also to better utilize the facility and service provisions during 
low peak hours.
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Risks and Uncertainties Mitigation
1. Competition risk

The risk of new or existing competitors upgrading 
their facilities and taking away the clientele.

Shifa is widely recognized as being amongst the top 
three healthcare facilities in the country. It will require 
considerable time and financial resources for any new 
or existing set up to upgrade their facilities to a similar 
state. Furthermore, Shifa’s elaborate base of highly 
qualified medical professionals is extremely difficult to 
attain.

2. Exchange Rate risk

Foreign exchange exposure might affect the 
profitability of the Company due to devaluation 
of local currency.

Diligent forecasting, efficient financial management, 
prudent and wise operational planning and business 
growth linked with volume expansion  can counter 
exchange rate risks. Furthermore, the revenues from 
international business, which are dollar based, only 
constitute a minor portion of the overall revenue base.

3. Economic Slowdown 

An economic slowdown affects the business 
growth and may adversely affect Shifa’s growth 
plans.

Owing to the pure demographics in Pakistan, the 
healthcare business is protected against an economic 
slowdown/downturn. There is ample demand for 
healthcare projects and hence business is likely to 
continue at a steady pace.

4. Human Resource/Manpower risk

There is risk that quality doctors and staff would 
be difficult to find for new hospitals once they are 
operational.

Shifa is a JCI accredited hospital therefore the 
experience earned by doctors at Shifa is recognized 
internationally. Due to this the risk associated with quality 
HR services is reduced. Moreover, Shifa is backed by 
the state of the art Shifa Institute of Medical Technology 
(SIMT), Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University (STMU) and its 
constituent colleges which produce quality healthcare 
personnel to fulfill HR demands.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
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Risks and Uncertainties Mitigation
5. Obsolete Technology 

The technology being used by the Company may 
become obsolete due to technological changes 
taking place worldwide.

The technical team of the organization keeps track of 
evolving and emerging technological transformation 
in healthcare sector. Close monitoring of the changes 
being taken place worldwide in clinical and nonclinical 
domains is done and facility is upgraded accordingly in 
line with the organizational needs.

6. Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from 
inadequate or failed internal processes, people 
and systems or from external events.

Shifa has well defined and executed internal control 
processes with oversight by Internal Audit, Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors. Moreover 
business continuity and disaster recovery plans are 
also in place.

7. Regulatory Risk

There is a risk that unanticipated changes in 
regulations could have an adverse impact on 
Shifa.

The governance and leadership ensure sustainable 
organizational growth in dynamic legal and regulatory 
environment through continuous compliance. Active 
engagement with regulatory bodies is ensured to stay 
updated. Organizational risk management programs 
stratifies risks and provides strategies to address these 
risks based on their criticality. However, such regulatory 
changes could reasonably be expected to affect all 
players within the sector and would therefore not affect 
Shifa’s position or business in isolation.

COMPANY’S RISK FRAMEWORK AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
Shifa has an effective internal control and risk management system. The responsibility for overseeing the 
internal control process lies with the Board of Directors. Risk management and internal control processes 
are designed to protect the Company's assets and to effectively address and mitigate emerging risks facing 
the Company. The Company maintains a clear organizational structure with a well-defined hierarchy. Senior 
management is responsible for implementing policies and procedures, monitoring risk and assessing the 
effectiveness of different controls. 
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BUSINESS EXPANSION
Operationalization of Shifa Neurosciences Institute
Shifa Neurosciences Institute is being established to provide efficient diagnosis and comprehensive 
care to patients with neurological and associated disorders. As a part of phase 1, operationalization 
of Shifa Neurosciences Institute in basement and ground floor of Dar-ul-Shifa building has been done. 
Phase 1 includes shifting of Neurology, Neurophysiology, Psychiatry, Rehabilitation and Pain Clinic 
with Pharmacy and Radiology services.

Services Expansion
For extended service outreach, consultants conduct virtual consultations for convenience of remote 
patients besides increase in Lab Pickup Points and Pharmacy Points to facilitate patients. Our future 
plan is to generate 100 percent prescription from EMR and implement it throughout the hospital 
subsequently.

EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL PERSONS
The organization recognizes that it has clear obligations 
towards all its employees and the community at large 
to ensure that differently-abled people are offered equal 
opportunities to enter employment and progress within 
the organization. Currently 22 differently-abled staff are 
employed in the organization.
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BUSINESS ETHICS & ANTI-CORRUPTION MEASURES
	• Anti-corruption is not only a legal obligation but also an ethical stance for Shifa International Hospitals 

Limited. The Company realizes that corruption is a threat to its business and the society.

	• All Shifa employees are responsible for understanding the legal and ethical issues that affect Company's 
business and for acting with integrity at all times. 

	• Company's zero tolerance for corruption and ethical standards are set out in the company’s Code of 
Conduct, which is approved by the Board and implemented in the Company. Top-level commitment 
is indispensable for establishing a 
transparent and enterprise-wide culture 
that contests corruption. The Company 
management transmits clear and regular 
messages to all stake holders including 
staff, suppliers and business partners 
that corruption is intolerable. Furthermore, 
top Management has responsibility to 
act as good role models and to build a 
transparent culture.

ENERGY CONSERVATION
Following are the ongoing and future energy 
conservation projects:

PV Solar System
Shifa has planned to install inexhaustible, 
renewable power source of PV Solar System 
of up to 1.5 MW Capacity. The solar energy 
generation project is an effort towards energy de 
carbonization and sustainable energy generation 
that will reduce dependency on natural gas and 
diesel. Currently 60% of the project work has been 
completed and project injection has ensued.

Installation of Energy Monitoring System  
Energy Monitoring System hardware has been 
installed comprising of 98 energy analyzers 
strategically placed in different high electricity 
consumption areas to identify and mitigate power 
consumption by taking power conservation 
measures. 90% of the project work has been 
completed.
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Electricity Conservation Through Load 
Mitigation
Shifa has planned to conserve electricity by reducing 
up-time of Chiller systems used for HVAC in different 
areas of the hospital where occupancy is reduced 
during off-peak times. The expected conservation is 
550,000 units of electricity per annum.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
MEASURES.
Shifa is committed to follow and implement legal 
and other guidelines to ensure environmental 
conservation and sustainability. Environmental 
monitoring is carried on quarterly basis to ensure 
conformance with the NEQS.

Environmental Monitoring and Legal 
Compliance
a.	 Ongoing environmental monitoring as per 

Self-Monitoring and Reporting Tool (SMART) 
Program, EPA, compliance with National 
Environmental Quality Standards, (NEQS) and 
guideline is ensured for Indoor Air Quality, Stack 
Emission Monitoring, Drinking Water Analysis, 
(Potable/Non-Potable), Wastewater Analysis, 
Legionella, Distilled Water, Ash Analysis, and 
Surface Swab

b.	 Boilers Inspection as per Boiler Ordinance 
2002

c.	 Radiation Safety Inspection: Implementation of 
PNRA regulatory Requirements 

d.	 Inspection of Electrical Installation as per 
Electricity Act 1937

e.	 Monthly Waste Report Submission to Pak-EPA 
as per HWMR, 2005

In-house Environmental Monitoring
Ongoing in-house monitoring is performed 
throughout the hospital for parameters including 
Metrological Parameters, Oxygen, LEL, CO2, CO, 
Light, Noise, Formaldehyde, TVOC, Electrical 
Conductivity, Salinity, TDS, Microbial Water Quality 
to ensure environmental safety and hence staff, 
patients, attendants and visitors safety.

Water Sprinkler System
​Shifa ensures sustainable management and use 
of water through conservation practices. Sprinkler 
Irrigation system has been installed in Shifa Greens 
to conserve water up to 40%. 

The project has resulted in conserving 22 million 
liters per annum.

Installation of Bag House Filtration System​
Bag House Filtration (BHF) System has been 
installed in Incinerator as an Air Pollution Control 
System. BHF works on the phenomenon of Physical 
filtration for efficient removal of fly Ash and Soot 
from Stack Emission.
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THE IMPACT OF THE COMPANY’S 
BUSINESS ON ENVIRONMENT.
Shifa adopts environmental stewardship through 
various environmental conservation measures 
for socially conscious and sustainable business 
practices. These practices include, Mercury 
Substitution, Liquid Waste Treatment, Air Emission 
Controls, Hazardous Waste Management, Energy 
Conservation Practices and Waste Minimization.

CONSUMER PROTECTION 
MEASURES:
Facility Management:
i.	 Air and Oxygen Purity Analysis 

Oxygen & Air purity analysis has been performed 
in critical areas including ICU, NICU and OR. 
Analysis report demonstrates compliance as 
per the standard requirements.

ii.	 ​Drinking Water Treatment Plant

Installation and Commissioning of Drinking 
Water Treatment Plant of 1,000 Liters/hr to cater 
the needs of potable drinking water. The treated 
Drinking Water complies to PSQCA (Pakistan 
Standards for Quality Control Authority) for 
bottled drinking water.

iii.	 3rd Party Safety Inspection

3rd Party safety Inspection of boilers and 
elevators is carried out to ensure compliance 
with safety standards.

iv.	 Facility Inspection Rounds

Environmental Rounds are also conducted on 
weekly basis covering Facility Management 
& Safety elements, potential risks associated 
with patient safety, environment and regulatory 
requirements throughout the facility as per 
yearly environmental round schedule. 

v.	 Emergency Lighting 

Over 2,000 Emergency LED lights have 
been installed throughout the hospital with a 
designated UPS that can provide uninterrupted 
backup of up to 8 hours in case of power 
breakdown.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND 
HEALTH.
i.	 ISO 45001:2018

1st Surveillance audit conducted by SGS on 
“Occupational Health & Safety Management 
System” of Shifa International Hospitals Ltd. 
Islamabad as per International Organization for 
Standardization Standard 45001:2018

ii.	 Occupational Health Monitoring

Ongoing health surveillance is being conducted 
for staff working in critical areas i.e., Incinerator 
Staff and Radiation Department Staff, Food 
Handler besides color blind test for plumbing 
staff and hearing test for power house staff.



iii.	 Disaster Management 

Hospital wide risk assessment is performed hazard 
vulnerability analysis. Drills are conducted to prepare 
staff for desired response in case of emergency. Hospital 
Incident command system (HICS) has been established 
with necessary accessories.

iv.	 Capacity Building of Staff on Occupational Health and 
Safety which includes Disaster Management, Safety 
Management, Hazmat & Waste Management, Utilities 
Management, Medical Technology Management, Fire 
Safety Management, Internal and External Emergencies 
etc.

SAFETY AND SECURITY
The safety and security of patients, visitors, staff and students 
is of paramount importance Security staff deployed in three 
Layers:

	• Outer perimeter and Gates: Gates are manned where 
personnel and vehicles are checked as per the level of 
security alert. 

	• Middle Layer – Hospital Entrances: Entrances are 
manned by deployment of male & female guards where 
personnel and materials are checked.

	• Inside the Hospital and Top of the Roof: Wards are 
manned by deployment of male & female guards as per 
the level of security alert. Wards and other unmanned 
areas are electronically controlled and monitored by 
surveillance staff. For deterrence, Armed guards are 
deployed at the top of roof and watch tower on boundary 
wall.

Sensitive areas are identified and security is ensured through 
patrolling and CCTV cameras. Access to these areas is 
limited and restricted by RFID devices.
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CORPORATE PHILANTHROPY
During the reporting period, our social arms not 
only assisted thousands of needy people through 
food assistance, clean drinking water supply and 
treatment services at Shifa International Hospital but 
also enhanced coordination with potential donors 
like OGDCL, Rawalpindi Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry (RCCI), Islamabad Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry (ICCI), Save Mart Group, 
Medina Cash and Carry, Grana Group, Rotary Club 
Islamabad Metropolitan and Rawalpindi Chamber 
of Commerce and Industry.

	• Shifa Foundation (SF) supported 
underprivileged communities in Sindh through 
reducing malnutrition in the communities. 
During the reporting year, a total of 138,778 
beneficiaries including 36% pregnant women, 
19% lactating women, 24% girls and 21% boys 
were treated/assisted.

	• To strengthen Department of Health and reduce 
Vitamin A deficiency in Pakistan, SF trained 
District Focal Persons (DFPs) of Departments 
of Health.

	• Through nutrition specific programs in different 
parts of the country total 188,321 PLW and 
632,591 children were screened, 114,563 
children were referred to health facilities for 

immunization, 217481 children were dewormed 
and 23,484 beneficiaries were reached out 
through awareness campaigns.

	• During the COVID-19, SF also considered mental 
health and enhanced capacity of health staff, 
stabilized COVID-19 affected population and 
frontline workers through intensive therapies, 
specialized MHPSS services in Karachi.

	• SF worked on COVID-19 advocacy to sensitize 
communities and support government in mass 
awareness regarding COVID-19 Test & Treat in 
remote areas.

	• To discourage corporal punishment in schools 
and enhance interactive relationship between 
teachers and children, SF trained teachers.

	• SF established Early Warning System in 
district Badin and trained communities to help 
save precious lives and reduce the impact of 
seasonal floods.

	• To support vulnerable communities, SF 
distributed food packages among 1,187 families 
(8,309 beneficiaries) through its Feed the Poor 
Program. Provided clean drinking water to 
1,490 families (9,955 beneficiaries) through 
installation of hand pumps. Provided advance 
level treatment services to 109 patients at Shifa.



Access to quality education is fundamental 
to the growth of Pakistan, and Shifa strongly 
believes that. In the 35 years since it’s founding, 
Tameer-e-Millat Foundation (TMF), a sister charity 
organisation, has been supporting the education 
of underprivileged children by partnering with other 
NGOs and working at the grassroots level. Their 
main focus is on inclusive and quality education 
for all and transforming lives through affordable 
quality education (primary, secondary and 
higher secondary), women empowerment, skills 
development and relief & rehabilitation efforts.

Under this initiative, during the reporting period, 
TMF has:

	• Provided basic literacy and life skills to more than 
15,000 children across 51 schools & colleges in 
24 districts across all five provinces of Pakistan. 
These initiatives have positively impacted 
0.61 million beneficiaries (Primary = 97,600, 
Secondary = 451,400, Higher Secondary = 
53,800, Technical = 7,200) of which 48% were 
boys, and 52% were girls.

	• Provided need-based sponsorship and financial 
support to 50% students to pursue education. 
More than half of these were girls, while 20% 
were orphans. 

	• Provided employment to 700+ teachers 
of which 86% were females. More than 60 
teacher training sessions were held in schools 
enabling & strengthening their capacity to apply 
techniques and modern pedagogy strategies.

	• Organised tree plantation drives in their schools 
in order to sensitize students towards the need 
to preserve our environment and ecology. A 
total of 1000+ trees were planted.

	• Conducted 300+ dengue awareness sessions 
in their schools in an effort to prevent its spread 
after the monsoon season.

	• Donated 10,000 library books to their schools 
and equipped labs with 50 computers and 
science equipment.

	• Conducted interactive school-based hand 
washing hygiene awareness programs in all 
their schools.

	• Played its role to aid in the emergency relief and 
rehabilitation efforts. The main focus of TMF 
was to sponsor the orphans and the affected 
families, rebuild infrastructure and provide ration 
and clean drinking water. The total beneficiaries 
aided in this year’s floods were approximately 
200,000 in Sindh & Baluchistan and continues 
to grow.
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The Company accords utmost importance to conducting business 
with honesty, integrity, transparency, openness and accountability. The 
Company had incorporated a Whistleblowing Policy to enable stakeholders 
to detect, identify and report an unlawful activity, mismanagement, misuse 
of authority and any event which is inconsistent with the Company policies. 
The main purpose of the policy is to guide and encourage individuals by 
providing ways to raising concerns confidentially and reassurance that 
they will be protected from possible victimization for doing so.

WHISTLE 
BLOWING 

POLICY

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct that requires all employees 
to maintain a work environment featuring fairness, respect and integrity 
and to comply with ethical practices. Provisions of the Code of Conduct 
include, but are not limited to, legal compliance, restrain on political 
activities, soliciting gifts, avoiding conflict of interest, non-discrimination 
or harassment on the basis of gender, race, color, age, etc., maintaining 
confidentiality of information, complying with the laws, rules vis-à-vis 
environmental protection, etc. The Code of Conduct is applicable to all the 
directors, officers, employees, consultants and agents of the Company.

CODE OF 
CONDUCT

The Company has committed itself that employees’ grievances will 
be properly recognized and addressed. An employee’s first point of 
communication is his/her immediate supervisor in case of a grievance. 
Grievances lodged by the workers under third party contract are also 
seriously considered and communicated to the respective vendors by the 
concerned area supervisor for resolution. 

GRIEVANCE 
POLICY
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
Shifa Life Support Training Center recognized as American Heart 
Association (AHA) Official Training Centre
Established under the umbrella of Shifa Center of Professional Excellence 
SCOPE, the Shifa Life support training (LiST) center strives to provide 
the complete suite of Emergency Cardiovascular and Cardio-Pulmonary 
Resuscitation efforts including Heartsavers, Basic Life Support – BLS, 
Advanced Cardiovascular Life Support – ACLS, and Pediatric Advanced 
Life Support – PALS trainings.

LiST has a vision to empower medical professionals and deliver 
enhanced patient care by imparting critical Emergency Cardiovascular 
Care (ECC) and Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) education at 
the highest standards. Essential Life Support Training services are 
being provided to medical practitioners across healthcare institutes 
throughout the country.

Accreditation by Accreditation Council for Continuing Medical 
Education (ACCME) 
Shifa has been reviewed by the Accreditation Council for Continuing 
Medical Education (ACCME) and awarded provisional Accreditation 
for two years as a provider of continuing medical education (CME) for 
physicians. Accreditation in ACCME system seeks to assure the medical 
community and the public that Shifa Foundation delivers education 
that is relevant to clinicians’ needs, evidence based, evaluated for its 
effectiveness, and independent of commercial influence.

Fire Safety Award by National Forum for Environment and Health
SIH won “11th Fire Safety Award” by national forum of environment 
and health and by fire protection association of Pakistan (FPAP) in 
recognition of best practices and compliance with relevant fire safety 
standard codes.

36 ANNUAL  
REPORT 2022



ICCI 5th Business Excellence Award
Shifa International Hospital has been awarded as a Highest Healthcare Employment Generator in the region 
by Dr. Arif Alvi (President of Islamic Republic of Pakistan) at Aiwan-e-Sadar during 5th Business Excellence 
Award ceremony by Islamabad Chamber of Commerce and Industry on 21st July, 2022. The role of Shifa 
was appreciated as a responsible employer who has been providing equal employment opportunities and 
representation to all segments of the society on the basis of merit and transparency along with empowering 
women to pursue their professional career in a safe and conducive environment (35% of the total work 
force).

Management Association of Pakistan’s 36th Corporate Excellence Awards
Shifa International Hospitals Ltd. (SIH) has achieved the 8th consecutive Corporate Excellence award in the 
healthcare sector by the Management Association of Pakistan (MAP). Shifa International Hospital won the 
award for having the best corporate and governance practices in the healthcare sector.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The total number of Directors of the Company are 10 as listed below:

a.	 Male: Nine (09) 

b.	 Female: One (01) 

The Board derives its powers and obligations from various provisions contained in the Memorandum & 
Articles of Association of the Company, Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”), Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Code”) and other relevant laws. The Board met six (06) 
times during the year ended June 30, 2022.

The Board is comprised of three independent, two executive and one female director as follows:

Category Names
Independent Directors Syed Ilyas Ahmed

Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari

Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui
Non-Executive Directors Dr. Habib Ur Rahman

Mr. Shafquat Ali Chaudhary

Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad

Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad

Prof. Dr. Shoab Ahmed Khan
Executive Directors Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi

Mr. Muhammad Zahid

In compliance with the non-mandatory provisions contained in the Code regarding diversity in the Board, 
the Company’s Board consists of three Medical Doctors, two IT Professionals, three Pharmacists, one 
Businessman and a Chartered Accountant.
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BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board Audit Committee (BAC) comprises of 
two non-executive and two independent Directors 
as under:

1.	 Syed Ilyas Ahmed 	  
Chairman, Independent Director

2.	 Dr. Habib Ur Rahman 	  
Member, Non-Executive Director

3.	 Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad 	  
Member, Non-Executive Director

4.	 Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui 	  
Member, Independent Director

All members of BAC are highly qualified individuals. 
BAC met eight times during the year under review. 

The Terms of Reference (ToRs) of the BAC were 
framed in line with the provisions contained in the 
Code and the BAC functions accordingly. The ToRs 
include developing systems to achieve the objective 
of safeguarding Company assets, ensuring 
adequate accounting records, internal control & 
risk management, regulatory & legal compliance,  
reviewing the periodic financial statements, etc. 
The list of ToRs is not exhaustive though and BAC 
may consider any other issue or matter as may be 
assigned by the Board to achieve the overriding 
objective i.e. of safeguarding the Company’s 
interest. 

The observations/recommendations of BAC are 
conveyed to the Board by the Chairman of BAC. 
Besides its periodic meetings, BAC also met once 
with the External Auditors without the presence of 
Head of Internal Audit & CFO and once with Head 

of Internal Audit without the presence of CFO & 
External Auditors.

HUMAN RESOURCE & 
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Human Resource & Remuneration (HR & R) 
Committee has the following members: 

1.	 Syed Ilyas Ahmed 	  
Chairman, Independent Director

2.	 Dr. Habib Ur Rahman 	  
Member, Non-Executive Director

3.	 Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi 	  
Member, Executive Director

4.	 Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari 	  
Member, Independent Director

5.	 Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad*	   
Member, Non-Executive Director

* Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad was inducted in the HR & R Committee on  
   September 28, 2022

ToRs require the HR & R Committee to work for 
the primary objective of considering remuneration 
packages needed to attract and retain executive 
directors and other senior employees in line with the 
market practices, regulatory provisions and interest 
of the stakeholders. Other significant terms require 
that majority of the HR & R Committee  members 
shall be non-executive directors including an 
independent director. Similarly, the Chairman of the 
HR & R Committee shall be an independent director.

The HR & R Committee functions in accordance 
with approved ToRs. The HR & R Committee met 
twice during the year under review.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & 
NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
The Corporate Governance & Nominations (CG & N) 
Committee is composed of the following members:

1.	 Mr. Muhammad Zahid 	  
Chairman, Executive Director

2.	 Dr. Habib Ur Rahman 	  
Member, Non-Executive Director

3.	 Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi 	  
Member, Executive Director

4.	 Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad 	  
Member, Non-Executive Director

5.	 Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui 	  
Member, Independent Director

The ToRs of the CG & N Committee list a number of 
things, nevertheless, the primary objective of the CG 
& N Committee is to review the structure, size and 
composition of the Board and its committees taking 
into account changing environment & geographical 
expansion and making recommendations to the 
Board with regard to changes, if necessary, and to 
monitor corporate and regulatory compliance.

During the year under review one meeting of the 
Committee was held.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Under the provisions of the Code, the Board also 
has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) with the 
following Directors as members:

1.	 Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad 	  
Chairman, Non-Executive Director

2.	 Prof. Dr. Shoab Ahmed Khan 	  
Member, Non-Executive Director

3.	 Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari	  
Member, Independent Director

RMC’s ToRs require to undertake review of 
effectiveness of risk management procedures, 
identify the risks that may confront the Company 
and present a report to the Board.

One meeting of the RMC was held in the year under 
review.
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FREQUENCY & ATTENDANCE OF BOARD & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
During the year under review, six (06) and eight (08) meetings of the Board of Directors and the Audit 
Committee, respectively, were held through video link and in person. The attendance of the Directors is as 
under:

Name of Director
No. of Board Meetings 

Attended
No. of Audit Committee Meetings 

Attended
Dr. Habib Ur Rahman 6 8
Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi	 6 N/A
Mr. Muhammad Zahid 6 N/A
Mr. Shafquat Ali Chaudhary 3* N/A
Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad 6 N/A
Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad 6 8
Syed Ilyas Ahmed 6 8
Prof. Dr. Shoab Ahmed Khan 6 N/A
Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari 6 N/A
Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui 6 8

*Leave of absence was granted to Mr. Shafquat Ali Chaudhary who could not attend some of the Board meetings due to his commitments abroad.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The Board of Directors of the Company approves and fixes the remuneration of the Board members 
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, the Act and the Code. The details of 
aggregate amount of remuneration separately of executive and non-executive directors, including salary/
fee, perquisites, benefits and performance-linked incentives etc. have been disclosed in note no. 36 of the 
Financial Statements.

BOARD EVALUATION
As per the requirements of the Code, the Board annually conducts self-evaluation of its performance which 
covers structure & characteristics of the Board, roles & responsibilities, relationship with management and 
hospital specific measures, etc. The overall performance of the Board remained good, determined on the 
basis of approved criteria.
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TRADING OF SHARES
During the year, one of the Company’s Directors 
and Executive traded a total of 80,181 Company’s 
shares. Whereas bonus shares were announced 
by the Company and accordingly shareholding of 
directors/executives and major shareholders was 
increased by 2%.

Besides this, no other trading was performed by 
the Directors, Executives, their spouses and minor 
children. The Pakistan Stock Exchange is regularly 
updated on trading of Company’s shares by 
management employees.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The total number of Company’s shareholders as at 
June 30, 2022 was 2,340 as against 2,408 on June 
30, 2021. The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 
2022 is included in this Annual Report. 

Additional information regarding pattern of 
shareholding is annexed to this report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING PROGRAM
Eight out of ten Directors (80%) have completed 
the Directors’ Training Program (DTP) as laid down 
under Regulation 19(1) of the Code.

The detail of the certified directors is as under:

1.	 Dr. Habib Ur Rahman

2.	 Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi

3.	 Mr. Muhammad Zahid

4.	 Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad

5.	 Syed Ilyas Ahmed

6.	 Prof. Dr. Shoab Ahmed Khan

7.	 Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari

8.	 Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui

The non-mandatory criteria laid down under sub-
regulation 19(1) (iii) of the Code could not be met for 
two Directors as they were overseas and due to the 
difference in time zones could not carry out the DTP.

Moreover, the Company also arranged DTP for 
one female executive as required under the sub-
regulation 19 (3) (i) of the Code.
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CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION
After the introduction of new reforms by the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange encouraging sound corporate 
governance practices and in compliance with 
the mandatory requirement of holding corporate 
briefing by listed companies, a Corporate Briefing 
Session was held through video link for the investors 
and Shareholders of the Company on October 29, 
2021. A detailed presentation was given on the 
Company’s performance and financial results for 
the year ended June 30, 2021 followed by a brief 
on the Company’s future plans by the management 
of the Company. The management satisfactorily 
answered all the questions and queries raised by 
the participants during the session.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITY
The Directors hereby confirm compliance with the 
Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
and the Code for the following matters:

i.	 The Financial Statements, prepared by the 
management of the Company, present fairly 
its state of affairs, the results of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity.

ii.	 Proper books of accounts of the Company 
have been maintained as required by the 
Companies Act, 2017.

iii.	 Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of the 
Financial Statements and accounting estimates 
are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment.

iv.	 International Accounting Standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 
preparation of Financial Statements.

v.	 The system of internal control is sound in 
design and has been effectively implemented 
and monitored.

vi.	 There has been no material departure from the 
best practices of Corporate Governance, as 
detailed in the Code.

vii.	 There are no significant doubts upon 
Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All the related party transactions have been 
approved by the Board of Directors in accordance 
with the Company’s policy on the related party 
transactions. The Company maintains a complete 
record of all such transactions, along with the terms 
and conditions. The disclosure of such related party 
transactions has been given at note no. 35 of the 
Financial Statements.

GRATUITY FUND
Note 10.4 of the notes to the Financial Statements 
reflects the value of investment of gratuity fund 
account.

MATERIAL CHANGES
There is no material changes and commitments 
affecting the financial position of the Company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year 
of the Company to which the financial statement 
relates and the date of the report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE 
COMPANY
The Company wishes to place on record its 
appreciation for the services rendered by the 
Company’s retiring auditors M/s Grant Thornton 
Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, who have 
completed the audit of financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2022. The 
Board of Directors, as desired by the shareholders 
and recommended by the Audit Committee, has 
proposed the appointment of M/s BDO Ebrahim & 
Co., Chartered Accountants as External Auditors of 
the Company for the year ending June 30, 2023.
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SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
As on June 30, 2022 the detail of the subsidiary/associated undertakings of the Company along with 
percentage shares held in each subsidiary/associated undertaking is as under:

Sr. No. Name of the Company Status
% Shares held 

by Shifa
1. Shifa Development Services (Pvt.) Limited Subsidiary 55%
2. Shifa CARE (Pvt.) Limited Associated 50%
3. Shifa Medical Center Islamabad (Pvt.) Limited Subsidiary 56%
4. Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute Islamabad (Pvt.) Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary 100%
5. Shifa National Hospital Faisalabad (Pvt.) Limited Subsidiary 60%
6. Shifa International DWC-LLC Wholly Owned Subsidiary 100%

UPDATE OF SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 
Shifa Development Services (Pvt.) Limited (SDS)
The principal activity of SDS is to provide project development and management services. During the 
financial year SDS has expanded its project portfolio & pipeline, and also increased its operational 
capabilities.

Despite the economic uncertainty, the significant increase in revenue in 2021-22 and number of long 
term projects have a positive impact on the longer term outlook, growth and sustainability of the SDS. 
Additionally, the post-covid desire to invest in healthcare has increased throughout the region and the sector 
has the potential to outpace general economic growth over the next 5 years. SDS is uniquely positioned to 
participate in that growth.

Shifa CARE (Pvt.) Limited (SCPL)
SCPL is a technology development company having the capability to transform healthcare products utilizing 
latest trends in information and communication technologies.
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During the year under review, the SCPL has completed three sub modules of hospital supply chain 
management system and remaining modules and related required integration shall be completed in the 
next year. 

Shifa Medical Center Islamabad (Pvt.) Limited & Shifa National Hospital Faisalabad (Pvt.) Limited 
The construction of both projects remained in progress during the year under review. Activities are 
progressing as per the scope of work and projects’ strategy. Construction project manager has mobilized 
qualified supervision teams equipped with cloud-based project management information systems to ensure 
the execution conforms to the scope, schedule, budget, and quality parameters set by the sponsors of 
both projects.  

However, the projects are facing a cost escalation due to high inflation, rupee-dollar parity etc. The 
Company is contemplating and exploring different options to fund the cost escalation and will revert to the 
shareholders at an appropriate time for their approval as and when required.  

Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute Islamabad (Pvt.) Limited (SNSI)
The principal activity of the SNSI is to establish, run, control, manage and operate state of the art neuro 
sciences institute including diagnostic centers, clinics, laboratories, operation theaters, dental clinics, 
healthcare centres and provide all healthcare and surgical related facilities of different diseases, inpatient 
and outpatient services and treatment of viral, bacterial and chronic diseases and all other related services 
thereof.

During the year under review, SNSI has earned rental income from its building leased out to the Shifa to 
operate it as Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute in the existing building.

Shifa International DWC-LLC (SIDL)
The principal activity of SIDL which it may perform under the license issued by the Dubai Aviation City 
Corporation is marketing and project management services.

SIDL is engaged in negotiating and facilitating Shifa for executing agreements with insurance companies 
generally with GCC countries and particularly in UAE for referring patients to Shifa and it also promote 
the services being provided by Shifa in the GCC countries and in this regard conduct CMEs, workshops, 
marketing campaigns etc.

OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA

Summary of key operating and financial data of last six years has been annexed to this report.

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
The Company’s official website can be accessed at www.shifa.com.pk.
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FUTURE BUSINESS OUTLOOK
Services Expansion

Chemo Daycare Expansion

Shifa has decided to expand the chemo daycare center for administration of chemotherapy drugs and 
associated services. The reorganization plan includes the relocation of chemo day care center from A-3 to 
B-0 with an increase in treatment chairs from 18 to 32 and extended operational hours from 16 to 24. The 
vacant area of A-3 Chemo Daycare would be subsequently utilized for the establishment of 02 semi-private 
and 03 private beds adding 09 Beds to the existing total beds of the hospital.

Gastro OPD Expansion

The existing gastro clinic is planned to be expanded to serve more patients with comprehensive diagnosis, 
treatment, and prevention of liver and stomach disorders for a large population of patients.

Endoscopy Suites and Recovery Area Expansion 

To improve patient facilitation and operational efficiency, space optimization for endoscopy suites has 
been made part of the expansion and reorganization plan. In this regard, Power House and LT panel room 
has been dismantled and relocated from C-0 to vacate the area for relocation of gastro clinics with larger 
footprint. In the subsequent phase, the vacant area of existing gastro clinics (D-0) will be entirely used for 
Endoscopy suites and recovery area in addition to existing suites. The reorganized area encompasses 
Endoscopy suites, Endoscopy ultrasound and ERCP suites.

Surgical Clinic Expansion 

Surgical care is globally considered as a crucial component of healthcare. The dire need for surgical 
intervention for public health continues to rise as the incidences of traumatic injuries, cancers, and 
cardiovascular disease continue to grow. Surgical services at SIH are aimed to expand to better deliver 
quality care across a wide range of surgical specialties under the supervision of a multidisciplinary team 
and a collaborative approach to quality patient care. As a part of expansion, the existing clinic area would 
protrude further in the vacant area of rehab department.
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Medical Oncology Clinic Expansion

With an emerging and potentially significant health burden of cancer in Pakistan, it is anticipated that this 
burden will increase in the times to come due to growing and aging population, behaviors and lifestyle 
factors that leads to cancer. In pursuance to the growing concern, an add on medical oncology clinic is 
panned to be established in vacated pain clinic area (shifted to DUS). This expansion initiate would be a 
step toward catering growing oncology patients in the hospital including breast cancer, skin cancer, lung 
cancer, colon cancer, prostate cancer, and lymphoma.

Nephrology OPD Clinic Expansion

Shifa strives to provide unparalleled clinical services ranging from procedures, i.e., renal biopsy to therapeutic 
modalities. In this regard, nephrology OPD clinic is planned to be relocated to vacated neurology clinic 
area (shifted to DUS) for better patient flow and facilitation.

Technological Advancement

The evolving healthcare digitalization has transformed the healthcare landscape and changed ways on how 
healthcare providers, payers and patients interact among each other, exchange medical data, and make 
treatment and outcome-related decisions. Shifa is striving towards Artificial intelligence based powered 
medical devices to enable the novel concept of Tele ICUs in Pakistan where ICU intensivists can remotely 
monitor the critical patients by leveraging indigenous expertise, technology and intense collaboration with IT 
solution providers. Moreover, Shifa is successfully operating the services of telemedicine, Teleconsultation, 
remote patient monitoring and is committed towards advancing the patient convenience employing IOMT.
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NOTICE OF THE  
36TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 36th Annual General Meeting of the members of Shifa International Hospitals 
Limited (the “Company”) will be held at the registered office (C-0 Auditorium) of the Company at Sector 
H-8/4, Islamabad and also through video-link (Zoom Application) on Friday, October 28, 2022 at 1030 
hours to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To confirm the minutes of 35th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 28, 2021.

2.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts (consolidated and unconsolidated) of the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 together with the directors’ and auditors’ report thereon.

	 As required under section 223 (7) of the Companies Act, 2017 financial statements of the Company 
have been uploaded on Company’s website which can be downloaded from the following link: 

	 https://www.shifa.com.pk/annual-reports

3.	 To approve final cash dividend of Rs. 1.50 per share as recommended by the Board of Directors. It is 
in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs. 1.50 per share already paid to the shareholders, thus 
making a total cash dividend of Rs. 3 per share i.e. 30% for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

4.	 To appoint auditors for the year ending June 30, 2023 and to fix their remuneration. The Board of 
Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee, has proposed appointment of M/s BDO Ebrahim 
& Co., Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company.

	 By Order of the Board

ISLAMABAD 	 MUHAMMAD NAEEM
September 30, 2022 	 Company Secretary

Notes:

i)	 Participation in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) via physical presence or through video-
conferencing:

	 Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its Circular No. 4 dated February 15, 2021 
has directed the listed companies to ensure the participation of members in general meetings 
through electronic means as a regular feature in addition to holding physical meetings. Accordingly, 
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the shareholders intending to participate in the meeting via video link are hereby requested to share 
following information with the Company Secretary office at the earliest but not later than 48 hours 
before the time of AGM i.e. before 10:30 a.m. on October 25, 2022: 	

Name of 
Shareholder

CNIC No.
Folio No. / CDC 

Account No.
Mobile No.* Email Address*

	 *Shareholders are requested to provide their active mobile number and email address to ensure 
timely communication.

	 Members who are registered on or before October 25, 2022, after the necessary verification, will be 
provided a Zoom video-link by the Company via return email. The login facility will remain open from 
1025 hours on October 28, 2022 till the end of the meeting.

	 Shareholders who wish to provide suggestions/comments on the agenda of the AGM can email the 
Company at muhammad.naeem@shifa.com.pk or WhatsApp at 0300-8590160.

ii)	 Closure of Share Transfer Books: 

	 The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2022 to October 28, 
2022 (both days inclusive). No transfer will be accepted for registration during this period. Transfers 
received in order at the share registrar’s office of the Company i.e. M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited situated 
at Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore at the close of business on Thursday, October 
20, 2022 will be considered as being in time, to entitle the transferees to the final cash dividend and to 
attend & vote at the AGM.

iii)	 Appointment of Proxy:

	 A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint another member as his/her 
proxy to attend and vote for him/her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the registered 
office of the Company at Sector H-8/4, Islamabad, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding 
the meeting. Proxy form is attached herewith.

	 CDC Account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 
1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

	 Guidelines for Central Depository Company of Pakistan (‘CDC’) Investor Account Holders:

	 For appointing proxies

a.	 In case of individuals, the account holders or sub account holders whose registration details are 
uploaded as per regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements. The proxy 
form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the proxy form. Copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the 
proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
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b.	 In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen 
signature of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity, shall be 
submitted (unless it has not been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

iv)	 Payment of dividend through bank account of the shareholder:

	 Pursuant to the requirement of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, shareholders are MANDATORILY 
required to provide their International Bank Account Number (IBAN) to receive their cash dividend 
directly in their bank accounts instead of dividend warrants. In this regard and in pursuance of the 
directives of the SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated August 01, 2017, shareholders are requested 
to submit their written request (if not already provided) to the Company’s registered address, giving 
particulars of their bank account. In the absence of shareholder’s valid bank account details by 
October 20, 2022, the Company will be constrained to withhold dividend of such members.

	 CDC account holders are requested to submit their mandate instruction to the relevant member stock 
exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor account.

v)	 Submission of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) /National Tax Number (NTN) for 
payment of dividend:

	 Pursuant to the directive of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, CNIC numbers of 
members are mandatorily required for the payment of dividend. Members are, therefore, requested 
to submit a copy of their CNIC and/or NTN (if not already provided) to the Company on its registered 
address/ Share Registrar.

	 Shareholders maintaining their shareholdings under Central Depository System (CDS are requested 
to submit the above information directly to relevant Participant/CDC Investor Account Service.

vi)	 Confirmation of “Filer” status for income tax withholding on cash dividend:

	 For cash dividend, the rates of deduction of income tax, under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 are as follows:

a. Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax returns 15%
b. Rate of tax deduction for non-filer of income tax returns 30%

	 In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will 
be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder, 
in writing to the Company / Share Registrar. If no notification is received, each joint holder shall be 
assumed to have an equal number of shares.

	 The CNIC number / NTN detail is now mandatory and is required for checking the tax status as per the 
Active Taxpayers List (ATL) issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) from time to time.
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vii)	 Exemption from deduction of Income Tax/
Zakat:

	 Members seeking exemption from deduction 
of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a 
reduced rate are requested to submit a valid tax 
withholding exemption certificate or necessary 
documentary evidence for this purpose. 
Members desiring non-deduction of zakat are 
also requested to submit a valid declaration for 
non-deduction of zakat.

	 CDC account holders are requested to submit 
their declaration for non-deduction of zakat 
to the relevant member stock exchange or to 
CDC if maintaining CDC investor account.

viii)	 Unclaimed dividend/shares U/s 244 of the 
Companies Act, 2017:

	 An updated list for unclaimed dividend/
shares of the Company is available on the 
Company’s website www.shifa.com.pk. These 
are unclaimed dividend/shares which have 
remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period 
of three (3) years from the date these have 
become due and payable.

	 Shareholders who have not collected their 
dividend/physical shares so far are advised to 
contact our Share Registrar to collect/enquire 
about their unclaimed dividend or shares, if 
any.

ix)	 Transmission of audited financial statements/
notices through email:

	 Pursuant to Notification vide SRO. 787(I)/2014 
of September 08, 2014 & under section 223(6) 
of the Companies Act, 2017, circulation of 
audited financial statements and notice of AGM 
has been allowed in electronic format through 
email.

Shareholders who wish to receive AGM Notice/
Audited Financial Statements in electronic 
form are requested to fill the standard request 
form (available on the Company’s website 
h t tps: / /www.sh i fa .com.pk/wp-content /
uploads/2014/05/Request-Form-2018.pdf) and 
send it to the Company’s registered address.

In addition to above, the Company also placed 
its Financial Statements on its website www.
shifa.com.pk.

x)	 Transmission of annual audited financial 
statements through CD/DVD/USB:

SECP through its SRO 470(1)2016 have allowed 
companies to circulate their annual audited 
financial statements to their members through 
CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses. In 
view of the above, the Company has sent its 
Annual Report to the shareholders in the form 
of DVD.

Any member can send request for printed 
copy of the Annual Report of the Company on, 
a standard request form which is available at 
Company’s website (https://www.shifa.com.
pk//wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Financial-
Statements-Request-Form.pdf) duly signed 
alongwith copy of CNIC/PoA to the Company’s 
Share Registrar.

xi)	 Change of Address:

	 Members are requested to notify any change in 
their registered addresses immediately.

xii)	 Deposit of physical shares into Central 
Depository:

	 As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, 
every existing listed company shall be required 
to replace its physical shares with book-entry 
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form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the SECP, within a period not 
exceeding four years from the commencement of the Act i.e. May 30, 2017. Further SECP vide its letter 
dated March 26, 2021 has advised to comply with Section 72 of the Act and encourage shareholders 
to convert their shares in book-entry form. 

In view of the aforesaid requirement, the shareholders having physical shares are requested to open 
their CDC sub-account with any of the broker or investors account maintained directly with CDC to 
convert their physical shares into book-entry form. 

For any query/information, the shareholders may contact the Company and/or its Share Registrar at 
the following addresses/contact numbers:

	 Company’s Registered Office	 Share Registrar’s Office

	 M/s Shifa International Hospitals Limited	 M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited

	 Sector H-8/4, Islamabad.	 Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, 
	 Ph. No. +92-51-8464770	 Model Town, Lahore.
		  Ph. No. +92-42-35916714
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) 
REGULATIONS, 2019
Year Ended June 30, 2022

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.	 The total number of directors are Ten (10) as per the following:

a.	 Male: 	 Nine (09)

b.	 Female: 	 One (01)

2.	 The composition of the Board is as follows: 

Category Names
Independent Directors* Syed Ilyas Ahmed

Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari

Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui
Non-Executive Directors Dr. Habib Ur Rahman

Mr. Shafquat Ali Chaudhary

Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad

Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad (Female Director)

Prof. Dr. Shoab Ahmed Khan
Executive Directors Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi

Mr. Muhammad Zahid

*The Code requires that independent directors of a listed company shall not be less one third of total number of directors. 
The total number of directors of the Company are ten and one third of the same is equal to 3.33. As decimal digit is less than 
0.5, therefore, the figure 3.33 has been rounded off to 3.

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven 
listed companies, including this Company.

4.	 The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures.

5.	 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the 
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6.	 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 
been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act 
and these Regulations.
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7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided 
over by the Chairman and, in his absence, 
by a director elected by the Board for this 
purpose. The Board has complied with the 
requirements of Act and the Regulations 
with respect to frequency, recording and 
circulating minutes of meeting of the 
Board. 

8.	 The Board have a formal policy and 
transparent procedures for remuneration 
of directors in accordance with the Act and 
these Regulations.

9.	 As at June 30, 2022 eight members (80%) 
of the existing Board have completed the 
Director’s Training Program (DTP). The two 
Directors could not take-up the DTP, during 
the year under review, as they reside 
in U.S.A. The Company also arranged 
DTP for one female executive during the 
year under review as required under the 
Regulations.

10.	 The Board has approved appointment of 
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary 
and Head of Internal Audit, including their 
remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regulations. 

11.	 Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive 
Officer duly endorsed the financial 
statements before approval of the Board.

12.	 The Board has formed committees 
comprising of members given below: 

a)	 Audit Committee

i.	 Syed Ilyas Ahmed (Chairman)

ii.	 Dr. Habib Ur Rahman

iii.	 Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad

iv.	 Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui

b)	 HR & Remuneration Committee 

i.	 Syed Ilyas Ahmed (Chairman)

ii.	 Dr. Habib Ur Rahman 

iii.	 Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi

iv.	 Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari

v.	 Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad*
* Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad was inducted in the HR & R  
   Committee on September 28, 2022

c)	 Corporate Governance & Nominations 
Committee

i.	 Mr. Muhammad Zahid (Chairman)

ii.	 Dr. Habib Ur Rahman

iii.	 Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi

iv.	 Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad

v.	 Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui

d)	 Risk Management Committee

i.	 Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad (Chairman)

ii.	 Prof. Dr. Shoab A. Khan

iii.	 Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari

13.	 The terms of reference of the aforesaid 
committees have been formed, 
documented and advised to the committee 
for compliance.

14.	 The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half 
yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as 
per following:

a)	 Audit Committee: Quarterly

b)	 HR and Remuneration Committee: 
Yearly

c)	 Corporate Governance & Nominations 
Committee: Yearly

d)	 Risk Management Committee: Yearly
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15.	 The Board has set up an effective internal audit function. 

16.	 The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners 
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the 
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent 
and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of 
Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company.

17.	 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard.

18.	 We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations 
have been complied with. 

	

DR. MANZOOR H. QAZI	 MUHAMMAD ZAHID
Chief Executive Officer	 Director

ISLAMABAD
September 28, 2022

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) 
REGULATIONS, 2019
Year Ended June 30, 2022
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FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE OF
SIX YEARS
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
PERFORMANCE

Operating profit margin % 12.19 9.31 10.50 9.94 8.04 10.04
Net profit margin % 7.18 4.92 4.16 6.62 5.42 6.55
Return on equity % 12.82 8.61 7.53 14.43 11.14 13.05
Return on assets % 11.47 7.93 8.36 9.79 8.14 11.99
Asset turnover Times 0.94 0.85 0.80 0.98 1.01 1.19

CAPITAL MARKET/CAPITAL STRUCTURE ANALYSIS

Market value per share (year end) Rs. 179.14 219.15 233.36 219.80 270.00 330.00
Breakup value per share Rs. 152.66 136.97 125.33 103.54 93.99 89.32
Market price to breakup value Times 1.17 1.60 1.86 2.12 2.87 3.69
Earnings per share Rs. 18.39 11.07 8.18 14.25 10.21 11.12
Price earning ratio Times 9.74 19.79 28.53 15.42 26.44 29.68
Dividend per share (total) Rs. 1.50  -   2.55 4.50 5.00 3.00
Dividend yield/effective dividend rate % 0.84  -   1.09 2.05 1.85 0.91
Interest cover Times 5.16 3.67 2.67 12.29 14.41 13.99
Debt : equity Ratio 27:73 35:65 34:66 31:69 25:75 9:91

LIQUIDITY

Current ratio 1.09 1.23 1.32 0.81 0.83 0.97
Quick ratio 0.91 1.06 1.10 0.63 0.64 0.76

HISTORICAL TRENDS

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Rupees in '000'

Authorized capital 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 545,379 

Share capital  632,144  619,749  619,749  545,379  545,379  545,379 
Share premium  2,738,888  2,751,283  2,751,283  1,046,025  1,046,025  1,046,025 
Surplus on revaluation of PP&E  867,283  792,396  760,346  772,019  723,310  726,760 
Unappropriated profit  5,411,656  4,325,259  3,636,170  3,283,636  2,811,117  2,553,295 
Share holders' equity  9,649,971  8,488,687  7,767,548  5,647,059  5,125,831  4,871,459 
Non current liabilities  2,310,214  3,317,760  3,962,551  2,717,345  1,882,076  581,874 
Current liabilities  5,251,868  4,886,521  3,529,154  3,573,255  3,137,871  2,295,152 
Total  17,212,053  16,692,968  15,259,253  11,937,659  10,145,778  7,748,485 

Property, plant and equipment  7,134,172  6,791,843  6,991,936  6,845,816  6,028,882  5,457,545 
Investment property  -    -    -    1,642,085  1,401,837  -   
Intangible assets  53,365  31,343  57,414  83,711  33,477  10,585 
Long term investment - at cost  3,918,618  3,178,758  2,933,524  79,833  18,120  18,120 
Long term deposits  85,324  96,260  111,740  87,211  60,736  45,273 
Current assets  5,699,621  5,996,707  4,669,661  2,891,682  2,602,726  2,216,962 
Non current assets held for sale  320,953  598,057  494,978  307,321  -    -   
Total  17,212,053  16,692,968  15,259,253  11,937,659  10,145,778  7,748,485 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS Rupees in ‘000’

Net revenue  16,197,551  14,219,718  12,151,762  11,754,393  10,270,597  9,257,009 
Operating costs  (14,791,977)  (12,899,400)  (11,480,652)  (10,642,312)  (9,508,191)  (8,464,606)
Other income  637,429  107,479  637,219  44,290  63,084  136,579 
Expected credit (losses)/reversal  (69,069)  (103,529)  (32,278)  11,853  -    -   
Operating profit  1,973,934  1,324,268  1,276,051  1,168,224  825,490  928,982 
Finance costs  (382,432)  (360,375)  (478,598)  (95,087)  (57,280)  (66,389)
Provision for taxation  (428,953)  (263,969)  (292,262)  (295,803)  (211,522)  (256,166)
Profit after taxation  1,162,549  699,924  505,191  777,334  556,688  606,427 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Rupees in ‘000’

Net cash flows from operating activities 1,601,920 1,549,681 321,405 1,725,551 902,302 1,037,835 
Net cash used in investing activities  (992,875)  (1,117,057)  (1,180,120)  (1,996,448)  (2,101,707)  (1,323,953)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities  (1,517,527)  98,357  2,348,331  592,927  892,154  (514,959)
Changes in cash & cash equivalent (C&CE)  (908,482)  530,981  1,489,616  322,030  (307,251)  (801,077)
Cash & cash equivalents at begining of the year 2,812,697 2,398,052 794,696 473,479 781,194 1,582,690 
Effect of exchange rate change on C&CE  416,217  (116,336)  113,740  (813)  (464)  (419)
Cash & cash equivalents at end of year 2,320,432 2,812,697 2,398,052 794,696 473,479 781,194 

SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Rs in '000' 22 Vs. 21 
%

Rs in '000' 21 Vs. 20 
%

Rs in '000' 20 Vs. 19 
%

Rs in '000' 19 Vs. 18 
%

Rs in '000' 18 Vs. 17 
%

Rs in '000' 17 Vs. 16 
%

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION

SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES
Share capital  632,144  2.0  619,749  -    619,749  14  545,379  -    545,379  -    545,379  -   
Share premium  2,738,888  (0.5)  2,751,283  -    2,751,283  163  1,046,025  -    1,046,025  -    1,046,025  -   
Surplus on revaluation of PP&E  867,283  9  792,396  4  760,346  (2)  772,019  6.7  723,310  (0.5)  726,760  (2)
Unappropriated profit  5,411,656  25  4,325,259  19  3,636,170  11  3,283,636  17  2,811,117  10  2,553,295  22 
Shareholders' equity  9,649,971  14  8,488,687  9  7,767,548  38  5,647,059  10  5,125,831  5  4,871,459  10 
Non current liabilities  2,310,214  (30)  3,317,760  (16)  3,962,551  46  2,717,345  44  1,882,076  223  581,874  (37)
Current liabilities  5,251,868  7  4,886,521  38  3,529,154  (1)  3,573,255  14  3,137,871  37  2,295,152  25 
Total  17,212,053  3  16,692,968  9  15,259,253  28  11,937,659  18  10,145,778  31  7,748,485  8 

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment  7,134,172  5  6,791,843  (3)  6,991,936  2  6,845,816  14  6,028,882  10  5,457,545  18 
Investment property  -    -    -    -    -    (100)  1,642,085  17  1,401,837  100  -    -   
Intangible assets  53,365  70  31,343  (45)  57,414  (31)  83,711  150  33,477  216  10,585  100 
Long term investments - at cost  3,918,618  23  3,178,758  8  2,933,524  3,575  79,833  341  18,120  -    18,120  1 
Long term deposits  85,324  (11)  96,260  (14)  111,740  28  87,211  44  60,736  34  45,273  14 
Current assets  5,699,621  (5)  5,996,707  28  4,669,661  61  2,891,682  11  2,602,726  17  2,216,962  (12)
Non current assets held for sale  320,953  (46)  598,057  21  494,978  61  307,321  100  -    -    -    -   
Total  17,212,053  3  16,692,968  9  15,259,253  28  11,937,659  18  10,145,778  31  7,748,485  8 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  
PROFIT OR LOSS

Net revenue*  16,197,551  14  14,219,718  17  12,151,762  3  11,754,393  14  10,270,597  11  9,257,009  6 
Operating costs *  (14,791,977)  15  (12,899,400)  12  (11,480,652)  8  (10,642,312)  12  (9,508,191)  12  (8,464,606)  10 
Other income  637,429  493  107,479  (83)  637,219  1,339  44,290  (30)  63,084  (54)  136,579  57 
Expected credit (losses)/reversal  (69,069)  (33)  (103,529)  221  (32,278)  (372)  11,853  100  -    -    -    -   
Operating profit  1,973,934  49  1,324,268  4  1,276,051  9  1,168,224  42  825,490  (11)  928,982  (19)
Finance costs  (382,432)  6  (360,375)  (25)  (478,598)  403  (95,087)  66  (57,280)  (14)  (66,389)  (39)
Provision for taxation  (428,953)  63  (263,969)  (10)  (292,262)  (1)  (295,803)  40  (211,522)  (17)  (256,166)  (8)
Profit after taxation  1,162,549  66  699,924  39  505,191  (35)  777,334  40  556,688  (8)  606,427  (20)

*	 During the year under review the operations of Shifa International Hospitals Limited translated in to an overall revenue increase of 
14% as compared to the previous year. Operating costs also increased in the same proportion. 
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Rs in '000' 22 Vs. 21 

%
Rs in '000' 21 Vs. 20 

%
Rs in '000' 20 Vs. 19 

%
Rs in '000' 19 Vs. 18 

%
Rs in '000' 18 Vs. 17 

%
Rs in '000' 17 Vs. 16 

%

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION

SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES
Share capital  632,144  2.0  619,749  -    619,749  14  545,379  -    545,379  -    545,379  -   
Share premium  2,738,888  (0.5)  2,751,283  -    2,751,283  163  1,046,025  -    1,046,025  -    1,046,025  -   
Surplus on revaluation of PP&E  867,283  9  792,396  4  760,346  (2)  772,019  6.7  723,310  (0.5)  726,760  (2)
Unappropriated profit  5,411,656  25  4,325,259  19  3,636,170  11  3,283,636  17  2,811,117  10  2,553,295  22 
Shareholders' equity  9,649,971  14  8,488,687  9  7,767,548  38  5,647,059  10  5,125,831  5  4,871,459  10 
Non current liabilities  2,310,214  (30)  3,317,760  (16)  3,962,551  46  2,717,345  44  1,882,076  223  581,874  (37)
Current liabilities  5,251,868  7  4,886,521  38  3,529,154  (1)  3,573,255  14  3,137,871  37  2,295,152  25 
Total  17,212,053  3  16,692,968  9  15,259,253  28  11,937,659  18  10,145,778  31  7,748,485  8 

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment  7,134,172  5  6,791,843  (3)  6,991,936  2  6,845,816  14  6,028,882  10  5,457,545  18 
Investment property  -    -    -    -    -    (100)  1,642,085  17  1,401,837  100  -    -   
Intangible assets  53,365  70  31,343  (45)  57,414  (31)  83,711  150  33,477  216  10,585  100 
Long term investments - at cost  3,918,618  23  3,178,758  8  2,933,524  3,575  79,833  341  18,120  -    18,120  1 
Long term deposits  85,324  (11)  96,260  (14)  111,740  28  87,211  44  60,736  34  45,273  14 
Current assets  5,699,621  (5)  5,996,707  28  4,669,661  61  2,891,682  11  2,602,726  17  2,216,962  (12)
Non current assets held for sale  320,953  (46)  598,057  21  494,978  61  307,321  100  -    -    -    -   
Total  17,212,053  3  16,692,968  9  15,259,253  28  11,937,659  18  10,145,778  31  7,748,485  8 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  
PROFIT OR LOSS

Net revenue*  16,197,551  14  14,219,718  17  12,151,762  3  11,754,393  14  10,270,597  11  9,257,009  6 
Operating costs *  (14,791,977)  15  (12,899,400)  12  (11,480,652)  8  (10,642,312)  12  (9,508,191)  12  (8,464,606)  10 
Other income  637,429  493  107,479  (83)  637,219  1,339  44,290  (30)  63,084  (54)  136,579  57 
Expected credit (losses)/reversal  (69,069)  (33)  (103,529)  221  (32,278)  (372)  11,853  100  -    -    -    -   
Operating profit  1,973,934  49  1,324,268  4  1,276,051  9  1,168,224  42  825,490  (11)  928,982  (19)
Finance costs  (382,432)  6  (360,375)  (25)  (478,598)  403  (95,087)  66  (57,280)  (14)  (66,389)  (39)
Provision for taxation  (428,953)  63  (263,969)  (10)  (292,262)  (1)  (295,803)  40  (211,522)  (17)  (256,166)  (8)
Profit after taxation  1,162,549  66  699,924  39  505,191  (35)  777,334  40  556,688  (8)  606,427  (20)

*	 During the year under review the operations of Shifa International Hospitals Limited translated in to an overall revenue increase of 
14% as compared to the previous year. Operating costs also increased in the same proportion. 
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' %

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  
FINANCIAL POSITION

SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES
Share capital  632,144  4  619,749  4  619,749  4  545,379  5  545,379  5  545,379  7 
Share premium  2,738,888  16  2,751,283  16  2,751,283  18  1,046,025  9  1,046,025  10  1,046,025  13 
Surplus on revaluation of PP&E  867,283  5  792,396  5  760,346  5  772,019  6  723,310  7  726,760  9 
Unappropriated profit  5,411,656  31  4,325,259  26  3,636,170  24  3,283,636  27  2,811,117  28  2,553,295  33 
Shareholders' equity  9,649,971  56  8,488,687  51  7,767,548  51  5,647,059  47  5,125,831  50  4,871,459  62 
Non current liabilities  2,310,214  13  3,317,760  20  3,962,551  26  2,717,345  23  1,882,076  19  581,874  8 
Current liabilities  5,251,868  31  4,886,521  29  3,529,154  23  3,573,255  30  3,137,871  31  2,295,152  30 
Total  17,212,053  100  16,692,968  100  15,259,253  100  11,937,659  100  10,145,778  100  7,748,485  100 

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment  7,134,172  41.4  6,791,843  40.7  6,991,936  45.8  6,845,816  57.3  6,028,882  59.4  5,457,545  70.4 
Investment property  -    -    -    -    -    -  1,642,085  13.8  1,401,837  13.8  -    -   
Intangible assets  53,365  0.3  31,343  0.2  57,414  0.4  83,711  0.7  33,477  0.3  10,585  0.2 
Long term investments - at cost  3,918,618  22.8  3,178,758  19.0  2,933,524  19.2  79,833  0.7  18,120  0.2  18,120  0.2 
Long term deposits  85,324  0.5  96,260  0.6  111,740  0.7  87,211  0.7  60,736  0.6  45,273  0.6 
Current assets  5,699,621  33.1  5,996,707  35.9  4,669,661  30.6  2,891,682  24.2  2,602,726  25.7  2,216,962  28.6 
Non current assets held for sale  320,953  1.9  598,057  3.6  494,978  3.2  307,321  2.6  -    -    -    -   
Total  17,212,053  100  16,692,968  100  15,259,253  100  11,937,659  100  10,145,778  100  7,748,485  100 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  
PROFIT OR LOSS

Net revenue  16,197,551  100  14,219,718  100  12,151,762  100  11,754,393  100  10,270,597  100  9,257,009  100 
Operating costs  (14,791,977)  (91.3)  (12,899,400)  (91.0)  (11,480,652)  94.5  (10,642,312)  90.5  (9,508,191)  92.6  (8,464,606)  91.4 
Other income  637,429 3.9  107,479  1.0  637,219  5.2  44,290  0.4  63,084  0.6  136,579  1.5 
Expected credit (losses)/reversal  (69,069) (0.4)  (103,529)  (1.0)  (32,278)  0.3  11,853  0.1  -    -    -    -   
Operating profit  1,973,934  12.2  1,324,268  9  1,276,051  10.5  1,168,224  10  825,490  8  928,982  10.1 
Finance costs  (382,432)  (2.4)  (360,375)  (3.0)  (478,598)  3.9  (95,087)  0.8  (57,280)  0.6  (66,389)  0.7 
Provision for taxation  (428,953)  (2.6)  (263,969)  (2.0)  (292,262)  2.4  (295,803)  2.6  (211,522)  2  (256,166)  2.8 
Profit after taxation  1,162,549 7.2  699,924  5.0  505,191  4.2  777,334  6.6  556,688  5.4  606,427  6.6 
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' % Rs in '000' %

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  
FINANCIAL POSITION

SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES
Share capital  632,144  4  619,749  4  619,749  4  545,379  5  545,379  5  545,379  7 
Share premium  2,738,888  16  2,751,283  16  2,751,283  18  1,046,025  9  1,046,025  10  1,046,025  13 
Surplus on revaluation of PP&E  867,283  5  792,396  5  760,346  5  772,019  6  723,310  7  726,760  9 
Unappropriated profit  5,411,656  31  4,325,259  26  3,636,170  24  3,283,636  27  2,811,117  28  2,553,295  33 
Shareholders' equity  9,649,971  56  8,488,687  51  7,767,548  51  5,647,059  47  5,125,831  50  4,871,459  62 
Non current liabilities  2,310,214  13  3,317,760  20  3,962,551  26  2,717,345  23  1,882,076  19  581,874  8 
Current liabilities  5,251,868  31  4,886,521  29  3,529,154  23  3,573,255  30  3,137,871  31  2,295,152  30 
Total  17,212,053  100  16,692,968  100  15,259,253  100  11,937,659  100  10,145,778  100  7,748,485  100 

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment  7,134,172  41.4  6,791,843  40.7  6,991,936  45.8  6,845,816  57.3  6,028,882  59.4  5,457,545  70.4 
Investment property  -    -    -    -    -    -  1,642,085  13.8  1,401,837  13.8  -    -   
Intangible assets  53,365  0.3  31,343  0.2  57,414  0.4  83,711  0.7  33,477  0.3  10,585  0.2 
Long term investments - at cost  3,918,618  22.8  3,178,758  19.0  2,933,524  19.2  79,833  0.7  18,120  0.2  18,120  0.2 
Long term deposits  85,324  0.5  96,260  0.6  111,740  0.7  87,211  0.7  60,736  0.6  45,273  0.6 
Current assets  5,699,621  33.1  5,996,707  35.9  4,669,661  30.6  2,891,682  24.2  2,602,726  25.7  2,216,962  28.6 
Non current assets held for sale  320,953  1.9  598,057  3.6  494,978  3.2  307,321  2.6  -    -    -    -   
Total  17,212,053  100  16,692,968  100  15,259,253  100  11,937,659  100  10,145,778  100  7,748,485  100 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  
PROFIT OR LOSS

Net revenue  16,197,551  100  14,219,718  100  12,151,762  100  11,754,393  100  10,270,597  100  9,257,009  100 
Operating costs  (14,791,977)  (91.3)  (12,899,400)  (91.0)  (11,480,652)  94.5  (10,642,312)  90.5  (9,508,191)  92.6  (8,464,606)  91.4 
Other income  637,429 3.9  107,479  1.0  637,219  5.2  44,290  0.4  63,084  0.6  136,579  1.5 
Expected credit (losses)/reversal  (69,069) (0.4)  (103,529)  (1.0)  (32,278)  0.3  11,853  0.1  -    -    -    -   
Operating profit  1,973,934  12.2  1,324,268  9  1,276,051  10.5  1,168,224  10  825,490  8  928,982  10.1 
Finance costs  (382,432)  (2.4)  (360,375)  (3.0)  (478,598)  3.9  (95,087)  0.8  (57,280)  0.6  (66,389)  0.7 
Provision for taxation  (428,953)  (2.6)  (263,969)  (2.0)  (292,262)  2.4  (295,803)  2.6  (211,522)  2  (256,166)  2.8 
Profit after taxation  1,162,549 7.2  699,924  5.0  505,191  4.2  777,334  6.6  556,688  5.4  606,427  6.6 

83Shifa International Hospitals Limited



STATEMENT OF  
VALUE ADDITION

2022 2021
Rupees in ‘000’ % Rupees in ‘000’ %

Value added
Total Revenue inclusive of other income  16,834,980  14,327,197 
Supplies and other operating costs  8,828,276  8,083,955 

Total value added  8,006,704  6,243,242 

Value allocated
To employees

Salaries, wages and other benefits  5,827,983  72.8  4,803,017  76.8 

To Government

Income tax, sales tax and federal excise duty etc  738,458  9.2  484,734  7.8 

To society

Donation  25,000  0.3  -    -   

To providers of capital
Dividend to shareholders  94,822   1.2  -    -   
Finance cost of borrowed funds  252,714  3.2  255,567  4.1 

 347,536  4.4  255,567  4.1 

Retained in the Company  1,067,727  13.3  699,924 11

Total value allocated  8,006,704  100  6,243,242  100 

Salaries, wages and 
other benefits

Income tax and 
sales tax

Finance cost of 
borrowed funds

Dividend to
shareholders

Retained in 
the Company

2022 2021

13%

1%

11%

77%

8%

73%

9%

3%
4%
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UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022



Grant Thronton Anjum  
Rahman
302 B, 3rd Floor Evacuee
Trust Complex,
Aga Khan Road F-5/1,
Islamabad, Pakistan

T: +92 51 2271906  
F: +92 51 2273874

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW 
REPORT
To the members of Shifa International Hospitals Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by Board of Directors of Shifa International 
Hospitals Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2022 in accordance with the requirements of 
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 
compliance with the provision of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance 
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel 
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are 
not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and 
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such controls, the Company’s corporate governance 
procedures and risks.

The Regulation require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the 
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respect, with the 
requirement contained in the Regulations as applicable to the company for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Islamabad
September 30, 2022

UDIN: CR20221016424eHuEkKg
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Grant Thronton Anjum  
Rahman
302 B, 3rd Floor Evacuee
Trust Complex,
Aga Khan Road F-5/1,
Islamabad, Pakistan

T: +92 51 2271906  
F: +92 51 2273874

To the members of Shifa International Hospitals Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Shifa International Hospitals Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022 and the unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated 
statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the 
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity 
and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of 
the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the profit, the comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current year. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on this matter.
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Following is the key audit matter:

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Revenue from contract with customers:

(Refer to note 26 to the unconsolidated financial 
statements)

The Company principally generates revenue from 
providing of inpatient and outpatient services 
and supply of medicines. We identified revenue 
recognition as a key audit matter because it is one 
of key performance indicator which gives rise to an 
inherent risk of misstatement.

Our audit procedures amongst others included the 
following:

-	 Obtained an understanding of the Company’s 
processes and related internal controls for 
revenue recognition and tested the design, 
implementation and operating effectiveness of 
those controls;

-	 Performed test of details of sampled revenue by 
inspecting the underlying supporting documents 
including medical record bills, sales report and 
bank statements;

-	 Performed cut off procedures to ensure revenue 
has been recorded in the correct period;

-	 Evaluated and tested on sample basis the 
authority metrics (controls) over changes in 
charge master;

-	 Verified on sample basis the trade debts through 
obtaining confirmations from debtors and 
performing other alternate procedures; and

-	 Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

	• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

	• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

	• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
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or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

	• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017);

b)	 the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, 
the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes 
in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with 
the books of account and returns;

c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company’s business; and
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d)	 zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted 
by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that 
Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Hassaan Riaz.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Islamabad
September 30, 2022

UDIN: AR202210164tkOXaxgH3	



2022 2021 
Note (Rupees in '000')

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital
100,000,000 (2021: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 4 632,144 619,749 
Capital reserves
Share premium 5 2,738,888 2,751,283 
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 6 867,283 792,396 

Revenue reserves
Unappropriated profits 5,411,656 4,325,259 

9,649,971 8,488,687 

NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing - secured 7 1,273,101 2,360,408 
Deferred taxation 8 342,828 350,314 
Lease liabilities 9 694,285 607,038 

2,310,214 3,317,760 
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 10 3,587,444 3,251,095 
Unclaimed dividend 40,778 35,158 
Markup accrued 11 35,658 16,913 
Current portion of long term financing - secured 7 1,334,536 1,405,722 
Current portion of lease liabilities 9 253,452 177,633 

5,251,868 4,886,521 
17,212,053 16,692,968 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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2022 2021 
Note (Rupees in '000')

NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 13 7,134,172 6,791,843 
Intangible assets 14 53,365 31,343 
Long term investments - at cost 15 3,918,618 3,178,758 
Long term deposits 16 85,324 96,260 

11,191,479 10,098,204 

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 17 210,189 165,312 
Stock-in-trade 18 711,968 658,280 
Trade debts 19 964,769 834,822 
Loans and advances 20 235,814 337,659 
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 21 296,043 96,430 
Markup accrued 2,129 677 
Other financial assets 22 513,235 622,464 
Tax refunds due from the government (net of provision) 23 448,042 471,366 
Cash and bank balances 24 2,317,432 2,809,697 

5,699,621 5,996,707 

Non - current assets held for sale 25 320,953 598,057 

17,212,053 16,692,968 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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2022 2021 
Note (Rupees in '000')

Net revenue 26 16,197,551 14,219,718

Other income 27 637,429 107,479

Operating costs 28 (14,791,977) (12,899,400)

Finance costs 29 (382,432) (360,375)

Expected credit losses 21.3 & 39.1.3 (69,069) (103,529)

Profit before taxation 1,591,502 963,893 

Provision for taxation 30 (428,953) (263,969)

Profit after taxation 1,162,549 699,924 

(Restated) 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted - (Rupees) 31 18.39 11.07 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF EXECUTIVE
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PROFIT OR LOSS



2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Profit after taxation 1,162,549 699,924 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified in statement of profit or loss

Loss on remeasurement of staff gratuity fund benefit plan (23,961) (45,924)

Deferred tax relating to remeasurement of staff gratuity fund benefit plan 7,907 13,318 

Loss on remeasurement of staff gratuity fund benefit plan (net of tax) (16,054) (32,606)

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 109,611 53,821 

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,256,106 721,139 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF EXECUTIVE
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2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 1,591,502 963,893 
Adjustments for:

Depreciation / amortization on tangible assets 902,448 865,473 
Amortization on intangible assets 21,568 26,071 
Expected credit losses 69,069 103,529 
Property, plant and equipment written off 2,234 977 
Gain on disposal of tangible assets (69,269) (41,975)
Provision for compensated absences 67,049 46,378 
Provision for bonus for employees 125,814 190,931 
Provision for gratuity 159,116 143,917 
Provision for slow moving stores 2,687 6,161 
Liabilities written back - (478)
Gains on investments and bank deposits (97,922) (31,280)
(Gain) / loss on foreign currency translation (416,217) 116,336 
Finance costs 382,432 360,375 

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 2,740,511 2,750,308 
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools (47,564) (19,264)
Stock-in-trade (53,688) (11,927)
Trade debts (158,832) (386,945)
Loans and advances 101,845 57,527 
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (251,637) (42,556)

Increase in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables 243,118 15,649 

Cash generated from operations 2,573,753 2,362,792 
Finance cost paid (275,712) (305,325)
Income tax paid (405,208) (332,473)
Payment to SIHL Employees' Gratuity Fund (241,218) (134,468)
Compensated absences paid (49,695) (40,845)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,601,920 1,549,681 
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Addition to property, plant and equipment (PPE) (672,903) (518,537)

Addition to intangibles (43,590) - 

Outlay against long term investments (739,860) (245,234)

Proceeds / (investment) in other financial assets 165,124 (596,666)

Proceeds from disposal of PPE and items classified held for sale 251,206 231,424 

Markup received 15,112 8,058 

Dividend received 25,463 - 

Decrease in long term deposits 6,573 3,898 

Net cash used in investing activities (992,875) (1,117,057)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term financing - repayments (1,417,563) (381,608)

Long term financing - proceeds 212,009 633,450 

Deferred grant received 47,060 82,630 

Lease liabilities - repayments (269,831) (234,608)

Dividend paid (89,202) (1,507)

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (1,517,527) 98,357 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (908,482) 530,981 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,812,697 2,398,052 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 416,217 (116,336)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 37 2,320,432 2,812,697 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF EXECUTIVE
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Share
capital 

Share 
premium 

Surplus on 
revaluation
of property, 
plant and 

equipment 

Un-
appropriated

profits 
Total 

(Rupees in '000') 

Balance as at July 01, 2020 619,749 2,751,283 760,346 3,636,170 7,767,548 

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit after taxation - - - 699,924 699,924 
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - 53,821 (32,606) 21,215 

- - 53,821 667,318 721,139 

Realization of revaluation surplus on
disposal of assets - - (12,541) 12,541 - 

Transfer of revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment in respect of incremental 
depreciation / amortization - - (9,230) 9,230 - 

Distribution to owners

Dividend 2020: Nil - - - - - 

Balance as at June 30, 2021 619,749 2,751,283 792,396 4,325,259 8,488,687 

Balance as at July 01, 2021 619,749 2,751,283 792,396 4,325,259 8,488,687 

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit after taxation - - - 1,162,549 1,162,549 
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - 109,611 (16,054) 93,557 

- - 109,611 1,146,495 1,256,106 

Realization of revaluation surplus on
disposal of assets - - (24,883) 24,883 - 

Transfer of revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment in respect of incremental 
depreciation / amortization - - (9,841) 9,841 - 

Distribution to owners

Bonus shares (note 4.2) 12,395 (12,395) - - - 

First interim dividend @ Rs. 1.5 per share - - - (94,822) (94,822)

Balance as at June 30, 2022 632,144 2,738,888 867,283 5,411,656 9,649,971 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF EXECUTIVE

98 ANNUAL  
REPORT 2022

For the year ended June 30, 2022

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY



1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Shifa International Hospitals Limited (the Company/SIHL) was incorporated in Pakistan on 
September 29, 1987 as a private limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 
1984 and converted into a public limited company on October 12, 1989. The shares of the 
Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the 
Company is situated at Sector H-8/4, Islamabad.

1.2 The principal activity of the Company is to establish and run medical centers and hospitals in 
Pakistan. The Company has established its first hospital in 1993 in H-8/4 Islamabad, second 
hospital in 2011 in Faisalabad and another in 2014 in G-10/4 Islamabad. The Company is also 
running  medical centers, pharmacies and Lab collection points in different cities of Pakistan.

1.3 Geographical locations of business units of the Company are as follows:

H-8 Hospital, Pitras Bukhari road, Sector H-8/4, Islamabad
Faisalabad Hospital, Main Jaranwala road, Faisalabad
G-10/4 Hospital, G-10 Markaz, Islamabad
Shifa Pharmacy, Opposite OPF College, F-8 Markaz Islamabad
Shifa Pharmacy, Saidpur, Rawalpindi
Shifa Pharmacy, Blue Area, Islamabad
Shifa Pharmacy, Gulberg Greens, Islamabad
Shifa Pharmacy, Abbottabad Road, Mansehra
Shifa Pharmacy Iskandarabad, Mianwali
Shifa Pharmacy, National Radio Telecommunication Corporation, Haripur
Shifa Pharmacy, Jamrud, Peshawar
Shifa Pharmacy, WAPDA, Mangla
Shifa Pharmacy, WAPDA, Faisalabad
F-11 Medical center, Savoy Arcade,  F-11 Markaz Islamabad

Percentage share in total revenue given in note 26. 2022 2021
Islamabad 97% 97%
Faisalabad 3% 3%

100% 100%
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

-	 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the 
Companies Act, 2017; and

-	 Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 
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Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the 
IFRS Standards or IFASs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 
2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except 
for certain items as disclosed in relevant accounting policies.

In these unconsolidated financial statements, being the separate financial statements of the 
Company, investment in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost rather than on the 
basis of reporting results of the investee. Consolidated financial statements are prepared 
separately.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are 
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form 
the basis of making judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments made by management in the application of the accounting and reporting standards 
that have significant effect on the unconsolidated financial statements and estimates with a 
significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are as follows.

i) Estimate of fair value of financial liabilities at initial recognition - notes 3.3 and 7
ii) Provision for taxation - notes 3.4, 8 and 30
iii) Right of use asset and corresponding lease liability - notes 3.5, 9 and 13
iv) Employee benefits - notes 3.7, 10.3 and 10.4
v) Provisions and contingencies - notes 3.8, 3.9 and 12
vi) Estimate of useful life of property, plant and equipment - notes 3.10 and 13
vii) Estimate of useful life of intangible assets - notes 3.11 and 14
viii) Impairment of non-financial assets - note 3.12
ix) Estimate of recoverable amount of investment in subsidiaries and associated 

companies - notes 3.13 and 15
x) Expected credit loss allowance - notes 3.14.2, 21.3 and 39.1.3
xi) Provision for slow moving spares - notes 3.15, 3.16, 13.9.2 and 17
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2.5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

2.5.1 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective during 
the current year:

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective during the year but 
are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company’s operations 
(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, 
not detailed in these financial statements.

2.5.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the Company:

Effective date 
annual reporting 

periods 
beginning on or 

after

IAS 1 Amendments to ‘IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ 
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

January 1, 2023

IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors (Amendments) January 1, 2023

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendments) January 1, 2022

IAS 41, IFRS 
(1, 9 & 16)

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 January 1, 2022

IFRS 10 & 
IAS 28

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its 
associate or joint venture – Amendments

'n/a*

* The Effective date is not yet issued

The management anticipates that adoption of above standards, amendments and interpretations 
in future periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other than in presentation 
/ disclosures.

101Shifa International Hospitals Limited

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



2.5.3 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the 
following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt 
by the SECP as at June 30, 2022:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial 
statements are the same as those applied in earlier period presented.

3.1 Share capital and dividend

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is declared. Movement in reserves 
is recognized in the year in which it is approved.

3.2 Financing and finance cost

Financing are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, financing are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost 
and redemption value being recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the 
financing on an effective interest basis. Financing costs are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which these are incurred.

3.3 Government grants

Government grants are transfers of resources to an entity by a government entity in return for 
compliance with certain past or future conditions related to the entity’s operating activities - e.g. 
a government subsidy.

Government grants are recognized at fair value, as deferred income, when there is reasonable 
assurance that the grants will be received and the Company will be able to comply with the 
conditions associated with the grants.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred, are recognized on a systematic 
basis in the income for the year in which the finance cost are recognized and finance cost are 
reported net of grant in - note 29.

A loan is initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9. IFRS 9 
requires loans at below-market rates to be initially measured at their fair value - e.g. the present 
value of the expected future cash flows discounted at a market-related interest rate. The benefit 
that is the government grant is measured as the difference between the fair value of the loan 
on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according to the nature 
of the grant. 

3.4 Taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is recognized in the statement 
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in 
comprehensive income.
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Current
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of tax after taking 
into account applicable tax credits, rebates, losses and exemptions available, if any.

Deferred
Deferred tax is accounted for using balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred 
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be 
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent 
that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences 
reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset 
if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets and they relate 
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity or on different tax 
entities but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets 
and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate 
authorities. Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax 
department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items 
of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

3.5 Leases

3.5.1 Right of use assets

The Company recognizes right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement 
date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount 
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove 
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any 
lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the 
end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined as those 
of similar assets or the lease term  as specified in contract. In addition, the right-of-use asset is 
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of 
the lease liability.

The Company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term 
leases of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. 
The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.5.2 Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments discounted 
using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments in the measurement of the 
lease liability comprise the following:

-	 Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
-	 Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;
-	 Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
-	 The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that 

option; and
-	 Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising 

that option.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index 
or rate, if there is a change in  the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the  Company changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

3.6 Trade and other payable

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost, which is the fair value of 
the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to 
the Company.

3.7 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan
The Company operates approved funded gratuity scheme for all its employees who have 
completed the minimum qualifying period of service as defined in the scheme. Provision is 
made annually to cover obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and 
is charged to the  statement of profit or loss. The most recent valuation was carried out as at 
June 30, 2022 using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. The actuarial gains or losses at each 
evaluation date are charged to other comprehensive income. The results of actuarial valuation 
are summarized in note 10.4 of these financial statements.

The amount recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of defined benefit 
obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Calculation of gratuity asset requires assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly 
include increase in remuneration, expected long term return on plan assets and the discount 
rate used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes 
in the underlying assumptions and determined by actuary.

104 ANNUAL  
REPORT 2022

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



During the year the Company has introduced a pension fund benefit in form of monthly 
contribution into private pension scheme (defined contribution plan) in place of existing staff 
gratuity benefit (defined benefit plan) for its full time management employees (contractual 
and regular). In response till the year end majority of management employees have opted the 
pension fund benefit and accordingly their gratuity obligations have been cleared from the 
SIHL gratuity fund which resulted into settlement loss of Rs. 37.7 million in unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss. The employees who are currently covered under gratuity benefit not 
opting the pension benefit option will continue under gratuity scheme while new employee shall 
solely be covered under pension scheme after completing minimum eligibility criteria of their 
employment. 

Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan where monthly contribution equal 
to 1/12th of eligible salary are made by the Company in employees’ pension fund account 
maintained with designated asset management company and recognized as expense in the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as and when they become due.

Compensated absences
The Company provides for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of 
leaves in the period in which the leave is earned. Accrual to cover the obligations is made using 
the current salary levels of the employees.

3.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be 
made. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively to 
reflect the current best estimates.

3.9 Contingencies

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of 
past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the 
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company discloses significant contingent liabilities for the pending litigations and claims 
against the Company based on its judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated 
financial outcome. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on 
the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date. However, based on the 
best judgment of the Company and its legal advisors, the likely outcome of these litigations and 
claims is remote and there is no need to recognize any liability at the reporting date.
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3.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except freehold and leasehold lands and capital work-in-
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any. 
Leasehold land is stated at revalued amount  being the fair value at the date of revaluation, 
less any subsequent accumulated amortization and impairment losses while freehold land is 
stated at revalued amount  being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent 
impairment losses, if any.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land is recognized in other comprehensive 
income and presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same 
asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit 
or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount 
arising on the revaluation of land is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the 
balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment relating to a 
previous revaluation of that asset. The surplus on leasehold land to the extent of incremental 
depreciation charged is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Capital work-in-progress and stores held for capital expenditure are stated at cost less 
impairment loss recognized, if any. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred 
during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These 
are transferred to specific items of property, plant and equipment when available for intended 
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other 
repairs and maintenance costs that do not meet the recognition criteria are charged to the 
statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation / amortization is charged to the statement of profit or loss commencing when the asset 
is ready for its intended use, applying the straight-line method over the estimated useful life. 

In respect of additions and disposals during the year, depreciation / amortization is charged 
when the asset is available for use and up to the month preceding the asset's classified as held 
for sale or derecognized, whichever is earlier.

Assets are derecognized when disposed off or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to flow from its use. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment 
are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, 
plant and equipment, and are recognized on net basis within "other income" in the statement 
of profit or loss.

The Company reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis. 
Similarly revaluation of lands are made with sufficient regularity. Any change in estimates in future 
years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment 
with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortization charge and impairment.
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3.11 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, 
if any. Subsequent cost on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditure is 
expensed as incurred.

Amortization is charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Amortization on additions to 
intangible assets is charged from the month in which an item is acquired or capitalized while no 
amortization is charged for the month in which the item is disposed off.

The Company reviews the useful lives of intangible assets on a regular basis. Any change in 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of intangibles 
with the corresponding effect on the amortization charge and impairment.

3.12 Impairment of non - financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets 
except deferred tax assets and inventory may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying 
amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their 
recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amounts, 
assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss except for the impairment loss on revalued assets, 
which is adjusted against the related revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss 
does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to 
the revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of the carrying amount that would have 
been determined (net of depreciation / amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized 
for the asset in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.13 Investments

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized using settlement date accounting. 
Settlement date is the date on which that investments are delivered to or by the Company. All 
investments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have 
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership.

3.13.1 Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting date, recoverable 
amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and carrying amount 
of investment is adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the 
statement of profit or loss. Where impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying 
amounts of investment are increased to its revised recoverable amount, limited to the extent 
of initial cost of investment. Reversal of impairment losses are recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss.
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The profits or losses of subsidiaries are carried forward in their financial statements and are 
not dealt within these financial statements except to the extent of dividend declared by the 
subsidiaries. Gains and losses on disposal of investment are included in other income. When 
the disposal on investment in subsidiary results in loss of control such that it becomes an 
associate, the retained investment is carried at cost.

3.13.2 Investment in associate

Investments in associate are initially recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting date, the 
recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and 
carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized 
as expense in the  statement of profit or loss. Where impairment losses are subsequently 
reversed, the carrying amounts of these investments are increased to the revised recoverable 
amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is 
recognized in the  statement of profit or loss. The profits and losses of associate are carried 
forward in the financial statements and are not dealt within these financial statements except to 
the extent of dividend declared by the associate. Gains and losses on disposal of investments 
are included in the statement of profit or loss.

3.14 Financial assets

Initial measurement
A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:
 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
 - Amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

i) Debt instrument at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

ii) Equity instrument at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income 
in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of 
the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive 
income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

iii) Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
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iv) Financial asset at amortized cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange 
gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

3.14.1 Other financial assets

Investment in Units of Mutual Funds are classified at fair value through profit or loss and is 
initially measured at fair value and subsequently is measured at fair value determined using the 
net assets value of the funds at each reporting date. Net gains and losses are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss.

Investments in term deposit receipts are classified as amortized cost and are initially measured 
at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are included in the carrying 
amount. Subsequently these investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest / markup 
income, losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

3.14.2 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with 
its financial asset carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 

The Company applies the simplified approach for trade debts which requires expected lifetime 
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The Company recognises life time ECL for trade debts, using the simplified approach. The 
expected credit losses on trade debts are estimated using a provision matrix based on the 
Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, 
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast 
direction of conditions at the reporting date. Life time expected credit losses against other 
receivables is also recognized due to significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss 
given default (i.e.  the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. 
The assessment of the probability  of default and loss given default is based on historical data 
adjusted by forward-looking information as  described above. As for the exposure at default for 
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross  carrying amount at the reporting date 
reduced by security deposit held. For other financial assets,  the ECL is based on the 12-month 
ECL. The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECLs that results from default events on a 
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based 
on the lifetime ECL.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss in the profit or loss for all financial instruments 
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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The Gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no 
reasonable expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The 
Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off 
based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery.

The Company write off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activities. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off will result in impairment gains.

3.14.3 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from 
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

3.14.4 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit 
or loss' (FVTPL). A financial liability is classified at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it 
is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized 
in the statement of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in 
the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or have expired or when the financial liability's cash flows have been substantially 
modified.

3.14.5 Off-setting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of 
financial position, if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized 
amounts, and the Company either intends to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. Legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency 
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counter party.

3.15 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at cost, determined on moving average cost basis or net realizable value, 
whichever is lower. For items which are slow moving or identified as surplus to the Company's 
requirement, a provision is made for excess of book value over estimated net realizable value. 

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spare parts and loose tools on a regular 
basis. Any  change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the 
respective items of stores and spares with a corresponding affect on the provision.
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3.16 Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost, determined on moving average basis or net realizable 
value. The cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stock items and other cost 
incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade on a regular basis. Any  change in 
the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of stores 
and spares with a corresponding affect on the provision.

3.17 Trade debts, loans, deposits, interest accrued and other receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is 
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Past years experience of credit loss is used to base the 
calculation of credit loss.

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cheques in hand, balances with banks and 
highly liquid short term investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value with maturity of three months or less 
from the date of acquisition.

3.19 Non - current assets held for sale

Non - current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts are expected 
to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. 
They are stated at the lower of carrying amount immediately prior to their classification as held 
for sale and fair value less cost to sell. Once classified as held for sale, the assets are not 
subject to depreciation or amortization. In case where classification criteria of non current asset 
held for sale is no longer met such asset is classified on its carrying amount before the asset 
was classified as held for sale, adjusted for depreciation/revaluation that would have been 
recognized had the asset not been classified as held for sale. The required adjustment to the 
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale is charged 
in the  statement of profit or loss.

3.20 Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Pak Rupees are recorded at the rates of exchange 
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities 
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing on the reporting 
date. Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in the  statement of profit or loss 
for the year.

3.21 Operating segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible 
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been 
identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions. The management has 
determined that the Company has a single reportable segment as the Board of Directors view 
the Company’s operations as one reportable segment. 
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3.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. 
Revenue from operations of the Company are recognized when the services are provided, and 
thereby the performance obligations are satisfied.

Revenue consists of inpatient revenue, outpatient revenue, pharmacy, cafeteria, rent of building 
and other services. Company's contract performance obligations are fulfilled at point in time 
when the services are provided to customer in case of inpatient, outpatient and other services 
and goods are delivered to customer in case of pharmacy and cafeteria revenue. Revenue is 
recognized at that point in time, as the control has been transferred to the customers.

Receivable is recognized when the services are provided and goods are delivered to customers 
as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only passage of 
time is required before the payment is due. The Company recognizes contract liabilities for 
consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these 
amounts as 'advances from customers' in the statement of financial position.

Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the 
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the rent agreement.

Scrap sales and miscellaneous receipts are recognized on realized amounts.

3.23 Asset held under Ijarah financing

Assets held under Ijarah financing are accounted for using the guidelines of Islamic Financial 
Accounting Standard-2 (IFAS 2), "Ijarah". The assets are not recognized on the Company's 
statement of financial position and payments made under Ijarah financing are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the Ijarah.

3.24 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholder 
and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all potential 
ordinary shares.

3.25 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability.
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The principal or the most advantageous market is accessible by the Company. The fair value 
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The carrying values of all financial assets 
and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the unconsolidated 
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

 • Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities;

• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the unconsolidated financial statements at fair 
value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

4 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each.

2022 2021 2022 2021
Number (Rupees in '000') 

61,974,886 61,974,886 Opening balance 619,749 619,749 

1,239,497 - 
Bonus shares issued 
during the year 12,395 - 

63,214,383 61,974,886 Closing balance 632,144 619,749

4.1 The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. The 
shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled 
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the 
Company's residual assets.

4.2 During the year, Company issued bonus shares at the rate of 2% in proportion of one ordinary 
share for every fifty shares held (total 1,239,497 bonus shares having face value of Rs. 10 
each) as approved in Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2021.
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4.3 7,436,986 (2021: 7,436,986) ordinary shares representing 12% (2021: 12%) shareholding in 
the Company are owned by International Finance Corporation (IFC). IFC has the right to 
nominate one director at the board of directors of the Company as long as IFC holds ordinary 
shares representing 5% of total issued share capital of the Company. Further, the Company 
if intends to amend or repeal the memorandum and articles, effects the rights of IFC on its 
shares issuance of preference shares ranking seniors to the equity securities held by IFC, 
incur any financial debt to any shareholder, change the nature of the business of the Company 
etc. shall seek consent of IFC. 

4.4 The Company has no reserved shares for issuance under options and sales contracts.

5 SHARE PREMIUM

This comprise of share premium of Rs. 5, Rs. 250 and Rs. 229.29 per share received on issue 
of 8,000,000, 4,024,100 and 7,436,986 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each in the years 1994, 2016 
and 2020 respectively. Out of the above the Company during the current year has issued 
bonus shares at the rate mentioned in note 4.2 above. The balance reserve cannot be utilized 
except for the purposes mentioned in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

2022 2021
6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF

(Rupees in '000')
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Balance at beginning of the year 792,396 760,346 
Revaluation surplus during the year 109,611 53,821 
Realization of revaluation surplus on disposal of assets (24,883) (12,541)
Transferred to unappropriated profits in respect of incremental
depreciation / amortization charged during the year (9,841) (9,230)

Balance at end of the year 867,283 792,396 

6.1 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in respect of leasehold and freehold 
lands is not available for distribution of dividend to the shareholders of the Company in 
accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.
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2022 2021
7 LONG TERM FINANCING - SECURED Note (Rupees in '000') 

From banking companies and non banking 
financial institution:

Syndicated Islamic Finance Facility 7.1 1,283,907 1,854,086 
Diminishing Musharakah Facility-1 7.2 250,754 434,274 
Diminishing Musharakah Facility-2 7.3 416,667 500,000 
Diminishing Musharakah Facility-3 7.4 26,160 - 
Refinance Facility to Combat COVID-19 (RFCC) 7.5 88,194 - 
Deferred income - Government grant 29,483 - 

117,677 - 
Islamic Refinance Facility to Combat Covid -19 (IRFCC) 7.6 128,952 127,789 
Deferred income - Government grant 20,014 25,526 

148,966 153,315 
Islamic Refinance Facility to Combat COVID-19 (IRFCC) 7.7 34,209 - 
Deferred income - Government grant 11,775 - 

45,984 - 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) - refinance scheme 7.8 311,283 780,354 
Deferred income - Government grant 6,239 44,101 

317,522 824,455 

2,607,637 3,766,130 
Less: current portion 1,334,536 1,405,722 

1,273,101 2,360,408 

7.1 This represents syndicated Islamic finance facility, arranged and lead by Meezan Bank 
Limited, obtained on profit rate basis at 3 months KIBOR plus 0.85% (2021: 3 months KIBOR 
plus 0.85%) per annum, repayable in 14 equal quarterly installments. The Company has 
availed the loan facility upto the total sanctioned limit of Rs. 2,000 million repayable by August 
22, 2024. The financing is secured by pari passu charge of Rs. 2,667 million on all present 
and future Company's movable fixed assets and land / building located at H-8/4, Islamabad. 
Meezan Bank Limited has the custody of original ownership documents of the Company's 
land located at sector H-8/4 Islamabad.

7.2 This include outstanding balance of Rs. 210.4 million (2021: Rs. 405.3 million) against the 
long term Islamic finance facility obtained from Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited of Rs. 
449.5 million (2021: Rs. 442.9 million). Principal amount is repayable in 36 equal monthly 
installments carrying profit rate at 3 months KIBOR plus 0.80% (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 
0.80%) per annum. The financing is secured by first exclusive charge of Rs. 781.3 million 
against equipment / machinery. The unavailed limit of this facility is Rs. 20.7 million (2021: Rs. 
19.6 million). This also includes an outstanding balance of Rs. 40.3 million (2021: Rs. 28.9 
million) against long term Islamic finance facility obtained under Diminishing Musharakah 
basis from First Habib Modaraba of Rs. 57.7 million (2021: Rs. 37.6 million). Principal amount 
is repayable in 60 equal monthly installments carrying profit rate at 3 months KIBOR plus 
0.70% (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 0.70%) per annum. The unavailed limit of this facility is Rs. 
12.3 million (2021: Rs. 32.4 million).
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7.3 This represents outstanding balance of long term Islamic finance facility obtained from Meezan 
Bank Limited of Rs. 500 million (2021: Rs. 500 million). Principal amount shall be repaid by 
October 01, 2024 in 12 equal quarterly installments carrying profit rate at 3 months KIBOR 
plus 0.85% (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 0.85%) per annum. The financing is secured by first 
pari passu charge of Rs. 667 million on all present and future fixed assets of the Company.

7.4 This represents a long term Islamic finance facility obtained from Bank Alfalah Limited of 
Rs. 26.2 million (2021: Nil). Principal amount is repayable in 12 equal quarterly installments 
carrying profit rate at 3 months KIBOR plus 0.70% (2021: Nil) per annum. The financing is 
secured by ranking charge of Rs. 800 million against plant and machinery being financed 
under DM facility to be installed / placed at Hospital located in H-8/4, Islamabad. The charge 
will be upgraded to first exclusive charge against plant and machinery being financed under 
this facility. The unavailed limit of this facility is Rs. 492.9 million (2021: Nil).

7.5 This represents the outstanding balance of long term finance facility obtained from United 
Bank Limited of Rs. 124.6 million (2021: Nil). Principal amount shall be repaid by September 
14, 2026 in 18 equal quarterly installments carrying profit at 1% (2021: Nil) per annum. The 
financing is secured by first pari passu charge of Rs. 267 million over fixed assets (excluding 
land and building) of the Company. The unavailed limit of this facility is Rs. 75.4 million (2021: 
Rs. 200 million). Since the financing under SBP refinance scheme carries the markup rate 
below the market rate, the loan has been recognized at present value using the Company's 
effective profit rate along with the recognition of government grant as detailed below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Balance at beginning of the year - - 
Received during the year 29,857 - 
Amortization during the year (374) - 
Balance at end of the year 29,483 - 

7.6 This represents the outstanding balance of long term Islamic finance facility obtained from 
Meezan Bank Limited of Rs. 183.1 million (2021: Rs. 153.3 million) for the purpose of import 
/ purchase of medical equipment / machinery to combat COVID-19 under State Bank of 
Pakistan IRFCC scheme. Principal amount shall be repaid by December 29, 2025 in 18 
equal quarterly installments with no profit rate. The financing is secured by first pari passu 
hypothecation charge of Rs. 267 million on all present and future fixed assets of the Company 
(excluding land and building). The unavailed limit of this facility is Rs. 16.9 million (2021: Rs. 
34.9 million). Since the financing under SBP refinance scheme carries no profit rate, the loan 
has been recognized at present value using the Company's effective profit rate along with the 
recognition of government grant as detailed below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Balance at beginning of the year 25,526 - 
Received during the year 5,140 29,847 
Amortization during the year (10,652) (4,321)
Balance at end of the year 20,014 25,526 
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7.7 This represents the outstanding balance of long term Islamic finance facility obtained from 
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited of Rs. 45.9 million (2021: Nil) for the purpose of import 
/ purchase of medical equipment / machinery to combat COVID-19 under State Bank of 
Pakistan IRFCC scheme. Principal amount shall be repaid in 9 equal half yearly installments 
with profit rate of 1% per annum. The facility is secured by ranking charge of Rs. 55 million 
over equipment / machinery against DM IRFCC. The unavailed limit of this facility is Nil (2021: 
Rs. 17.4 million). Since the financing under SBP refinance scheme carries the profit rate below 
the market rate, the loan has been recognized at present value using the Company's effective 
profit rate along with the recognition of government grant as detailed below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Balance at beginning of the year - - 
Received during the year 12,063 - 
Amortization during the year (288) - 
Balance at end of the year 11,775 - 

7.8 This represents the outstanding balance of long term finance facility aggregating to Rs. 
1,012.2 million (2021: Rs. 1,012.2 million) obtained from United Bank Limited under the State 
Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) temporary refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries to 
the workers and employees of business concerns to support payment of salaries and wages 
under economic challenges due to COVID-19. The Company has availed the financing in 
six tranches from April 2020 to September 2020 at a subsidized markup rate of 0.85% per 
annum. The financing is repayable in 08 equal quarterly installments starting from January 
2021 and shall be fully settled by January 31, 2023. The facility is secured by first pari passu 
charge of Rs. 1,333.3 million over fixed assets (excluding land and building) of the Company. 
Since the financing under SBP refinance scheme carries the markup rate below the market 
rate, the loan has been recognized at present value using the Company's effective interest 
rate along with the recognition of government grant as detailed below:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000')

Balance at beginning of the year 44,101 53,193 
Received during the year - 52,783 
Amortization during the year (37,862) (61,875)
Balance at end of the year 6,239 44,101 

8 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability 8.1 525,157 504,648 
Deferred tax asset 8.2 (182,329) (154,334)

Net deferred tax liability 342,828 350,314 
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2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

8.1 Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences:
Accelerated depreciation / amortization allowance 525,157 504,648 

8.2 Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences:
Right of use assets net of lease liabilities (34,728) (13,428)
Specific provisions (83,762) (67,944)
Retirement benefit obligation (63,839) (72,962)

(182,329) (154,334)

8.3 Movement in deferred taxation

Deferred tax liabilities / (assets)
Opening 
balance 

Statement of 
profit or loss

Other 
comprehensive 

Income

Closing 
balance 

2022 (Rupees in '000')

The balance of deferred tax is in respect 
of following temporary differences:

Effect of taxable temporary differences
Accelerated depreciation / amortization 
allowance 504,648 20,509 - 525,157 

Effect of deductible temporary differences
Right of use assets net of lease liabilities (13,428) (21,300) - (34,728)
Specific provisions (67,944) (15,818) - (83,762)
Retirement benefit obligation (72,962) 17,030 (7,907) (63,839)

350,314 421 (7,907) 342,828 
2021

The balance of deferred tax is in respect 
of following temporary differences:

Effect of taxable temporary differences
Accelerated depreciation / amortization 
allowance 534,882 (30,234) - 504,648 

Effect of deductible temporary differences
Right of use assets net of lease liabilities 9,104 (22,532) - (13,428)
Specific provisions (48,087) (19,857) - (67,944)
Retirement benefit obligation (56,904) (2,740) (13,318) (72,962)

438,995 (75,363) (13,318) 350,314 

8.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities on temporary differences are measured at the rate of 33% 
(2021: 29%).
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2022 2021
9 LEASE LIABILITIES (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of the year 784,671 565,518 
Addition / modification during the year 347,377 380,841 
Interest expense 87,980 72,920 
Terminated during the period (2,460) - 
Payment during the year (269,831) (234,608)
Balance at end of the year 947,737 784,671 
Less: current portion 253,452 177,633 

694,285 607,038 

9.1 Lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Minimum 
lease 

payments
Interest 

Present value 
of minimum 

lease 
payments

2022 (Rupees in '000')
Less than one year 301,760 48,308 253,452 
Between one and five years 697,031 170,343 526,688 
More than five years 309,919 142,322 167,597 

1,308,710 360,973 947,737 

2021
Less than one year 284,989 107,356 177,633 
Between one and five years 622,811 176,481 446,330 
More than five years 293,587 132,879 160,708 

1,201,387 416,716 784,671 

9.2 The year-end balance of lease liabilities include a balance of Rs. 338.8 million (2021: Rs. 397.9 
million) in respect of building obtained under a lease arrangement from Shifa Neuro Sciences 
Institute Islamabad (Private) Limited for period of six years. Related amounts include lease 
modification of Nil (2021: Rs. 268.8 million) interest expense of Rs. 35.3 million (2021: Rs. 29.7 
million) and lease payments of Rs. 97.0 million (2021: Rs. 64.7 million).
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2022 2021 
10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note (Rupees in '000') 

Creditors 10.1 1,712,321 1,523,919 
Accrued liabilities 584,755 473,803 
Advances from customers 293,743 272,842 
Medical consultants' charges 511,357 493,854 
Security deposits 10.2 118,712 112,835 
Compensated absences 10.3 131,211 113,857 
Defined contribution plan 29,188 - 
Retention money 12,704 8,391 
Payable to Shifa International Hospitals Limited

(SIHL) Employees' Gratuity Fund (the Fund) 10.4 193,453 251,594 
3,587,444 3,251,095 

10.1 This include payable to related parties 
(unsecured) as detailed below:
Tameer -e- Millat Foundation (TMF) 11,660 13,073 
Shifa Tameer -e- Millat University (STMU) 6,458 5,041 
Shifa Development Services (Private) Limited (SDSPL) - 44,607 

18,118 62,721 

10.2 This include security deposits retained from employees of Rs. 37,095 thousand (2021: Rs. 
33,219 thousand) held in separate bank account and balances obtained from customers of 
Rs. 81,617 thousand (2021: Rs. 79,616 thousand) that are utilizable for the purpose of the 
business in accordance with agreements with customers.

2022 2021
10.3 Compensated absences Note (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of the year 113,857 108,324 
Provision made for the year 67,049 46,378 

180,906 154,702 
Payments made during the year (49,695) (40,845)
Balance at end of the year 131,211 113,857 

10.4 The amount recognized in the unconsolidated 
statement of financial position:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 10.4.1 398,711 798,687 
Fair value of plan assets 10.4.2 (205,258) (547,093)

193,453 251,594 
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2022 2021
10.4.1 Movement in the present value of defined 

benefit obligation:
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of the year 798,687 667,697 
Interest cost 47,760 53,470 
Current service cost 105,084 128,179 
Past service cost - 4,852 
Benefits paid / adjusted 3.7 (608,160) (77,096)
Benefits payable (1,725) (1,840)
Loss arising on plan settlements 3.7 37,717 - 
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit 
obligation 19,348 23,425 
Balance at end of the year 398,711 798,687 

10.4.2 Movement in the fair value of plan assets:

Balance at beginning of the year 547,093 471,476 
Expected return on plan assets 31,445 42,584 
Contributions 241,218 134,468 
Benefits paid (608,160) (77,096)
Benefits paid / adjusted (1,725) (1,840)
Remeasurement loss on plan assets (4,613) (22,499)
Balance at end of the year 205,258 547,093 

10.4.3 Charge for the year:

Current service cost 105,084 128,179 
Interest cost 47,760 53,470 
Past service cost - 4,852 
Loss arising on plan settlements 37,717 - 
Expected return on plan assets (31,445) (42,584)

159,116 143,917 

10.4.4 Remeasurements recognized in other 
comprehensive income (OCI):

Remeasurement loss on obligation 19,348 23,425 
Remeasurement loss on plan assets 4,613 22,499 
Remeasurement loss recognized in OCI 23,961 45,924 

10.4.5 Movement in liability recognized in unconsolidated 
statement of financial position:

Balance at beginning of the year 251,594 196,221 
Charge for the year 159,116 143,917 
Remeasurement recognized in OCI during the year 23,961 45,924 
Contributions during the year (241,218) (134,468)
Balance at end of the year 193,453 251,594 
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

10.4.6 Plan assets comprise of:

Term deposit receipts 133,892 388,947 
Ordinary shares of SIHL 10.4.6.1 14,056 16,858 
Cash and bank balances 68,619 143,128 
Payable to outgoing members (11,309) (1,840)

205,258 547,093 

10.4.6.1 Number of ordinary shares held by the Fund at year end were 78,461 shares (2021: 76,923 
shares) with market value of Rs. 179.14 (2021: Rs. 219.15) per share.

2022 2021 

10.4.7 Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial 
valuation:

Discount rate used for interest cost in profit or loss 11.75% 8.50%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 13.25% 10.00%
Expected rate of salary growth 

Salary increase FY 2022 N/A 7.00%
Salary increase FY 2023-2025 9.25% 9.00%
Salary increase FY 2026 onward 11.25% 9.00%

Mortality rate SLIC
2001-2005

set back 1 year 

SLIC
2001-2005

set back 1 year 

Withdrawal rates Age based Age based

Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

10.4.8 Sensitivity analysis 

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. 
The following table summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of 
the reporting period would have increased / decreased as a result of a change in respective 
assumptions by one percent.

2022 2021
Defined benefit obligation Defined benefit obligation

Effect of 1% 
increase

Effect of 1% 
decrease

Effect of 1% 
increase

Effect of 1% 
decrease

(Rupees in '000')

Discount rate 373,013 427,045 741,390 864,740 

Future salary increase 427,576 372,149 865,362 739,826 

10.4.9 The average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2022 is 8.5 years (2021: 8 years). 
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10.4.10 Risk associated with the scheme

Final salary risk
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what is assumed. 
Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other 
macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

Demographic risks

a) Mortality risk
The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect 
is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

b) Withdrawal risk 
The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. 
The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of 
the beneficiary.

c) Investment risk
The risk of the investment under performing and being not sufficient to meet the liabilities.

2022 2021 
11 MARKUP ACCRUED (Rupees in '000') 

Long term financing - secured 35,658 16,913 
12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

12.1 Contingencies

12.1.1 Claims aggregating to Rs. 3 million (2021: Rs. 3 million) are pending before Peshawar and 
Islamabad High Courts by patients / others against the Company for alleged negligence on 
part of the consultants / doctors etc. The management of the Company is contesting these 
claims and believes that the contention of the claimants will not be successful and no material 
liability is likely to arise.

12.1.2 The penalty of Rs. 20 million (2021: Rs. 20 million) imposed on June 06, 2012 by Competition 
Commission of Pakistan (CCP) to each Gulf Cooperation Council's (GCC) Approved Medical 
Centers (GAMCs) including SIHL on account of alleged non-competitive practice of territorial 
division and equal allocation of GAMCs customers. Management of the Company and other 
GAMCs are jointly contesting the matter which is pending before the August Supreme Court 
of Pakistan for decision and management of the Company firmly believe that the case will be 
decided in favor of the GAMCs including SIHL.

12.1.3 The guarantees issued by banks in favor of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL), 
Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL) and Pakistan Telecommunication 
Company Limited (PTCL) of aggregate sum of Rs. 43.35 million (2021: Rs. 43.35 million) on 
behalf of the Company in its ordinary course of business.
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12.1.4 Contingencies related to income tax and sales tax are as follows:

12.1.4.1 Tax authorities has amended the assessments for tax years 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 
2019 under section 122(5A)/124 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) and raised 
tax demands of Rs. 6.4 million, Rs. 97 million, Rs. 85.5 million, Rs. 26.1 million, Rs. 85.4 million 
and Rs. 37 million respectively. Being aggrieved the Company agitated the assessments in 
appeals before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)] who partly confirmed 
the assessments and partly allowed relief to the Company while confirmed the assessment 
for tax year 2015. The Company being aggrieved filed appeals against the appellate orders 
before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue [ATIR] on various dates from September 2018 
to November 2021 which are pending adjudications. 

12.1.4.2 Tax authorities levied tax of Rs. 109.6 million, Rs. 178.4 million, Rs. 27.4 million and Rs. 29.2 
million under section 161/205 of the Ordinance for tax year 2016, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
respectively on account of alleged non deduction of tax on payments. Being aggrieved 
the Company agitated the assessments in appeals before the CIR(A) who in respect of tax 
year 2012 has deleted the assessment, while set aside the assessment for tax year 2013, 
confirmed the assessment for tax year 2014 and appeal for tax year 2016 filed on July 27, 
2022 is a pending adjudication. The Company being aggrieved filed appeals for tax years 
2013 and 2014 before ATIR where appeal for tax year 2013 filed on November 26, 2019 is 
pending adjudication, while ATIR has set aside the assessment for tax year 2014 for denovo 
consideration.

12.1.4.3 Tax authorities amended the assessments for tax years 2012, 2013 and from 2015 to 2017 
u/s 122(5) of the Ordinance and raised aggregate tax demand of Rs. 1,350.9 million. Being 
aggrieved the Company agitated the assessments in appeals before the CIR(A) who annulled 
all the assessment orders and hence demand stand deleted. Being dissatisfied with order of 
the CIR(A), the tax department has filed appeal before ATIR on November 15, 2018, which is 
pending adjudication. 

12.1.4.4 The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has amended the Company’s assessment 
for tax year 2014 and 2015 u/s 221 of the Ordinance which has resulted an aggregate tax 
demand of Rs. 11.8 million. Being aggrieved, the Company has filed appeals before CIR 
(A) who remanded back the said assessments to ACIR. The Company as well as the tax 
department have filed cross appeals against the CIR(A) order before the ATIR in January 
2018, which is pending adjudication. 

12.1.4.5 Tax authorities amended the assessment for tax year 2014 u/s 177 of the Ordinance and raised 
a tax demand of Rs. 1,143.8 million. Being aggrieved the Company agitated the assessment 
in appeal before the CIR (A) who annulled the assessment order and hence tax demand 
stand deleted as of today. The tax department has filed an appeal before ATIR on November 
27, 2019, against the decision of CIR(A) which is pending adjudication. 
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12.1.4.6 Tax authorities raised a sales tax demand of Rs. 44.4 million, Rs. 56.2 million, Rs. 57.4 million, 
Rs. 55.9 million and Rs. 11.3 million under section 11 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 on account 
of alleged non-payment of sales tax for tax years 2016 to 2020 respectively. Being aggrieved 
the Company agitated the assessments in appeals before CIR(A). For tax year 2017 to 2020 
CIR(A) partially confirmed the judgements of DCIR while deleted the assessment for tax year 
2016. Being aggrieved Company has filed appeals before ATIR for tax years 2018 and 2020 
who in respect of tax year 2018 partially confirmed the assessment and partly allowed relief 
to the Company whereas appeal for tax year 2020 filed on December 13, 2021 is pending 
adjudication.

Management is confident that the above disallowances and levies do not hold merit and the 
related amounts have been lawfully claimed in the income and sales tax returns as per the 
applicable tax laws and these matters will ultimately be decided in favor of the Company. 
Accordingly no provision has been made in respect of above in these unconsolidated financial 
statements.

2022 2021 
12.2 Commitments (Rupees in '000') 

12.2.1 Capital expenditure contracted 135,129 45,109 

12.2.2 Letters of credit 138,470 79,116 

125Shifa International Hospitals Limited

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



13
. P

RO
PE

RT
Y, 

PL
AN

T 
AN

D 
EQ

UI
PM

EN
T

Ow
ne

d 
as

se
ts

Ri
gh

t o
f u

se
 as

se
ts

To
tal

 
Pa

rtic
ula

rs 
No

te 
Fr

ee
ho

ld 
lan

d 
Le

as
eh

old
 

lan
d 

Bu
ild

ing
 o

n 
fre

eh
old

 
lan

d 

Bu
ild

ing
 o

n 
lea

se
ho

ld 
lan

d 

Le
as

eh
old

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
Bi

om
ed

ica
l 

eq
uip

m
en

t 

Ai
r 

co
nd

itio
nin

g 
eq

uip
m

en
t 

an
d 

m
ac

hin
er

y 

El
ec

tric
al 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
eq

uip
m

en
t 

Fu
rn

itu
re

 
an

d 
fitt

ing
s 

Co
ns

tru
cti

on
 

eq
uip

m
en

t 
Co

m
pu

ter
 

ins
tal

lat
ion

s 
Ve

hic
les

 

Ca
pit

al 
wo

rk-
in-

pr
og

re
ss

 
(n

ot
e 1

3.9
) 

Of
fic

e 
pr

em
ise

s 
El

ec
tric

al 
eq

uip
m

en
t 

(R
up

ee
s i

n 
'00

0')

Co
st 

/ R
ev

alu
ed

 am
ou

nt

Ba
lan

ce
 as

 at
 Ju

ly 
01

, 2
02

0
54

0,6
00

 
91

4,7
01

 
58

,89
8 

2,6
16

,07
1 

61
,61

0 
4,1

81
,79

7 
47

5,8
52

 
69

2,4
64

 
21

6,7
11

 
2,7

88
 

53
4,8

48
 

11
9,4

46
 

32
5,9

31
 

70
3,1

46
 

57
,00

0 
11

,50
1,8

63
 

Ad
dit

ion
s

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
59

,82
0 

28
,86

7 
24

,96
3 

11
,54

8 
- 

30
,46

9 
8,7

01
 

35
3,2

73
 

39
2,4

22
 

- 
91

0,0
63

 
Re

va
lua

tio
n

12
,81

5 
41

,00
6 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

53
,82

1 
Di

sp
os

als
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(4
,40

0)
- 

- 
(4

19
)

(9
,74

1)
- 

- 
- 

(1
4,5

60
)

W
rite

 of
fs

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(3

,53
5)

(7
)

(3
,51

1)
(1

82
)

- 
(2

,77
3)

- 
- 

- 
- 

(1
0,0

08
)

Tra
ns

fer
s

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
25

5,7
19

 
- 

11
,53

4 
21

2 
- 

54
7 

2,0
00

 
(2

70
,01

2)
- 

- 
- 

Tra
ns

fer
s t

o S
DS

PL
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(5

,00
0)

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(5
,00

0)
Re

cla
ss

ifie
d 

as
 he

ld 
for

 sa
le

(2
92

,07
2)

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(2
92

,07
2)

Ba
lan

ce
 as

 at
 Ju

ne
 30

, 2
02

1
26

1,3
43

 
95

5,7
07

 
58

,89
8 

2,6
16

,07
1 

61
,61

0 
4,4

93
,80

1 
50

4,7
12

 
72

1,0
50

 
22

3,2
89

 
2,7

88
 

56
2,6

72
 

12
0,4

06
 

40
9,1

92
 

1,0
95

,56
8 

57
,00

0 
12

,14
4,1

07
 

Ba
lan

ce
 as

 at
 Ju

ly 
01

, 2
02

1
26

1,3
43

 
95

5,7
07

 
58

,89
8 

2,6
16

,07
1 

61
,61

0 
4,4

93
,80

1 
50

4,7
12

 
72

1,0
50

 
22

3,2
89

 
2,7

88
 

56
2,6

72
 

12
0,4

06
 

40
9,1

92
 

1,0
95

,56
8 

57
,00

0 
12

,14
4,1

07
 

Ad
dit

ion
s

- 
- 

- 
- 

22
,58

6 
11

8,4
18

 
7,4

38
 

44
,88

3 
8,7

58
 

22
3 

60
,64

6 
23

,19
4 

38
6,7

57
 

36
8,1

87
 

- 
1,0

41
,09

0 
Re

va
lua

tio
n

55
,55

7 
54

,05
4 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
10

9,6
11

 
Re

cla
ss

ifie
d 

fro
m

 h
eld

 fo
r s

ale
13

.7
10

4,3
78

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
10

4,3
78

 
Di

sp
os

als
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(1
2,8

01
)

- 
- 

- 
- 

(5
32

)
(2

,02
9)

- 
- 

- 
(1

5,3
62

)
Te

rm
ina

tio
n 

of
 le

as
e /

 tr
an

sfe
r

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(1

1,8
42

)
- 

(1
1,8

42
)

W
rite

 o
ffs

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(1

3,4
51

)
(4

,03
2)

(1
,21

3)
(1

32
)

- 
(3

,42
3)

- 
- 

- 
- 

(2
2,2

51
)

Tra
ns

fer
s

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
35

,20
3 

- 
4,0

39
 

1,0
67

 
- 

12
,20

5 
- 

(5
2,5

14
)

- 
- 

- 
Ba

lan
ce

 as
 at

 Ju
ne

 30
, 2

02
2

42
1,2

78
 

1,0
09

,76
1 

58
,89

8 
2,6

16
,07

1 
84

,19
6 

4,6
21

,17
0 

50
8,1

18
 

76
8,7

59
 

23
2,9

82
 

3,0
11

 
63

1,5
68

 
14

1,5
71

 
74

3,4
35

 
1,4

51
,91

3 
57

,00
0 

13
,34

9,7
31

 

De
pr

ec
iat

ion
 / 

am
or

tiz
ati

on

Ba
lan

ce
 as

 at
 Ju

ly 
01

, 2
02

0
- 

89
,00

5 
98

2 
71

1,4
99

 
27

,97
2 

2,1
79

,66
5 

25
3,3

75
 

46
6,2

25
 

12
5,0

78
 

1,6
39

 
37

5,3
82

 
94

,50
5 

- 
17

3,5
16

 
11

,08
4 

4,5
09

,92
7 

Ch
ar

ge
 fo

r t
he

 ye
ar

- 
12

,01
8 

2,9
45

 
75

,85
4 

12
,32

2 
33

0,3
31

 
49

,92
0 

58
,43

4 
17

,45
2 

25
0 

67
,75

8 
8,5

89
 

- 
21

0,6
00

 
19

,00
0 

86
5,4

73
 

On
 d

isp
os

als
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(4
,40

0)
- 

- 
(4

19
)

(9
,28

6)
- 

- 
- 

(1
4,1

05
)

On
 w

rite
 of

fs
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(2
,89

2)
(3

)
(3

,21
1)

(1
58

)
- 

(2
,76

7)
- 

- 
- 

- 
(9

,03
1)

Ba
lan

ce
 as

 at
 Ju

ne
 30

, 2
02

1
- 

10
1,0

23
 

3,9
27

 
78

7,3
53

 
40

,29
4 

2,5
07

,10
4 

30
3,2

92
 

51
7,0

48
 

14
2,3

72
 

1,8
89

 
43

9,9
54

 
93

,80
8 

- 
38

4,1
16

 
30

,08
4 

5,3
52

,26
4 

Ba
lan

ce
 as

 at
 Ju

ly 
01

, 2
02

1
- 

10
1,0

23
 

3,9
27

 
78

7,3
53

 
40

,29
4 

2,5
07

,10
4 

30
3,2

92
 

51
7,0

48
 

14
2,3

72
 

1,8
89

 
43

9,9
54

 
93

,80
8 

- 
38

4,1
16

 
30

,08
4 

5,3
52

,26
4 

Ch
ar

ge
 fo

r t
he

 ye
ar

- 
12

,77
0 

2,9
44

 
74

,40
1 

12
,51

1 
33

5,1
51

 
52

,08
3 

57
,97

4 
17

,03
3 

27
2 

68
,48

9 
11

,17
8 

- 
23

8,6
42

 
19

,00
0 

90
2,4

48
 

On
 d

isp
os

als
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(1
1,8

66
)

- 
- 

- 
- 

(3
16

)
(1

,52
3)

- 
- 

- 
(1

3,7
05

)
Te

rm
ina

tio
n 

of
 le

as
e

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(5

,43
1)

- 
(5

,43
1)

On
 w

rite
 o

ffs
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(1
1,7

65
)

(3
,59

6)
(1

,16
9)

(1
01

)
- 

(3
,38

6)
- 

- 
- 

- 
(2

0,0
17

)
Ba

lan
ce

 as
 at

 Ju
ne

 30
, 2

02
2

- 
11

3,7
93

 
6,8

71
 

86
1,7

54
 

52
,80

5 
2,8

18
,62

4 
35

1,7
79

 
57

3,8
53

 
15

9,3
04

 
2,1

61
 

50
4,7

41
 

10
3,4

63
 

- 
61

7,3
27

 
49

,08
4 

6,2
15

,55
9 

Ca
rry

ing
 va

lue
 as

 at
 Ju

ne
 30

, 2
02

1
26

1,3
43

 
85

4,6
84

 
54

,97
1 

1,8
28

,71
8 

21
,31

6 
1,9

86
,69

7 
20

1,4
20

 
20

4,0
02

 
80

,91
7 

89
9 

12
2,7

18
 

26
,59

8 
40

9,1
92

 
71

1,4
52

 
26

,91
6 

6,7
91

,84
3 

Ba
lan

ce
 as

 at
 Ju

ne
 30

, 2
02

2
42

1,2
78

 
89

5,9
68

 
52

,02
7 

1,7
54

,31
7 

31
,39

1 
1,8

02
,54

6 
15

6,3
39

 
19

4,9
06

 
73

,67
8 

85
0 

12
6,8

27
 

38
,10

8 
74

3,4
35

 
83

4,5
86

 
7,9

16
 

7,1
34

,17
2 

An
nu

al 
ra

te 
of 

de
pr

ec
iat

ion
 %

- 
1.3

4-
3.0

3 
2.5

-1
0 

2.5
-1

0 
20

 
10

 
10

-1
5 

10
-1

5 
10

 
10

-2
0 

25
 

20
 

- 
- 

33
.3 

126 ANNUAL  
REPORT 2022

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



13.1 Freehold and leasehold lands were revalued on June 30, 2022 by an independent professional 
valuer using the fair market value basis which resulted increases in surplus by Rs. 55,557 
thousand and Rs. 54,054 thousand respectively. Total unamortized surplus against the 
revaluation of freehold and leasehold lands as at June 30, 2022 stood at Rs. 1,057,830 
thousand (2021: Rs. 948,219 thousand).

13.2 Had there been no revaluation the carrying value would have been as under:

Cost 
Accumulated 
amortization 

Carrying 
value 

Freehold land (Rupees in '000') 

June 30, 2022 337,690 - 337,690 
June 30, 2021 234,928 - 234,928 

Leasehold land 

June 30, 2022 197,646 8,067 189,579 
June 30, 2021 197,646 5,198 192,448 

13.3 Particulars of Company's freehold and leasehold lands are as follow:

2022 2021

Location Nature Area (Kanal)
Shifa Cooperative Housing Society, 
Islamabad Expressway

Freehold land 2 2 

Motorway, Mouza Noon, Islamabad Freehold land 100 100 
Faisalabad Motorway Freehold land 48.2 - 
H-8/4, Islamabad * Leasehold land 87.8 87.8 

*The covered area include multi-storey buildings.

13.4 Property, plant and equipment include items with aggregate cost of Rs. 2,370,718 thousand 
(2021: Rs. 2,055,773 thousand) representing fully depreciated assets that are still in use of 
the Company.

13.5 Property, plant and equipment of the Company are encumbered under an aggregate charge 
of Rs. 7,665.6 million (2021: Rs. 6,810.6 million) in favor of lenders under various financing 
arrangements as disclosed in note 7.

13.6 The forced sale values (FSV) of the revalued leasehold and freehold lands have been assessed 
at Rs. 716,774 thousand (2021: Rs. 683,747 thousand) and Rs. 337,023 thousand (2021: Rs. 
209,074 thousand) respectively.

13.7 Freehold land measuring 48.2 kanals located at Motorway Faisalabad (Note 25) re-classified 
to property, plant and equipment as the sale is not probable to be completed within next 
twelve months.

13.8 Detail of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year, having carrying value of 
more than Rs. 500 thousand:
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Asset particulars /
Location

Note
Cost / 

revalued 
amount

Carrying 
value

Sale 
proceeds

Gain on 
disposal

Purchaser
Mode of 
Disposal

( Rupees in '000' )

Islamabad Motorway Land 25.2 109,239 109,239 116,520 7,281 Various third 
parties through 
Softsys (Private) 

Limited

Negotiation

Shifa Cooperative Housing Society 25.2 63,489 63,489 131,200 67,711 Various third parties Negotiation 
172,728 172,728 247,720 74,992 

Other assets having carrying 
value less than Rs. 500 thousand

13
15,362 1,657 3,486 1,829 

2022 188,090 174,385 251,206 76,821 
2021 203,554 189,449 231,424 41,975 

2022 2021 
13.9 Capital work-in-progress Note (Rupees in '000') 

Construction work-in-progress 13.9.1 305,602 135,776 
Stores held for capital expenditure 13.9.2 976 976 
Installation of equipment in progress 436,857 272,440 

743,435 409,192 

13.9.1 This include Rs. 132,788 thousand (2021: Rs. 127,433 thousand) paid to Shifa Development 
Services (Private) Limited on account of design and building works under two separate 
agreements with the Company. 

2022 2021 
13.9.2 Stores held for capital expenditure Note (Rupees in '000') 

Stores held for capital expenditure 4,524 4,524 
Less: provision for slow moving items 13.9.2.1 3,548 3,548 

976 976 

13.9.2.1 Balance at beginning of the year 3,548 2,651 
Charged during the year - 897 
Balance at end of the year 3,548 3,548 
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2022 2021 
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Softwares in use 14.1 13,990 31,343 
Software under development 14.2 39,375 - 

53,365 31,343 

14.1 Softwares is use
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year 105,185 105,185 
Addition during the year 4,215 - 
Balance at end of the year 109,400 105,185 
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of the year 73,842 47,771 
Charged during the year 21,568 26,071 
Balance at end of the year 95,410 73,842 
Net book value 13,990 31,343 

14.2 Software under development
Balance at beginning of the year - - 
Addition during the year 14.2.1 39,375 - 
Balance at end of the year 39,375 - 

14.2.1 This represents the amount paid to Shifa Care (Private) Limited for provision of Hospital 
Supply Chain Management system (HSCM). Out of total scope, three sub modules of HSCM 
have been developed and the integration of the aforesaid modules with existing Hospital 
Management Information System (HMIS) is in progress and expected to be functional during 
the next financial year. 

14.3 Amortization of softwares in use has been recorded at rate of 25 % (2021: 25%) per annum.

14.4 Intangible assets include items with aggregate cost of Rs. 39,132 thousand (2021: Rs. 10,810 
thousand) representing fully amortized asset that are still in use of the Company.

2022 2021 
15 LONG TERM INVESTMENT - AT COST Note (Rupees in '000') 

In subsidiary companies (unquoted):
Shifa Development Services (Private) Limited (SDSPL) 15.2 9,966 9,966 
Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute Islamabad (Private) Limited 
(SNS Islamabad) 15.3 1,697,521 1,697,521 
Shifa National Hospital Faisalabad (Private) Limited 
(SNH Faisalabad) 15.4 971,562 455,502 
Shifa Medical Centre Islamabad (Private) Limited (SMC 
Islamabad) 15.5 1,171,288 947,488 
Shifa International DWC-LLC (SIDL) 15.6 23,280 23,280 

In associated company (unquoted):
Shifa Care (Private) Limited (SCPL) 15.7 45,001 45,001 

3,918,618 3,178,758 

129Shifa International Hospitals Limited

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



15.1 Per share breakup values of these investments are given below:

2022 2021
Rupees / Share 

Shifa Development Services (Private) Limited (SDSPL) 35.37 20.93 
Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute Islamabad (Private) Limited (SNS 
Islamabad) 10.23 10.15 
Shifa National Hospital Faisalabad (Private) Limited (SNH 
Faisalabad) 11.06 12.03 
Shifa Medical Centre Islamabad (Private) Limited (SMC 
Islamabad) 10.39 10.05 
Shifa International DWC-LLC (SIDL) 5.35 5.19 
Shifa Care (Private) Limited (SCPL) 7.30 7.99 

15.2 This represents investment in 1,650,000 (2021: 1,650,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 
10 each of SDSPL. The above investment in ordinary shares represents 55% (2021: 55%) 
shareholding in SDSPL held by the Company.

15.3 This represents investment in 169,752,100 (2021: 169,752,100) fully paid ordinary shares of 
Rs. 10 each of SNS Islamabad. The above investment in ordinary shares represents 100% 
(2021: 100%) shareholding in SNS Islamabad held by the Company.

15.4 This represent investment in 97,156,200 (2021: 45,550,200) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 
10 each of SNH Faisalabad. The above investment in ordinary shares represents 60% (2021: 
60%) shareholding in SNH Faisalabad held by the Company.

15.5 This represents investment in 117,128,812 (2021: 94,748,837) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
of SMC Islamabad. The above investment in ordinary shares represents 56% (2021: 56%) 
shareholding in SMC Islamabad held by the Company.

15.6 This represents investment in 555,000 (2021: 555,000) ordinary shares of AED 1 each of SIDL 
having a registered office located at Business Center Logistics City, Dubai Aviation City, P.O 
Box 390667, United Arab Emirates. The above investment in ordinary shares represents 100% 
(2021: 100%) shareholding held by the Company.

15.7 This represents investment in 4,500,050 (2021: 4,500,050) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 
10 each of SCPL. The above investment in ordinary shares represents 50% (2021: 50%) 
shareholding in SCPL held by the Company. Summary of results of SCPL are as under:
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2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

Summarized statement of financial position
Current assets 52,787 24,767 
Non–current assets 58,322 49,641 
Current liabilities (45,385) (2,485)
Net assets 65,724 71,923 
Reconciliation to carrying amounts:
Opening net assets 71,923 44,944 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (6,199) (3,021)
Equity - 30,000 
Closing net assets 65,724 71,923 
Company’s share in carrying value of net assets 32,862 35,962 
Company's share in total comprehensive loss (3,099) (1,511)
Summarized statement of profit or loss
Revenue for the year – gross - - 
Loss for the year (6,199) (3,021)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (6,199) (3,021)

15.7.1 The above information is based on audited financial statements of SCPL.

2022 2021
16 LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Ijarah key money deposits - 15,906 
Less: current portion of Ijarah key money deposits - 15,906 

- - 
Security deposits 16.1 85,324 96,260 

85,324 96,260 

16.1 This represents security deposits given to various institutions / persons and are refundable on 
termination of relevant services / arrangements. 
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2022 2021
17 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Stores 209,391 153,955 
Spare parts 26,654 33,893 
Loose tools 699 1,332 

236,744 189,180 
Less: provision for slow moving items 17.1 26,555 23,868 

210,189 165,312 

17.1 Balance at beginning of the year 23,868 18,604 
Charged during the year 2,687 5,264 
Balance at end of the year 26,555 23,868 

18 STOCK-IN-TRADE

This represents medicines being carried at moving average cost. 

2022 2021
19 TRADE DEBTS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Related party - Shifa Foundation 19.1 9,736 17,139 
Others 1,124,491 970,694 

1,134,227 987,833 
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) 39.1.3 169,458 153,011 

964,769 834,822 

19.1 Maximum amount due from Shifa Foundation at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
20,694 thousand (2021: Rs. 21,265 thousand).
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2022 2021
20 LOANS AND ADVANCES Note (Rupees in '000') 

Considered good - secured
Executives 20.1 4,199 3,291 
Other employees 14,722 14,522 

18,921 17,813 
Consultants - unsecured 3,661 2,825 
Suppliers / contractors - unsecured 20.2 213,232 317,021 

235,814 337,659 

20.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount of 
advances given to executives:

Balance at beginning of the year 3,291 2,726 
Disbursements during the year 19,783 19,341 

23,074 22,067 
Less: repayments during the year 18,875 18,776 

Balance at end of the year 4,199 3,291 

20.1.1 The above advances were given in accordance with the Company's service rules. The 
maximum amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 4,716 
thousand (2021: Rs. 5,743 thousand).

20.2 This include Rs. 52,376 thousand (2021: Nil) advance given to SDSPL in respect of civil works 
activities. While the referred amount also represents maximum balance at any month during 
the year.

2022 2021
21 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 

RECEIVABLES
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Current portion of Ijarah key money deposits - 15,906 
Short term prepayments 28,232 26,501 
Security deposit 21.1 20,278 - 
Other receivables 21.2 305,345 111,432 

353,855 153,839 
Less: allowance for expected credit losses 
  against other receivables 21.3 57,812 57,409 

296,043 96,430 

21.1 This represents security deposit given to SNS Islamabad in accordance with the terms of 
lease arrangement of the property. During the year, the amount of security has been adjusted 
by Rs. 14.174 million (2021: Nil) on account of two month rent (net of tax) as per addendum 
to lease agreement.
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21.2 This includes Rs. 35,416 thousand (2021: Rs. 24,335 thousand) and Rs. 34,896 thousand 
(2021: Rs. 26,656 thousand) due from SIHT (Private) Limited and Shifa International DWC LLC 
(SIDL). Maximum amount due from SIHT (Private) Limited at the end of any month during the 
year was Rs. 72,695 thousand (2021: Rs. 70,322 thousand) while the referred amount of SIDL 
also represent the maximum balance.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

21.3 Allowance for expected credit losses against 
other receivables (unrelated parties)
Balance at beginning of the year 57,409 17,627 
Charge during the year 21.3.1 40,185 39,782 
Less: written off during the year 21.3.2 39,782 - 
Balance at end of the year 57,812 57,409 

21.3.1 This represents an amount whose recovery is considered doubtful. However, the Company is 
actively pursuing for its recovery.

21.3.2 The balance due from Shifa Pan African Hospitals Limited – Tanzania (the Project) is written 
off as the Project has been abandoned due to multiple factors including substantial increase 
in project costs and the death of two out of three partners of Fatima Properties the sponsor 
of the Project based in Tanzania.

2022 2021
22 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Investment in Term Deposit Receipt - at 
amortized cost 22.1 3,000 3,000 
Investment in Mutual Fund - at fair value 
through profit or loss 22.2 510,235 619,464 

513,235 622,464 

22.1 This represents term deposit receipt (TDR) having face value of Rs. 3 million with three months 
maturity. Profit payable on monthly basis at the rate ranging from 5.50% to 12.25% per annum 
(2021: 5% to 6.60% per annum).

22.2 This represents investment in 5,059,495 (2021: 6,157,748) units of UBL Al-Ameen Islamic 
Cash Fund. Fair value of the investment was determined using quoted repurchase price at 
year end.
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2022 2021
23 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE 

GOVERNMENT (NET OF PROVISION)
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at the beginning of the year 471,366 478,225 
Income tax paid / deducted at source during 
the year 405,208 332,473 

876,574 810,698 
Provision for taxation for the year 30 (428,532) (339,332)
Balance at the end of the year 448,042 471,366 

24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES  

Cash at banks in:
Current accounts

Local currency 348,000 320,672 
Foreign currency 1,374,994 1,663,510 

1,722,994 1,984,182 
Saving accounts:

Local currency 589,166 817,221 
Foreign currency 204 157 

24.1 589,370 817,378 

24.2 2,312,364 2,801,560 
Cash in hand 5,068 8,137 

2,317,432 2,809,697 

24.1 Balances with saving accounts earned profit / mark-up at weighted average rate of 8.20% per 
annum (2021: 6.30% per annum).

24.2 Balances with banks includes Rs. 118,712 thousand (2021: Rs. 112,835 thousand) in respect 
of security deposits (Note 10.2).

2022 2021
25 NON - CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE Note (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of the year 598,057 494,978 
Addition during the year 25.1 - 292,072 
Disposed off during the year 25.2 (172,726) (188,993)
Reclassified to PPE 13.7 (104,378) - 
Balance at end of the year 25.3 320,953 598,057 

25.1 This represents the carrying value of land measuring 25 kanals located at Shifa Cooperative 
Housing Society, Islamabad Expressway.

25.2 During the year the Company has sold lands measuring 48.5 kanals (2021: 72.5 kanals) 
located at Islamabad Motorway and six plots (2021: two plots) located at Shifa Cooperative 
Housing Society, Islamabad Expressway. 
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25.3 Freehold lands held for sale at year end are 52.6 Kanal (2021: 101.1 Kanal) and 17 kanal 
(2021: 23 kanal) of Motorway, Mouza Noon, Islamabad and Shifa Cooperative Housing 
society, Islamabad respectively.

2022 2021
26 NET REVENUE Note (Rupees in '000') 

Inpatients 9,836,737 8,663,192 
Outpatients 5,492,731 4,865,579 
Other services 26.1 1,034,222 843,003 

16,363,690 14,371,774 
Less: discount 128,070 128,866 
Less: sales tax 38,069 23,190 
Net revenue 16,197,551 14,219,718 

26.1 This represents revenue from external pharmacy outlets, cafeteria sales, operating leases to 
related parties / other parties and corporate services to subsidiaries / associate respectively.

26.2 The net revenue is excluding physician share of Rs. 1,353,680 thousand (2021: Rs. 1,302,168 
thousand).

2022 2021
27 OTHER INCOME Note (Rupees in '000') 

Income from financial assets:
Profit on bank deposits 16,564 8,482 
Dividend income from mutual fund -  
investments at fair value through profit or loss 54,160 22,225 
Un-realized gain on investments at fair 
value through profit or loss 1,735 573 
Dividend income from subsidiary 27.1 25,463 - 

97,922 31,280 
Income from other than financial assets:
Gain on disposal of tangible assets 27.2 69,269 41,975 
Exchange gain on foreign currency translation 416,217 - 
Liabilities written back - 478 
Sale of scrap - net of sales tax 18,772 9,658 
Miscellaneous 35,249 24,088 

539,507 76,199 
637,429 107,479 

27.1 This represents the dividend at the rate of Re. 0.15 per share received from SNS Islamabad. 

27.2 Gain on disposal of tangible assets is excluding commission charges on sale of land of Rs. 
7.6 million.
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2022 2021
28 OPERATING COSTS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Salaries, wages and benefits 28.1 5,827,983 4,803,017 
Utilities 835,050 542,751 
Supplies consumed 1,727,652 1,623,965 
Medicines consumed 4,184,847 3,815,914 
Communication 48,048 40,619 
Travelling and conveyance 21,672 11,638 
Printing and stationery 133,535 104,623 
Repairs and maintenance 642,156 589,211 
Auditors' remuneration 28.2 5,256 3,861 
Legal and professional 15,453 25,623 
Rent 12,266 12,773 
Rates and taxes 14,254 17,706 
Advertising and sales promotion 66,022 48,317 
Fee, subscription and membership 81,650 58,796 
Vehicle and equipment rentals 28.3 12,447 8,874 
Cleaning and washing 137,366 120,628 
Insurance 13,645 12,600 
Property, plant and equipment written off 28.4 2,234 977 
Provision for slow moving stores 2,687 6,161 
Depreciation / amortization on tangible assets 13 902,448 865,473 
Amortization on intangible assets 14 21,568 26,071 
Exchange loss on foreign currency translation - 116,336 
Donation 28.5 25,000 - 
Miscellaneous 58,738 43,466 

14,791,977 12,899,400 

28.1 This includes charge for employee gratuity of Rs. 159,116 thousand (2021: Rs. 143,917 
thousand), defined contribution plan (pension) of Rs. 53,655 thousand (2021: Nil), 
compensated absences of Rs. 67,049 thousand (2021: Rs. 46,378 thousand) and bonus of 
Rs. 125,814 thousand (2021: Rs. 190,931 thousand).

2022 2021
28.2 Auditors' remuneration  (Rupees in '000') 

Annual audit fee 1,973 1,973 
Half yearly review fee 1,048 1,048 
Statutory certifications 2,235 840 

5,256 3,861 

28.2.1 The above fee is inclusive of sales tax amounting to Rs. 746 thousand (2021: Rs. 526 thousand).
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28.3 This include ujrah payments under an Ijarah. As required under Islamic Financial Accounting 
Standard (IFAS 2) "Ijarah" (notified through SRO 431 (I)/2007 by Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan) ujrah payments under an Ijarah are recognized as an expense in 
the statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over the Ijarah term.

The amounts of future ujrah payments and the periods in which these will be due are as follows:

2022 2021
 (Rupees in '000') 

Within one year - 12,447 
After one year but not more than five years - - 
Total ujrah payments - 12,447 

28.4 This represents assets written off that were determined to be irreparable after carrying out 
detailed physical verification exercised by the management.

28.5 Donation

This represents donation given to Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University (STMU) which is related 
party of the Company due to common directorship as detailed below: 

Name of common director Interest in donee Address of the donee

Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi Director H-8/4, Islamabad
Dr. Habib ur Rahman Director H-8/4, Islamabad
Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad Director H-8/4, Islamabad

The spouses of any directors of the Company have no interest in the donee.

2022 2021
29 FINANCE COSTS (Rupees in '000') 

Markup on long term loans - secured 252,714 255,567 
Interest on lease liabilities 87,980 72,920 
Credit card payment collection and bank charges 41,738 31,888 

382,432 360,375 
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2022 2021
30 PROVISION FOR TAXATION Note (Rupees in '000') 

Current
- for the year 433,334 339,332 
- prior year (4,802) - 

23 428,532 339,332 
Deferred 421 (75,363)

428,953 263,969 

30.1 Reconciliation of tax charge for the year

Profit before taxation 1,591,502 963,893 

Provision for taxation 428,953 263,969 
(Percentage) 

Effective tax rate 26.95% 27.39%

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Applicable tax rate 29.00% 29.00%
Add: super tax 4.00% 0.00%
Add: net tax effects of amounts that are 
inadmissible for tax purposes/others 27.73% 37.83%
Less: net tax effect of amounts that are 
deductible for tax purposes/others 33.77% 39.44%

Average effective tax rate charged on income 26.95% 27.39%

2022 2021
31 EARNINGS PER SHARE -  

BASIC AND DILUTED
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Profit after taxation for the year 1,162,549 699,924 
(Numbers in '000')

(Restated)
Weighted average number of ordinary 
shares in issue during the year 31.1 63,214 63,214 

(Rupees)
(Restated)

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 18.39 11.07 

31.1 Weighted average number of ordinary shares has been calculated on the basis of time factor 
of shares outstanding during the year.

31.2 During the year, the Company has issued 2% bonus shares (i.e. one for every fifty ordinary 
shares held) which has resulted in restatement of basic and diluted earnings per share.
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32 CAPACITY UTILIZATION

The actual inpatient available bed days, occupied bed days and room occupancy ratio of Shifa 
International Hospitals Limited (SIHL) are given below:

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Available bed days Occupied bed days Occupancy Ratio

SIHL H-8/4 Islamabad 184,269 184,023 108,277 102,702 58.76% 55.81%
SIHL Faisalabad 22,867 28,105 6,046 6,498 26.44% 23.12%

32.1 Reported utilisation is a result of pattern of patient turnover under different specialties and 
miscellaneous other factors.

2022 2021
33 UNAVAILED CREDIT FACILITIES (Rupees in '000') 

Unavailed credit facilities at year end other than those 
disclosed in note 7 of financial statements are as under:

Letter of credit 60,348 100,000 
Ijarah financing 51,709 51,709 
Running Musharkah 500,000 500,000 
Letter of guarantee 23,666 23,666 

635,723 675,375 
34 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Company had 5,154 employees (2021: 5,047) at the year end and average number of 
employees during the year were 5,174 (2021: 4,915).

35 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The related parties comprise of subsidiaries, associates, directors, major shareholders, key 
management personnel, SIHL Employees’ Gratuity Fund and the entities over which directors are able 
to exercise influence. 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The Company considers its chief executive 
officer, chief financial officer, company secretary, directors and departmental heads to be its key 
management personnel. There are no transactions with key management personnel other than their 
terms of employment / entitlement.

The amounts due from and due to these undertakings are shown under trade debts, loans and 
advances, other receivables and trade and other payables. Other transactions with the related parties 
are given below:
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Shifa Foundation:
Opening balance - receivable  17,139  17,875 
Revenue from services earned by the Company 35.1  16,964  12,607 
Revenue from rent earned by the Company  819  600 
Expenses paid and reimbursed to the Company  48  23 
Other services provided to the Company  -    (3,424)
Revenue from COVID -19 clinical trial services  -    16,498 
Receipts / adjustments  (25,234)  (27,040)
Closing balance - receivable  9,736  17,139 

Tameer-e-Millat Foundation:
Opening balance - payable  (13,073)  (11,978)
Supplies provided to the Company 35.2  (88,543)  (79,335)
Other services provided to the Company 35.3  (35,278)  (22,320)
Rental services received / earned by the Company  (5,842)  (4,631)
Payments / adjustments  131,076  105,191 
Closing balance - payable  (11,660)  (13,073)

Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University:
Opening balance - payable  (5,041)  (27,468)
Revenue from services earned by the Company 35.1  18,543  11,294 
Revenue from rent earned by the Company  3,197  2,907 
Other services provided to the Company 35.3  (61,817)  (53,780)
Expenses paid by and reimbursed to the Company  2,905  2,968 
Donation paid by the Company  (25,000)  -   
Payments / adjustments  60,755  59,038 
Closing balance - payable  (6,458)  (5,041)

SIHT (Private) Limited
Opening balance - receivable  24,335  25,783 
Revenue from services earned by the Company 35.1  325,112  351,638 
Expenses paid by and reimbursed to the Company  5,905  4,850 
Other services provided to the Company 35.3  (23,206)  (22,414)
Receipts / adjustments  (296,730)  (335,522)
Closing balance - receivable  35,416  24,335 
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Shifa Development Services (Private) Limited
Opening balance - (payable) / receivable  (44,607)  14,285 
Revenue from rent earned by the Company  1,548  820 
Payment made by the Company  4,215  -   
Expenses paid by and reimbursed to the Company  -    190 
Other services provided to the Company 35.3  (57,880)  (84,749)
Furniture and improvements sold by the Company  -    5,000 
payments / adjustments  149,100  19,847 
Closing balance - receivable / (payable)  52,376  (44,607)

Shifa Cooperative Housing Society:
Opening balance  -    -   
Plot maintenance charges paid by the Company  5,573  1,801 
Payments  (5,573)  (1,801)
Closing balance  -    -   

Shifa Medical Center Islamabad (Private) Limited
Opening balance  -    -   
Investment made by the Company in 22,379,975 
(2021: Nil) ordinary shares  (223,800)  -   
Other services provided by the Company 35.3  10,229  10,229 
Expenses paid by and reimbursed to the Company  414  -   
Payments / (receipts) - net  213,157  (10,229)
Closing balance  -    -   

Shifa National Hospital Faisalabad (Private) Limited
Opening balance  -    -   
Investment made by the Company in 51,606,000 
(2021: 23,023,428) ordinary shares  (516,060)  (230,234)
Other services provided by the Company 35.3  10,229  10,229 
Payments - net  505,831  220,005 
Closing balance  -    -   
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute Islamabad (Private) 
Limited
Opening balance - receivable  34,452  34,452 
Rent paid by the Company  (97,018)  (64,719)
Dividend income received by the Company  25,463  -   
Other services provided by the Company 35.3  -    4,795 
Payments / adjustments  57,381  59,924 
Closing balance - receivable  20,278  34,452 

Shifa International DWC-LLC
Opening balance - receivable  26,656  10,809 
Receipts / adjustments - net  24,576  26,204 
Patient referral services provided to the Company  (16,336)  (10,357)
Closing balance - receivable  34,896  26,656 

Shifa Care (Private) Limited
Opening balance  -    -   
Investment made by the Company in Nil (2021: 
1,500,000) ordinary shares  -    (15,000)
Other services provided by the Company 35.3  2,343  836 
Software development services provided  
to the Company  (39,375)  -   
Expenses paid by and reimbursed to the Company  -    50 
Payments - net  37,032  14,114 
Closing balance  -    -   

SIHL Employees' Gratuity Fund
Opening balance - payable  (251,594)  (196,221)
Provision / OCI charge  (183,077)  (189,841)
Payments made by the Company during the year 35.4  241,218  134,468 
Closing balance - payable  (193,453)  (251,594)

Remuneration including benefits and perquisites of 
key management personnel 35.5  368,682  333,771 

35.1 Revenue earned from related parties includes medical, surgical, clinical and lab services 
rendered to referred inpatients and outpatients, sale of medicines and provision of cafeteria 
services. These transactions are executed on arm's length between the parties.
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35.2 The supplies mainly includes uniforms and dairy products etc.  These transactions are based 
on arm's length between the parties.

35.3 This represents services of nursing education/training, employees' children education, media 
and consultancy / shared services. These transactions are based on arm's length between 
the parties.

35.4 Transactions with the Fund are carried out based on the terms of employment of employees 
and according to actuarial advice.

35.5 This includes employee retirement benefits (gratuity) amounting to Rs. 3,866 thousand (2021: 
Rs. 20,342 thousand).

35.6 Basis of relationship with related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions 
or had agreements and / or arrangements in place during the financial year are as follow:

Sr # Name of related party (RP) Basis of relationship

Percentage of
Company's 

shareholding 
in RP

RP's 
shareholding in 
the Company

1 Shifa Foundation Common Directorship N/A* 0.92%

2 Tameer-e-Millat Foundation Common Directorship N/A 12.57%

3 SIHL Employees' Gratuity Fund Benefit Plan N/A 0.12%

4 Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University Common Directorship N/A 0.02%

5 Shifa Development Services 
(Private) Limited

Subsidiary & Common 
Directorship

55% Nil

6 Shifa Cooperative Housing 
Society

Common Directorship N/A N/A

7 Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute 
Islamabad (Private) Limited

Subsidiary & Common 
Directorship

100% Nil

8 Shifa National Hospital 
Faisalabad (Private) Limited

Subsidiary & Common 
Directorship

60% Nil

9 Shifa Medical Centre Islamabad 
(Private) Limited

Subsidiary & Common 
Directorship

56% Nil

10 Shifa International DWC LLC Subsidiary & Common 
Directorship

100% Nil

11 Shifa CARE (Private) Limited Associate & Common 
Directorship

50% Nil

12 SIHT (Private) Limited Common Directorship N/A N/A

13 International Finance 
Corporation (IFC)

Associate Nil 12%

*N/A stands for not applicable.
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

Risk management framework
The Board meets frequently throughout the year for developing and monitoring the Company’s 
risk management policies. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify 
and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to 
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, 
through its standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s 
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

39.1 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter-
parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Company does not have significant 
exposure to any individual counter-party. To reduce exposure to credit risk the Company has 
developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The 
management also regularly monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes 
allowance for ECLs for those credit exposure. Furthermore, the Company has credit control 
in place to ensure that services are rendered to customers with an appropriate credit history.

39.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

Deposits 85,324 96,260 
Trade debts 964,769 834,822 
Other receivables 247,533 54,023 
Markup accrued 2,129 677 
Other financial assets 513,235 622,464 
Bank balances 2,312,364 2,801,560 

4,125,354 4,409,806 

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating and short term investing activities. 
The Company's credit risk exposures are categorized under the following headings:
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39.1.2 Counterparties

The Company conducts transactions with the following major types of counterparties:

Trade debts 
Trade debts are essentially due from government companies / institutions, private companies 
(panel companies) and individuals to whom the Company is providing medical services. 
Normally the services are rendered to the panel companies on agreed rates and limits from 
whom the Company does not expect any inability to meet their obligations. The Company 
manages credit risk in trade debts by limiting significant exposure to the customers not having 
good credit history. Furthermore, the Company has credit control in place to ensure that 
services are rendered to customers with an appropriate credit history and makes allowance 
for ECLs against those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

Bank balances and investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid securities and maintaining 
bank accounts only with counterparties that have a high credit ratings and therefore 
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by type of customer was:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

Government companies 606,483 632,053 
Private companies 275,653 198,282 
Individuals 242,355 140,359 
Related party 9,736 17,139 

1,134,227 987,833 

39.1.3 Impairment losses

The aging of trade debts at the reporting date was:

2022 2021

Gross debts
Allowance

for ECL
Gross debts

Allowance
for ECL

(Rupees in '000') (Rupees in '000') 

Not past due 427,419 2,029 230,471 - 
1 - 2 months 298,405 14,109 147,364 - 
3 - 4 months 94,405 4,743 210,250 21,481 
5 - 7 months 88,393 12,486 155,994 27,545 
8 - 12 months 68,831 34,726 119,806 44,095 
Above 12 months 156,774 101,365 123,948 59,890 

1,134,227 169,458 987,833 153,011 
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The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade debts during the year was 
as follows:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of the year 153,011 129,585 
Add: expected credit losses 28,884 63,747 
Less: bad debts written off 12,437 40,321 
Balance at end of the year 19 169,458 153,011 

39.1.4 The Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of markup 
accrued, deposits, bank balances and investments as the recovery of such amounts is 
possible except in case of certain balances of other receivables for which impairment loss 
has been recorded (Note 21.3).

The ageing of Shifa Foundation (SF), SIHT (Private) Limited, Shifa Development Services 
(Private) Limited (SDSPL) and Shifa Pan African Hospitals Limited (SPAH) at the reporting 
date was:

2022 2021
Gross debts 

/ Other 
receivables

Allowance
for ECL

Gross debts 
/ Other 

receivables

Allowance
for ECL

Note (Rupees in '000') (Rupees in '000') 

SF
1 - 2 months 19 9,736 - 17,139 - 

SIHT
1 - 2 months 21 35,416 - 24,335 - 

SDSPL
1 - 2 months 20 52,376 - - - 

SPAH
5 - 7 months 21 - - 2,042 2,042 
Above 12 months 21 - - 37,740 37,740 

39.1.5 Cash and investments are held only with reputable banks and their mutual funds with high 
quality external credit rating assessed by external rating agencies. Following are the credit 
ratings of banks with which balances are held or credit lines available:
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Bank
Rating 
Agency Rating 

Short term Long term 

Habib Bank Limited JCR - VIS A1+ AAA 
United Bank Limited (UBL) JCR - VIS A1+ AAA 
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA 
Dubai Islamic Bank JCR - VIS A1+ AA 
The Bank of Punjab PACRA A1+ AA+ 
Askari Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 
Faysal Bank Limited JCR - VIS A1+ AA 
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA A1+ AAA 
Silk Bank Limited JCR - VIS A2 A- 
Meezan Bank Limited JCR - VIS A1+ AAA 
Al - Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited JCR - VIS A1 A+ 
National Bank of Pakistan JCR - VIS A1+ AAA 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 
UBL - Al Ameen Islamic Cash Fund JCR - VIS - AA+(f) 

39.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
Company's approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses 
or risking damage to the Company's reputation. For this purpose the Company has credit facilities as mentioned 
in notes 7 and 33 to the financial statements. Further liquidity position of the Company is monitored by the board 
through budgets, cash flow projections and comparison with actual results.

Following is the maturity analysis of financial liabilities:

Carrying 
amount

Six months 
or less

Six to 
twelve 
months

One to two 
years

Two to five 
years

Above five 
years

(Rupees in '000')

2022
Long term financing- secured 2,607,637 770,466 564,070 950,306 322,795 - 
Trade and other payables 3,053,898 3,053,898 - - - - 
Unclaimed dividend 40,778 40,778 - - - - 
Mark up accrued 35,658 35,658 - - - - 

5,737,971 3,900,800 564,070 950,306 322,795 - 

2021
Long term financing-secured 3,766,130 665,362 740,360 1,284,106 1,076,302 - 
Trade and other payables 2,695,928 2,695,928 - - - - 
Unclaimed dividend 35,158 35,158 - - - - 
Mark up accrued 16,913 16,913 - - - - 

6,514,129 3,413,361 740,360 1,284,106 1,076,302 - 

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is given in note 9.
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39.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, markup 
rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk. The Company is 
exposed to currency, mark up rate and market price risk.

39.3.1 Foreign currency risk 

Exposure to foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions 
with foreign undertakings and cash in foreign currency bank account. The Company’s 
exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2022 2021
(Amount in '000')

Euro USD AED Euro USD AED

Bank balances - 6,735.65 - - 10,587.93 - 
Receivables - - 627.37 - - 622.57 
Letter of credit (12.50) (450.48) - (62.00) (285.65) - 

(12.50) 6,285.17 627.37 (62.00) 10,302.28 622.57 

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Bank balances - 1,375,198 - - 1,663,668 - 
Receivables - - 34,896 - - 26,656 
Letter of credit (2,675) (92,164) - (11,622) (44,988) - 

(2,675) 1,283,034 34,896 (11,622) 1,618,680 26,656 

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Closing rate
2022 2021 2022 2021

(Rupees)

USD 1 - Buying 177.80 160.10 204.17 157.13 
USD 1 - Selling 178.21 160.47 204.59 157.49 

AED 1 - Buying 48.44 43.59 55.62 42.82 
AED 1 - Selling 48.55 43.69 55.73 42.91 

Euro 1 - Buying 199.96 190.92 213.59 187.04 
Euro 1 - Selling 200.41 191.34 214.03 187.45 
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent variation of PKR against USD, AED and EURO at June 30 would have effected 
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other 
variables, in particular markup rates, remain constant.

Change in Foreign 
Exchange Rates

Effect on Profit Effect on Equity

% (Rupees in '000')

2022
Foreign currencies +10% 131,525 131,525 
Foreign currencies -10% (131,525) (131,525)

2021
Foreign currencies +10% 163,371 163,371 
Foreign currencies -10% (163,371) (163,371)

39.3.2 Markup rate risk 
The markup rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest 
rate exposure arises from long term financing, short term investments and deposits with 
banks. At the reporting date the markup rate profile of the Company’s markup-bearing 
financial instruments are:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000')

Financial assets

Investment - at amortized cost 22 3,000 3,000 
Bank balances 24 589,370 817,378 

592,370 820,378 

Financial liabilities
Long term financing - secured 7 (2,607,637) (3,766,130)

(2,015,267) (2,945,752)

The effective markup rates for the financial assets and liabilities are mentioned in respective 
notes to the financial statements.

Markup rate sensitivity analysis
If markup rates had been 50 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held 
constant, the Company’s profit for the year ended June 30, 2022 would decrease/increase 
by Rs. 8,092 thousand (2021: decrease / increase by Rs. 10,348 thousand). This is mainly 
attributable to the Company’s exposure to markup rates on its variable rate borrowings.
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39.3.3 Price risk
The Company’s price risk arises from investments in units as disclosed in - note 22.2 which 
are designated at fair value through profit or loss, however, in accordance with the investment 
strategy the performance of units is actively monitored and they are managed on a fair value 
basis.

Price risk sensitivity analysis
A change of Rs. 1 in the value of investments at fair value through profit or loss would have 
increased or decreased profit or loss by Rs. 6,780 thousand (2021: Rs. 8,744)

39.4 Financial instrument by category

Amortized cost
Fair value 

through profit 
or loss

Total

2022 (Rupees in '000')
Financial assets
Maturity upto one year
Trade debts 964,769 - 964,769 
Other receivables 247,533 - 247,533 
Markup accrued 2,129 - 2,129 
Other financial assets 3,000 510,235 513,235 
Cash and bank balances 2,317,432 - 2,317,432 

Maturing after one year
Long term deposits 85,324 - 85,324 

3,620,187 510,235 4,130,422 

Financial liabilities
Maturing upto one year
Trade and other payables 3,053,898 - 3,053,898 
Unclaimed dividend 40,778 - 40,778 
Markup accrued 35,658 - 35,658 
Current portion of long term financing - 
secured 1,334,536 - 1,334,536 
Current portion of lease liabilities 253,452 - 253,452 

Maturing after one year
Long term financing - secured 1,273,101 - 1,273,101 
Lease liabilities 694,285 - 694,285 

6,685,708 - 6,685,708 
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Amortized cost
Fair value 

through profit 
or loss

Total

2021 (Rupees in '000')
Financial assets
Maturity upto one year
Trade debts 834,822 - 834,822 
Other receivables 54,023 - 54,023 
Markup accrued 677 - 677 
Other financial assets 3,000 619,464 622,464 
Cash and bank balances 2,809,697 - 2,809,697 

Maturing after one year
Long term deposits 96,260 - 96,260 

3,798,479 619,464 4,417,943 

Financial liabilities
Maturing upto one year
Trade and other payables 2,695,928 - 2,695,928 
Unclaimed dividend 35,158 - 35,158 
Markup accrued 16,913 - 16,913 
Current portion of long term financing - 
secured 1,405,722 - 1,405,722 
Current portion of lease liabilities 177,633 - 177,633 

Maturing after one year
Long term financing - secured 2,360,408 - 2,360,408 
Lease liabilities 607,038 - 607,038 

7,298,800 - 7,298,800 

154 ANNUAL  
REPORT 2022

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



39.5 Fair value 

Fair value versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the 
statement of financial position are as follows:

2022 2021
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Assets carried at amortized cost (Rupees in '000')
Long term deposits 85,324 85,324 96,260 96,260 
Trade debts 964,769 964,769 834,822 834,822 
Other receivables 247,533 247,533 54,023 54,023 
Markup accrued 2,129 2,129 677 677 
Other financial assets 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 
Cash and bank balances 2,317,432 2,317,432 2,809,697 2,809,697 

3,620,187 3,620,187 3,798,479 3,798,479 
Assets carried at fair value
Other financial assets 510,235 510,235 619,464 619,464 

Liabilities carried at amortized cost
Long term financing - secured 1,273,101 1,273,101 2,360,408 2,360,408 
Lease liabilities 694,285 694,285 607,038 607,038 
Trade and other payables 3,053,898 3,053,898 2,695,928 2,695,928 
Unclaimed dividend 40,778 40,778 35,158 35,158 
Markup accrued 35,658 35,658 16,913 16,913 
Current portion of long term 
financing - secured 1,334,536 1,334,536 1,405,722 1,405,722 
Current portion of lease liabilities 253,452 253,452 177,633 177,633 

6,685,708 6,685,708 7,298,800 7,298,800 

The basis for determining fair values is as follows:

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the 
government yield curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. For instruments 
carried at amortized cost, since the majority of the interest bearing investments are variable 
rate based instruments, there is no difference in carrying amount and the fair value. Further, 
for fixed rate instruments, since there is no significant difference in market rate and the rate of 
instrument and therefore most of the fixed rate instruments are short term in nature, fair value 
significantly approximates to carrying value.

40 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Other financial assets
Fair value of investment in mutual funds (Note 22.2) has been determined using quoted 
repurchase price at reporting date and categorized under level 1 of fair value hierarchy.
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Fair value of land
Lands owned by the Company are valued by independent valuers to determine the fair values 
of lands as at reporting date. The fair value of lands subject to revaluation model fall under 
level 2 of fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfer amongst the levels during the year. Further, there were no changes in 
the valuation techniques during the year.

41 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure the Company’s ability not 
only to continue as a going concern but also to meet its requirements for expansion and 
enhancement of its business, maximize return of shareholders and optimize benefits for other 
stakeholders to maintain an optimal capital structure and to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to achieve the above objectives, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends 
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares through bonus or right 
issue or sell assets to reduce debts or raise debts, if required.

42 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX

2022 2021
Description Explanation (Rupees in '000')

Bank balances Placed under interest 180,188 285,248 
Placed under sharia 
permissible arrangement 409,182 532,130 

589,370 817,378 

Return on bank deposit 
for the year

Placed under interest 6,121 3,986 
Placed under sharia 
permissible arrangement 10,216 4,337 

16,337 8,323 

Interest and dividend 
income on investment for 
the year

Placed under interest 228 159 
Placed under sharia 
permissible arrangement 81,358 22,225 

81,586 22,384 

Segment revenue Disclosed in note 26

Exchange gain earned 416,217 - 

Loans obtained as per Islamic mode 2,172,438 2,941,675 
Mark up paid on Islamic mode of financing 275,712 305,325 
Interest paid on any conventional loan 5,392 6,005 
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Relationship with sharia compliant banks
The Company has obtained long term loans and has maintained bank balances and term 
deposits with sharia compliant banks as given below:

- Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited
- Meezan Bank Limited
- Dubai Islamic Bank 
- Habib Bank Limited
- Faysal Bank Limited
- Bank Alfalah Limited
- Bank of Punjab
- Askari Bank Limited

43 OPERATING SEGMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment. All 
revenue of the Company is earned in Pakistan. All non-current assets of the Company at June 
30, 2022 are located in Pakistan. There is no segment with more than 10% of total revenue of 
the Company for the year.

44 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the 
board of directors of the Company on September 28, 2022.

45 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

The board of directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 28, 2022 has proposed a 
final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2022 @ Rs. 1.5 per share, amounting to Rs. 94,822 
thousand for approval of the members in the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 28, 
2022. This dividend is in addition to interim dividend of Rs. 1.5 per share paid during the current 
year. The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 do not include the 
effect of the final dividend which will be accounted for in the year in which it is approved.

46 GENERAL

- Figures have been rounded off to the nearest one thousand Pak Rupees unless otherwise stated.
- Immaterial reclassification has been made wherever necessary.
- Management of the Company will continue to monitor the situation with possible measures 

to overcome the effects of COVID- 19 pandemic. Moreover, based on the assessment of the 
Company's management there is no adverse effect of COVID - 19 on these financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF EXECUTIVE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Shifa International Hospitals Limited

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Shifa International Hospitals Limited 
and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 
30, 2022 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at June 30, 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Grant Thronton Anjum  
Rahman
302 B, 3rd Floor Evacuee
Trust Complex,
Aga Khan Road F-5/1,
Islamabad, Pakistan

T: +92 51 2271906  
F: +92 51 2273874
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Following is the key audit matter:

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Revenue from contract with customers:

(Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial 
statements)

The Group principally generates revenue from 
providing of inpatient and outpatient services 
and supply of medicines. We identified revenue 
recognition as a key audit matter because it is one 
of key performance indicator which gives rise to an 
inherent risk of misstatement.

Our audit procedures amongst others included the 
following:

-	 Obtained an understanding of the Group’s 
processes and related internal controls for 
revenue recognition and tested the design, 
implementation and operating effectiveness of 
those controls;

-	 Performed test of details of sampled revenue by 
inspecting the underlying supporting documents 
including medical record bills, sales report and 
bank statements;

-	 Performed cut off procedures to ensure revenue 
has been recorded in the correct period;

-	 Evaluated and tested on sample basis the 
authority metrics (controls) over changes in 
charge master;

-	 Verified on sample basis the trade debts through 
obtaining confirmations from debtors and 
performing other alternate procedures; and

-	 Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures in 
the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 
2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

	• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

	• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

	• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
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If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

	• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

	• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Hassaan Riaz.

￼

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Islamabad
September 30, 2022

UDIN: AR20221016445Q3yHL6h	
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2022 2021 
Note (Rupees in '000')

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital
100,000,000 (2021: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 4 632,144 619,749 
Capital reserves
Share premium 5 2,738,888 2,751,283 
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 6 1,546,319 1,409,434 

Revenue reserves
Unappropriated profits 4,898,668 3,832,409 

9,816,019 8,612,875 

NON - CONTROLLING INTEREST 7 1,670,759 1,119,806 

NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing - secured 8 1,273,101 2,360,408 
Deferred taxation 9 339,877 331,599 
Lease liabilities 10 435,708 265,587 

2,048,686 2,957,594 
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 11 3,648,044 3,232,390 
Unclaimed dividend 40,778 35,158 
Markup accrued 12 35,658 16,913 
Current portion of long term financing - secured 8 1,334,536 1,405,722 
Current portion of lease liabilities 10 173,173 118,456 

5,232,189 4,808,639 
18,767,653 17,498,914 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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2022 2021 
Note (Rupees in '000')

NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 14 11,638,803 10,225,908 
Intangible assets 15 51,957 32,052 
Long term investments 16 32,862 35,961 
Long term deposits 17 89,093 74,007 

11,812,715 10,367,928 

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 18 210,189 165,312 
Stock-in-trade 19 711,968 658,280 
Trade debts 20 964,769 879,705 
Loans and advances 21 647,227 348,919 
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 22 249,402 72,192 
Markup accrued 2,129 677 
Other financial assets 23 909,625 1,102,202 
Tax refunds due from the government (net of provision) 24 470,176 480,548 
Cash and bank balances 25 2,468,500 2,929,472 

6,633,985 6,637,307 

Non - current assets held for sale 26 320,953 493,679 

18,767,653 17,498,914 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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2022 2021 
Note (Rupees in '000')

Net revenue 27 16,192,168 14,223,673

Other income 28 640,328 171,924

Operating costs 29 (14,747,818) (12,863,969)

Finance costs 30 (347,245) (330,711)

Expected credit losses 22 & 40.1.3 (112,618) (158,091)

Share of loss of an associate 16 (3,099) (1,511)

Profit before taxation 1,621,716 1,041,315 

Provision for taxation 31 (492,547) (300,518)

Profit after taxation 1,129,169 740,797 

Attributable to:
Equity holders of Shifa International Hospitals Limited 1,141,310 724,091 
Non-controlling interest (12,141) 16,706 

1,129,169 740,797 

(Restated) 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted - (Rupees) 32 18.05 11.45 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF EXECUTIVE
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2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Profit after taxation 1,129,169 740,797 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified in statement of profit or loss

Loss on remeasurement of staff gratuity fund benefit plan (23,961) (45,924)

Deferred tax relating to remeasurement of staff gratuity fund benefit plan 7,907 13,318 

Loss on remeasurement of staff gratuity fund benefit plan (net of tax) (16,054) (32,606)

Foreign currency translation adjustment 703 (804)

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 214,861 298,914 

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,328,679 1,006,301 

Attributable to:
Equity holders of Shifa International Hospitals Limited 1,297,966 896,150 
Non-controlling interest 30,713 110,151 

1,328,679 1,006,301 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF EXECUTIVE
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2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 1,621,716 1,041,315 
Adjustments for:

Depreciation / amortization on tangible assets 877,782 840,804 
Amortization on intangible assets 21,296 26,267 
Expected credit losses 112,618 158,091 
Property, plant and equipment written off 2,234 977 
Gain on disposal of tangible assets (69,269) (41,975)
Provision for compensated absences 67,049 46,378 
Provision for bonus for employees 125,814 190,931 
Provision for gratuity 159,116 143,917 
Provision for slow moving stores 2,687 6,161 
Share of loss of an associate 3,099 1,511 
Liability written back - (26,568)
Gain on investments and bank deposits (104,958) (71,226)
(Gain) / loss on foreign currency translation (416,637) 120,044 
Finance costs 347,245 330,711 

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 2,749,792 2,767,338
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools (47,564) (19,264)
Stock-in-trade (53,688) (11,927)
Trade debts (157,497) (379,996)
Loans and advances (298,308) 69,267
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (233,836) (44,824)

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables 322,426 (57,568)

Cash generated from operations 2,281,325 2,323,026
Finance cost paid (275,864) (305,325)
Income tax paid (465,990) (370,962)
Payment to SIHL Employees' Gratuity Fund (241,218) (134,468)
Compensated absences paid (49,695) (40,845)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,248,558 1,471,426 
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2022 2021

Note (Rupees in '000') 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Addition to property, plant and equipment (PPE) (1,713,331) (1,060,173)

Purchase of intangible assets (41,201) (243)

Investment in associate - (15,000)

Proceeds / (investments) in other financial assets - net 304,438 (858,868)

Proceeds from disposal of PPE and items classified as held for sale 251,206 231,424 

Markup received 34,120 8,069 

(Increase) / decrease in long term deposits (19,468) 3,281 

Net cash used in investing activities (1,184,236) (1,691,510)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Non-controlling interest 520,240 78,000 

Long term financing - repayments (1,417,563) (381,608)

Long term financing - proceeds 212,009 633,450 

Deferred grant received 47,060 82,630 

Lease liabilities - repayments (172,702) (169,895)

Dividend paid (89,202) (1,507)

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (900,158) 241,070 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (835,836) 20,986 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,958,820 3,058,682 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 417,340 (120,848)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 38 2,540,324 2,958,820 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CHAIRMAN CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF EXECUTIVE

Share
capital 

Share 
premium 

Surplus on 
revaluation
of property, 
plant and 

equipment 

Un-
appropriated

profit 

Non - 
controlling 

interest 
Total 

(Rupees in '000') 

Balance as at July 01, 2020 619,749 2,751,283 1,225,930 3,103,034 948,384 8,648,380 

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit after taxation - - - 724,091 16,706 740,797 
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - 205,469 (33,410) 93,445 265,504 

- - 205,469 690,681 110,151 1,006,301 

Realization of revaluation surplus
on disposal of assets - - (12,541) 12,541 - - 

Transfer of revaluation surplus of
property, plant and equipment in respect of 
incremental depreciation / amortization - - (9,424) 9,437 (13) - 

NCI recognized during the year - - - - 78,000 78,000 

Change in ownership interests
Acquisition of shareholding by NCI 
without a change in control - - - 16,716 (16,716) - 

Distribution to owners
Dividend 2020: Nil - - - - - - 

Balance as at June 30, 2021 619,749 2,751,283 1,409,434 3,832,409 1,119,806 9,732,681 

Balance as at July 01, 2021 619,749 2,751,283 1,409,434 3,832,409 1,119,806 9,732,681 

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit after taxation - - - 1,141,310 (12,141) 1,129,169 
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - 172,007 (15,351) 42,854 199,510 

- - 172,007 1,125,959 30,713 1,328,679 
Realization of revaluation surplus
on disposal of assets - - (24,883) 24,883 - - 

Transfer of revaluation surplus of
property, plant and equipment in respect of 
incremental depreciation / amortization - - (10,239) 10,239 - - 

NCI recognized during the year - - - - 520,240 520,240 

Changes in ownership interests
Acquisition of shareholding by NCI 
without a change in control - - - - - - 

Distribution to owners
Bonus shares (note 4.2) 12,395 (12,395) - - - - 

First interim dividend @ Rs. 1.5 per share - - - (94,822) - (94,822)

Balance as at June 30, 2022 632,144 2,738,888 1,546,319 4,898,668 1,670,759 11,486,778 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Shifa International Hospitals Limited (“the Group”) comprises of Shifa International Hospitals 
Limited (SIHL / parent company) and its subsidiaries, Shifa Development Services (Private) 
Limited, Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute Islamabad (Private) Limited, Shifa National Hospital 
Faisalabad (Private) Limited, Shifa Medical Center Islamabad (Private) Limited and Shifa 
International-DWC LLC. 

1.2 SIHL was incorporated in Pakistan on September 29, 1987 as a private limited company 
under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and converted into a public limited company 
on October 12, 1989. The shares of the SIHL are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The registered office of the SIHL is situated at Sector H-8/4, Islamabad. The principal activity 
of SIHL is to establish and run medical centers and hospitals in Pakistan. The SIHL has 
established its first hospital in 1993 in H-8/4 Islamabad, second hospital in 2011 in Faisalabad 
and another in 2014 in G-10/4 Islamabad. The SIHL is also running medical centers and 
pharmacies in different cities of Pakistan.

1.3 Shifa Development Services (Private) Limited (SDSPL) was incorporated in Pakistan on 
December 18, 2014. The principal activity of SDSPL is to provide consulting services relating 
to healthcare facility, medical staff, human resource, architectural designing, procurement, 
hospital quality and project management services. The registered office of SDSPL is situated 
at Shifa International Hospitals Limited, Sector H-8/4, Islamabad.

1.4 Shifa Neuro Sciences Institute Islamabad (Private) Limited (SNS Islamabad) was incorporated 
in Pakistan on February 28, 2019. The principal line of business is to establish, run, control, 
manage and operate state of the art neuro sciences institute including diagnostic centres, 
clinics, laboratories, operation theaters, dental clinics, healthcare centres and provide 
all healthcare and surgical related facilities of different diseases, inpatient and outpatient 
services and treatment of viral, bacterial and chronic diseases and all other related services 
thereof, subject to permission from relevant authorities, if required. The registered office of 
SNS Islamabad is situated at Sector H-8/4, Islamabad.

1.5 Shifa National Hospital Faisalabad (Private) Limited (SNH Faisalabad) was incorporated in 
Pakistan on February 28, 2019. The principal line of business of the Company is to establish, 
run, control, manage and operate tertiary/quaternary care hospitals including diagnostic 
centers, clinics, laboratories, operation theaters, dental clinics, healthcare centers and provide 
all healthcare and surgical related facilities of different diseases, inpatient and outpatient 
services and treatment of viral, bacterial and chronic diseases and all other related services 
thereof, subject to permission from relevant authorities, if required.The registered office of the 
SNH Faisalabad is situated at Sector H-8/4, Islamabad.

1.6 Shifa Medical Center Islamabad (Private) Limited (SMC Islamabad) was incorporated in 
Pakistan on February 28, 2019. The principal line of business of the Company is to establish, 
run, control, manage and operate facilities providing ambulatory services including day care 
surgeries, diagnostic centers, clinics, laboratories, operation theaters, dental clinics, healthcare 
centers and provide all healthcare and surgical related facilities of different diseases, inpatient 
and outpatient services and treatment of viral, bacterial and chronic diseases and all other 
related services thereof, subject to permission from relevant authorities, if required. The 
registered office of the SMC Islamabad is situated at Shifa International Hospitals Limited, 
Sector H-8/4, Islamabad.
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1.7 Shifa International-DWC LLC (SIDL) was incorporated in United Arab Emirates on December 
16, 2019 as limited liability company. The principal activity of the SIDL which it may perform 
under the license issued by Dubai Aviation City Corporation are Marketing and project 
management services. The registered office of the SIDL is situated at Business Centre Logistic 
City, Dubai Aviation City, P.O Box 390667, Dubai, UAE. 

1.8 Geographical locations of business units of the SIHL are as follows:

H-8 Hospital, Pitras Bukhari road, Sector H-8/4, Islamabad
Faisalabad Hospital, Main Jaranwala road, Faisalabad
G-10/4 Hospital, G-10 Markaz, Islamabad
Shifa Pharmacy, Opposite OPF College, F-8 Markaz Islamabad
Shifa Pharmacy, Saidpur, Rawalpindi
Shifa Pharmacy, Blue Area, Islamabad
Shifa Pharmacy, Gulberg Greens, Islamabad
Shifa Pharmacy, Abbottabad Road, Mansehra
Shifa Pharmacy Iskandarabad, Mianwali
Shifa Pharmacy, National Radio Telecommunication Corporation, Haripur
Shifa Pharmacy, Jamrud, Peshawar
Shifa Pharmacy, WAPDA, Mangla
Shifa Pharmacy, WAPDA, Faisalabad
F-11 Medical center, Savoy Arcade, F-11 Markaz Islamabad

Percentage share in total revenue given in note 27. 2022 2021
Islamabad 97% 97%
Faisalabad 3% 3%

100% 100%
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the 
Companies Act, 2017; and 
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the 
IFRS Standards or IFASs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 
2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention, except for certain items as disclosed in relevant accounting policies.
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. These consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional currency.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting and 
reporting standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results 
of which form the basis of making judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments made by management in the application of the accounting and reporting 
standards that have significant effect on the consolidated financial statements and estimates 
with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are as follows:

i) Estimate of fair value of financial liabilities at initial recognition - notes 3.4 and 8
ii) Provision for taxation - notes 3.5, 9 and 31
iii) Right of use asset and corresponding lease liability - notes 3.6, 10 and 14
iv) Employee benefits - notes 3.8, 11.3 and 11.4
v) Provisions and contingencies - notes 3.9, 3.10 and 13
vi) Estimate of useful life of property, plant and equipment - notes 3.11 and 14
vii) Estimate of useful life of intangible assets - notes 3.12 and 15
viii) Impairment of non-financial assets - notes 3.13
ix) Estimate of recoverable amount of investment in associated company - notes 3.1 and 16
x) Expected credit loss allowance - notes 3.15.2, 22.2 and 40.1.3
xi) Provision for slow moving spares - notes 3.16, 3.17,14.9.2 and 18

2.5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

2.5.1 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective 
during the current year:

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective during the year but 
are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group’s operations 
(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, 
not detailed in these consolidated financial statements.
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2.5.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the Company:

Effective date 
annual reporting 

periods 
beginning on or 

after

IAS 1 Amendments to ‘IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 
Disclosure of Accounting Policies January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ 
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current January 1, 2023

IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors (Amendments) January 1, 2023

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IAS 41, IFRS 
(1, 9 & 16)

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 January 1, 2022

IFRS 10 
and IAS 28

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its 
associate or joint venture – Amendments

n/a*

* The Effective date is not yet issued

The management of the Group anticipates that adoption of above standards, amendments 
and interpretations in future periods, will have no material impact on the consolidated financial 
statements other than in presentation / disclosures.

2.5.3 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued 
the following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared 
exempt by the SECP as at June 30, 2022:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements are the same as those applied in earlier period presented.

3.1 Basis of consolidation
These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Shifa International 
Hospitals Limited and its subsidiaries, SDSPL 55% owned (2021: 55% owned), SNS Islamabad 
100% owned (2021: 100% owned), SMC Islamabad 56% owned (2021: 56% owned), SNH 
Faisalabad 60% owned (2021: 60% owned) and SIDL 100% owned (2021: 100% owned).
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Subsidaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the 
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable 
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. 
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 
They are derecognized from the date the control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. 
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the 
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The 
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a 
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities (including 
contingent liabilities) assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair 
values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes 
any non-controlling interest in the acquire at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share 
of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between group 
companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts 
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the group's accounting policies.

Associates (equity accounted investee)
Entities in which the Group has significant influence directly or indirectly (through subsidiaries) 
but not control and which are neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures of the members of the 
Group are associates and are accounted for under the equity method of accounting (equity 
accounted investees). These investments are initially recognized at cost. The consolidated 
financial statements include the associates’ share of profit or loss and movements in other 
comprehensive income, after adjustments, if any, to align the accounting policies with those 
of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until the date it ceases. 
Share of post acquisition profit/loss of associates is recognized in the consolidated statement 
of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Distributions received 
from associates reduce the carrying amount of investment. 

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the 
carrying amount of that investment (including any long-term interests that, in substance, form 
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate) is reduced to nil and the recognition of 
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has 
made payments on behalf of the investee. 

Non controlling interest (NCI)
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets at the 
date of acquisition.

Loss of control
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of 
the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss 
is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former 
subsidiary is measured at fair value when the control is lost.
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3.2 Share capital and dividend

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is declared. Movement in reserves 
is recognized in the year in which it is approved.

3.3 Financing and finance cost

Financing are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, financing are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost 
and redemption value being recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over 
the period of the financing on an effective interest basis. Financing costs are recognised as 
an expense in the period in which these are incurred.

3.4 Government grants

Government grants are transfers of resources to an entity by a government entity in return for 
compliance with certain past or future conditions related to the entity’s operating activities - 
e.g. a government subsidy.

Government grants are recognized at fair value, as deferred income, when there is reasonable 
assurance that the grants will be received and the Group will be able to comply with the 
conditions associated with the grants.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred, are recognized on a systematic 
basis in the income for the year in which the finance cost are recognized and finance cost are 
reported net of grant in - note 30.

A loan is initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9. IFRS 
9 requires loans at below-market rates to be initially measured at their fair value - e.g. the 
present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at a market-related interest rate. 
The benefit that is the government grant is measured as the difference between the fair value 
of the loan on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according 
to the nature of the grant. 

3.5 Taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is recognized in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized 
directly in consolidated statement of changes in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of tax after taking 
into account applicable tax credits, rebates, losses and exemptions available, if any.

Deferred
Deferred tax is accounted for using balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation 
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences 
and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits 
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
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tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are 
reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the 
differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and 
assets and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 
entity or on different tax entities but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a 
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate 
authorities. Instances where the Group's view differs from the view taken by the income tax 
department at the assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on items 
of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax asset of Rs. 55,179 thousand (2021: Rs. 41,205 thousand) on deductible 
temporary difference of Rs. 190,273 thousand (2021: Rs. 142,089 thousand) has not been 
recorded in respect of subsidiaries.

3.6 Leases

3.6.1 Right of use assets
The SIHL recognizes right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. 
The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the 
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any 
lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or 
the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined 
as those of similar assets or the lease term as specified in contract. In addition, the right-
of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The SIHL has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term 
leases of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value 
assets. The SIHL recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.6.2 Lease liability
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments 
discounted using the SIHL’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments in the measurement 
of the lease liability comprise the following:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
- Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;
- Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
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- The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option; and
- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising 
that option.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an 
index or rate, if there is a change in the SIHL’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable 
under a residual value guarantee, or if the SIHL changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

3.7 Trade and other payable

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

3.8 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan
The SIHL operates approved funded gratuity scheme for all its employees who have 
completed the minimum qualifying period of service as defined in the scheme. Provision is 
made annually to cover obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and 
is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The most recent valuation was 
carried out as at June 30, 2022 using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. The actuarial gains 
or losses at each evaluation date are charged to other comprehensive income. The results of 
actuarial valuation are summarized in note 11.4 of these consolidated financial statements.

The amount recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the 
present value of defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Calculation of gratuity asset requires assumptions to be made of future outcomes which 
mainly include increase in remuneration, expected long term return on plan assets and the 
discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to 
changes in the underlying assumptions and determined by actuary.

During the year the SIHL has introduced a pension fund benefit in form of monthly contribution 
into private pension scheme (defined contribution plan) in place of existing staff gratuity benefit 
(defined benefit plan) for its full time management employees (contractual and regular). In 
response till the year end majority of management employees have opted the pension fund 
benefit and accordingly their gratuity obligations have been cleared from the SIHL gratuity 
fund which resulted into settlement loss of Rs. 37.7 million in consolidated statement of 
profit or loss. The employees who are currently covered under gratuity benefit not opting 
the pension benefit option will continue under gratuity scheme while new employee shall 
solely be covered under pension scheme after completing minimum eligibility criteria of their 
employment. 
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Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan where monthly contribution 
equal to 1/12th of eligible salary are made by the SIHL in employees’ pension fund account 
maintained with designated asset management company and recognized as expense in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when they become due.

Compensated absences
The Group provides for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of 
leaves in the period in which the leave is earned. Accrual to cover the obligations is made 
using the current salary levels of the employees.

3.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be 
made. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively 
to reflect the current best estimates.

3.10 Contingencies

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as a result of past 
events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or the Group has a 
present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Group discloses significant contingent liabilities for the pending litigations and claims 
against the Group based on its judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated 
financial outcome. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on 
the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date. However, based on the 
best judgment of the Group and its legal advisors, the likely outcome of these litigations and 
claims is remote and there is no need to recognize any liability at the reporting date.

3.11 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except freehold and leasehold lands and capital work-in-
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any. 
Leasehold land is stated at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation, 
less any subsequent accumulated amortization and impairment losses while freehold land is 
stated at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent 
impairment losses, if any.
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Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land is recognized in other comprehensive 
income and presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus on 
property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease 
for the same asset previously recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss, in which 
case the increase is credited to consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent of the 
decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of 
land is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the 
revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that 
asset. The surplus on leasehold land to the extent of incremental depreciation charged is 
transferred to unappropriated profit.

Capital work-in-progress and stores held for capital expenditure are stated at cost less 
impairment loss recognized, if any. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred 
during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These 
are transferred to specific items of property, plant and equipment when available for intended 
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other 
repairs and maintenance costs that do not meet the recognition criteria are charged to the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation / amortization is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss 
commencing when the asset is ready for its intended use, applying the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful life. 

In respect of additions and disposals during the year, depreciation / amortization is charged 
when the asset is available for use and up to the month preceding the asset's classified as 
held for sale or derecognized, whichever is earlier.

Assets are derecognized when disposed off or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to flow from its use. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment 
are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
property, plant and equipment, and are recognized on net basis within "other income" in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis. 
Similarly revaluation of lands are made with sufficient regularity. Any change in estimates 
in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant 
and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortization charge and 
impairment.

3.12 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, 
if any. Subsequent cost on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditure is 
expensed as incurred.

182 ANNUAL  
REPORT 2022

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Amortization is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis 
over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Amortization 
on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month in which an item is acquired or 
capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the item is disposed off.

The Group reviews the useful lives of intangible assets on a regular basis. Any change in 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of 
intangibles with the corresponding effect on the amortization charge and impairment.

3.13 Impairment of non - financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets except 
deferred tax assets and inventory may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying 
amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their 
recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amounts, 
assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss except for the impairment loss on 
revalued assets, which is adjusted against the related revaluation surplus to the extent that 
the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to the revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of depreciation / amortization) had no impairment loss 
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.14 Investments

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized using settlement date accounting. 
Settlement date is the date on which that investments are delivered to or by the Group. All 
investments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments 
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership.

3.15 Financial assets

Initial measurement
A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

The Group classifies its financial assets into following three categories:
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- Amortized cost.
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Subsequent measurement

i) Debt instrument at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognized in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated 
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

ii) Equity instrument at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
the consolidated statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery 
of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss.

iii) Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or 
loss.

iv) Financial asset at amortized cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss.

3.15.1 Other financial assets

Investment in units of Mutual Funds are classified at fair value through profit or loss and is 
initially measured at fair value and subsequently is measured at fair value determined using 
the net assets value of the funds at each reporting date. Net gains and losses are recognized 
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investments in term deposit receipts are classified as amortized cost and are initially measured 
at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are included in the carrying 
amount. Subsequently these investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest/markup 
income, losses and impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.15.2 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with 
its financial asset carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends 
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 

The Group applies the simplified approach for trade debts which requires expected lifetime 
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
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The Group recognises life time ECL for trade debts, using the simplified approach. The 
expected credit losses on trade debts are estimated using a provision matrix based on the 
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, 
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast 
direction of conditions at the reporting date. Life time expected credit losses against other 
receivables is also recognized due to significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss 
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. 
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical 
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at 
default for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the 
reporting date reduced by security deposit held. For other financial assets, the ECL is based 
on the 12-month ECL. The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECLs that results from 
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 
date. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the 
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

The Group recognizes an impairment loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for 
all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a 
loss allowance account.

The Gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no 
reasonable expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 
The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of 
write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery.

The Group write off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activities. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off will result in impairment gains.

3.15.3 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from 
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

3.15.4 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit 
or loss' (FVTPL). A financial liability is classified at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, 
it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized 
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or have expired or when the financial liability's cash flows have been substantially 
modified.

3.15.5 Off-setting financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated 
statement of financial position, if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognized amounts, and the Group either intends to settle on a net basis, or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Legally enforceable right must not be contingent 
on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of business and in the event of 
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counter party.

3.16 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at cost, determined on moving average cost basis or net realizable value, 
whichever is lower. For items which are slow moving or identified as surplus to the SIHL's 
requirement, a provision is made for excess of book value over estimated net realizable value. 

The SIHL reviews the carrying amount of stores, spare parts and loose tools on a regular 
basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the 
respective items of stores and spares with a corresponding affect on the provision.

3.17 Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost, determined on moving average basis or net realizable 
value. The cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stock items and other cost 
incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

The SIHL reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade on a regular basis. Any change in the 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of stock in 
trade with a corresponding affect on the provision.

3.18 Trade debts, loans, deposits, interest accrued and other receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated 
and measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when 
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Past years experience of credit loss is used to 
base the calculation of credit loss.

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cheques in hand, balances with banks 
and highly liquid short term investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value with maturity of three months or 
less from the date of acquisition and short term borrowings.

186 ANNUAL  
REPORT 2022

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



3.20 Non - current assets held for sale

Non - current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts are expected to 
be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. 
They are stated at the lower of carrying amount immediately prior to their classification as 
held for sale and fair value less cost to sell. Once classified as held for sale, the assets are 
not subject to depreciation or amortization. In case where classification criteria of non current 
asset held for sale is no longer met such asset is classified on its carrying amount before the 
asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for depreciation/revaluation that would have 
been recognized had the asset not been classified as held for sale. The required adjustment 
to the carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale is 
charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.21 Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Pak Rupees are recorded at the rates of exchange 
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities 
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing on the 
reporting date. Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss for the year.

3.22 Operating segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible 
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been 
identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions. The Group management 
has determined that the Group has a single reportable segment as the Board of Directors 
view the Group’s operations as one reportable segment. 

3.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. 
Revenue from operations of the Group are recognized when the services are provided, and 
thereby the performance obligations are satisfied.

Revenue consists of inpatient revenue, outpatient revenue, pharmacy, cafeteria, rent of building 
and other services. Group's contract performance obligations are fulfilled at point in time 
when the services are provided to customer in case of inpatient, outpatient and other services 
and goods are delivered to customer in case of pharmacy and cafeteria revenue. Revenue is 
recognized at that point in time, as the control has been transferred to the customers.

Receivable is recognized when the services are provided and goods are delivered to customers 
as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only passage 
of time is required before the payment is due. The Group recognizes contract liabilities for 
consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these 
amounts as 'advances from customers' in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the 
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the rent agreement.
Scrap sales and miscellaneous receipts are recognized on realized amounts.

3.24 Asset held under Ijarah financing

Assets held under Ijarah financing are accounted for using the guidelines of Islamic Financial 
Accounting Standard-2 (IFAS 2), "Ijarah". The assets are not recognized on the Group's 
consolidated statement of financial position and payments made under Ijarah financing are 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term 
of the Ijarah.

3.25 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the consolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the SIHL by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the consolidated profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholder and weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding for the effects of all potential ordinary shares.

3.26 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market is accessible by the Group. The fair value of 
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The carrying values of all financial 
assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair 
values.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities;

• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements at fair 
value on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

4 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each.

2022 2021 2022 2021
Number (Rupees in '000') 

61,974,886 61,974,886 Opening balance 619,749 619,749 

1,239,497 - 
Bonus shares issued 
during the year 12,395 - 

63,214,383 61,974,886 Closing balance 632,144 619,749 

4.1 The SIHL has only one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. The 
shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to 
one vote per share at meetings of the SIHL. All shares rank equally with regard to the SIHL's 
residual assets.

4.2 During the year, SIHL issued bonus shares at the rate of 2% in proportion of one ordinary 
share for every fifty shares held (total 1,239,497 bonus shares having face value of Rs. 10 
each) as approved in Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2021.

4.3 7,436,986 (2021: 7,436,986) ordinary shares representing 12% (2021: 12%) shareholding in the 
SIHL are owned by International Finance Corporation (IFC). IFC has the right to nominate one 
director at the board of directors of the SIHL as long as IFC holds ordinary shares representing 
5% of total issued share capital of the SIHL. Further, the SIHL if intends to amend or repeal the 
memorandum and articles, effects the rights of IFC on its shares issuance of preference shares 
ranking seniors to the equity securities held by IFC, incur any financial debt to any shareholder, 
change the nature of the business of the Company etc. shall seek consent of IFC. 

4.4 The SIHL has no reserved shares for issuance under options and sales contracts.

5 SHARE PREMIUM

This comprise of share premium of Rs. 5, Rs. 250 and Rs. 229.29 per share received on issue 
of 8,000,000, 4,024,100 and 7,436,986 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each in the years 1994, 2016 
and 2020 respectively. Out of the above the SIHL during the current year has issued bonus 
shares at the rate mentioned in note 4.2 above. The balance reserve cannot be utilized except 
for the purposes mentioned in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.
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2022 2021
6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT 

AND EQUIPMENT
(Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of year 1,409,434 1,225,930 
Revaluation surplus during the year 214,861 298,914 
Transfer to non-controlling interest (42,854) (93,445)
Realization of revaluation surplus on disposal of assets (24,883) (12,541)
Transferred to unappropriated profits in respect of incremental 
depreciation / amortization charged during the year (10,239) (9,424)

Balance at end of year 1,546,319 1,409,434 

6.1 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in respect of leasehold and freehold 
lands is not available for distribution of dividend to the shareholders of the Group in accordance 
with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

7 NON - CONTROLLING INTEREST (NCI)

7.1 Following is the summarized financial information of SDSPL, SNH Faisalabad and SMC Islamabad:

Summarized statement of financial position

SDSPL SNH Faisalabad SMC Islamabad
Total

NCI percentage 45% 45% 40% 40% 44% 44%
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

(Rupees in '000')
Current assets 198,390 123,563 302,392 70,550 522,480 505,193 1,023,262 699,306 
Non-current assets 27,142 29,466 1,575,467 843,030 1,658,008 1,194,831 3,260,617 2,067,327 
Current liabilities 110,942 79,595 86,701 320 14,473 7,025 212,116 86,940 
Non-current liabilities 8,481 10,639 - - 2,448 995 10,929 11,634 
Net assets 106,109 62,795 1,791,158 913,260 2,163,567 1,692,004 4,060,834 2,668,059 
Accumulated NCI (8,748) 7,558 724,105 368,833 955,402 743,415 1,670,759 1,119,806 

Summarized statement of  
comprehensive income

Net revenue 334,704 281,473 - - - - 334,704 281,473 
Other income 5,387 26,090 9,691 1,153 19,454 38,783 34,532 66,026 
Profit / (loss) for the year 43,314 51,116 (4,197) (10,582) (6,225) 16,785 32,892 57,319 
Other comprehensive income - - 21,996 206,462 77,789 24,846 99,785 231,308 
Total comprehensive income 43,314 51,116 17,799 195,880 71,564 41,631 132,677 288,627 
Profit / (loss) attributable to NCI (16,307) 6,221 2,413 (706) 1,753 11,191 (12,141) 16,706 

Comprehensive income for the year 
attributable to NCI - - 8,798 82,585 34,056 10,860 42,854 93,445 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the 
year attributable to NCI (16,307) 6,221 11,211 81,879 35,809 22,051 30,713 110,151 

Summarized statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities 47,420 24,342 (124,162) (24,932) (219,418) (22,705) (296,160) (23,295)

Cash flows from investing activities (17,532) (9,079) (760,971) (293,102) (161,460) (91,889) (939,963) (394,070)

Cash flows from financing activities (1,548) (1,080) 860,100 308,234 400,000 - 1,258,552 307,154 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalent 28,340 14,183 (25,033) (9,800) 19,122 (114,594) 22,429 (110,211)
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2022 2021
8 LONG TERM FINANCING - SECURED Note (Rupees in '000') 

From banking companies and non banking 
financial institution:

Syndicated Islamic Finance Facility 8.1 1,283,907 1,854,086 
Diminishing Musharakah Facility-1 8.2 250,754 434,274 
Diminishing Musharakah Facility-2 8.3 416,667 500,000 
Diminishing Musharakah Facility-3 8.4 26,160 - 
Refinance Facility to Combat COVID-19 (RFCC) 8.5 88,194 - 
Deferred income - Government grant 29,483 - 

117,677 - 
Islamic Refinance facility to combat Covid-19 (IRFCC) 8.6 128,952 127,789 
Deferred income - Government grant 20,014 25,526 

148,966 153,315 
Islamic Refinance Facility to Combat COVID-19 (IRFCC) 8.7 34,209 - 
Deferred income - Government grant 11,775 - 

45,984 - 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) -refinance scheme 8.8 311,283 780,354 
Deferred income - Government grant 6,239 44,101 

317,522 824,455 

2,607,637 3,766,130 
Less: current portion 1,334,536 1,405,722 

1,273,101 2,360,408 

8.1 This represents syndicated Islamic finance facility, arranged and lead by Meezan Bank 
Limited, obtained on profit rate basis at 3 months KIBOR plus 0.85% (2021: 3 months KIBOR 
plus 0.85%) per annum, repayable in 14 equal quarterly installments. The SIHL has availed 
the loan facility upto the total sanctioned limit of Rs. 2,000 million repayable by August 22, 
2024. The financing is secured by pari passu charge of Rs. 2,667 million on all present and 
future SIHL's movable fixed assets and land / building located at H-8/4, Islamabad. Meezan 
Bank Limited has the custody of original ownership documents of the SIHL's land located at 
sector H-8/4 Islamabad.

8.2 This include outstanding balance of Rs. 210.4 million (2021: Rs. 405.3 million) against the 
long term Islamic finance facility obtained from Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited of Rs. 
449.5 million (2021: Rs. 442.9 million). Principal amount is repayable in 36 equal monthly 
installments carrying profit rate at 3 months KIBOR plus 0.80% (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 
0.80%) per annum. The financing is secured by first exclusive charge of Rs. 781.3 million 
against equipment / machinery. The unavailed limit of this facility is Rs. 20.7 million (2021: Rs. 
19.6 million). This also includes an outstanding balance of Rs. 40.3 million (2021: Rs. 28.9 
million) against long term Islamic finance facility obtained under Diminishing Musharakah 
basis from First Habib Modaraba of Rs. 57.7 million (2021: Rs. 37.6 million). Principal amount 
is repayable in 60 equal monthly installments carrying profit rate at 3 months KIBOR plus 
0.70% (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 0.70%) per annum. The unavailed limit of this facility is 
Rs. 12.3 million (2021: Rs. 32.4 million).
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8.3 This represents outstanding balance of long term Islamic finance facility obtained from 
Meezan Bank Limited of Rs. 500 million (2021: Rs. 500 million). Principal amount shall be 
repaid by October 01, 2024 in 12 equal quarterly installments carrying profit rate at 3 months 
KIBOR plus 0.85% (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 0.85%) per annum. The financing is secured 
by first pari passu charge of Rs. 667 million on all present and future fixed assets of the SIHL.

8.4 This represents a long term Islamic finance facility obtained from Bank Alfalah Limited of 
Rs. 26.2 million (2021: Nil). Principal amount is repayable in 12 equal quarterly installments 
carrying profit rate at 3 months KIBOR plus 0.70% (2021: Nil) per annum. The financing is 
secured by ranking charge of Rs. 800 million against plant and machinery being financed 
under DM facility to be installed / placed at Hospital located in H-8/4, Islamabad. The charge 
will be upgraded to first exclusive charge against plant and machinery being financed under 
this facility. The unavailed limit of this facility is Rs. 492.9 million (2021: Nil).

8.5 This represents the outstanding balance of long term finance facility obtained from United 
Bank Limited of Rs. 124.6 million (2021: Nil). Principal amount shall be repaid by September 
14, 2026 in 18 equal quarterly installments carrying profit at 1% (2021: Nil) per annum. The 
financing is secured by first pari passu charge of Rs. 267 million over fixed assets (excluding 
land and building) of the SIHL. The unavailed limit of this facility is Rs. 75.4 million (2021: Rs. 
200 million). Since the financing under SBP refinance scheme carries the markup rate below 
the market rate, the loan has been recognized at present value using the SIHL's effective profit 
rate along with the recognition of government grant as detailed below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Balance at beginning of the year - - 
Received during the year 29,857 - 
Amortization during the year (374) - 
Balance at end of the year 29,483 - 

8.6 This represents the outstanding balance of long term Islamic finance facility obtained from 
Meezan Bank Limited of Rs. 183.1 million (2021: Rs. 153.3 million) for the purpose of import / 
purchase of medical equipment / machinery to combat COVID-19 under State Bank of Pakistan 
IRFCC scheme. Principal amount shall be repaid by December 29, 2025 in 18 equal quarterly 
installments with no profit rate. The financing is secured by first pari passu hypothecation 
charge of Rs. 267 million on all present and future fixed assets of the SIHL (excluding land and 
building). The unavailed limit of this facility is Rs. 16.9 million (2021: Rs. 34.9 million). Since the 
financing under SBP refinance scheme carries no profit rate, the loan has been recognized at 
present value using the SIHL's effective profit rate along with the recognition of government 
grant as detailed below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Balance at beginning of the year 25,526 - 
Received during the year 5,140 29,847 
Amortization during the year (10,652) (4,321)
Balance at end of the year 20,014 25,526 
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8.7 This represents the outstanding balance of long term Islamic finance facility obtained from 
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited of Rs. 45.9 million (2021: Nil) for the purpose of import 
/ purchase of medical equipment / machinery to combat COVID-19 under State Bank of 
Pakistan IRFCC scheme. Principal amount shall be repaid in 9 equal half yearly installments 
with profit rate of 1% per annum. The facility is secured by ranking charge of Rs. 55 million 
over equipment / machinery against DM IRFCC. The unavailed limit of this facility is Nil (2021: 
Rs. 17.4 million). Since the financing under SBP refinance scheme carries the profit rate below 
the market rate, the loan has been recognized at present value using the SIHL's effective profit 
rate along with the recognition of government grant as detailed below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Balance at beginning of the year - - 
Received during the year 12,063 - 
Amortization during the year (288) - 
Balance at end of the year 11,775 - 

8.8 This represents the outstanding balance of long term finance facility aggregating to Rs. 
1,012.2 million (2021: Rs. 1,012.2 million) obtained from United Bank Limited under the State 
Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) temporary refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries 
to the workers and employees of business concerns to support payment of salaries and 
wages under economic challenges due to COVID-19. The SIHL has availed the financing in 
six tranches from April 2020 to September 2020 at a subsidized markup rate of 0.85% per 
annum. The financing is repayable in 08 equal quarterly installments starting from January 
2021 and shall be fully settled by January 31, 2023. The facility is secured by first pari passu 
charge of Rs. 1,333.3 million over fixed assets (excluding land and building) of the SIHL. 
Since the financing under SBP refinance scheme carries the markup rate below the market 
rate, the loan has been recognized at present value using the SIHL's effective interest rate 
along with the recognition of government grant as detailed below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Balance at beginning of the year 44,101 53,193 
Received during the year - 52,783 
Amortization during the year (37,862) (61,875)
Balance at end of the year 6,239 44,101 
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2022 2021
9 DEFERRED TAXATION Note (Rupees in '000')

Deferred tax liability 9.1 525,719 504,777 
Deferred tax asset 9.2 (185,842) (173,178)

Net deferred tax liability 339,877 331,599 

9.1 Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary 
differences:
Accelerated depreciation / amortization allowance 525,719 504,777 

9.2 Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary 
differences:
Right of use assets net of lease liabilities (34,742) (13,462)
Specific provisions (87,261) (83,981)
Retirement benefit obligation (63,839) (75,735)

(185,842) (173,178)

9.3 Movement in deferred taxation
Opening 
balance 

Statement 
of profit or 

loss

Other 
comprehensive 

Income

Closing 
balance 

Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) (Rupees in '000')

2022

The balance of deferred tax is in respect of the 
following temporary differences:

Effect of taxable temporary differences
Accelerated depreciation / amortization allowance 504,777 20,942 - 525,719 

Effect of deductible temporary differences
Right of use assets net of lease liabilities (13,462) (21,280) - (34,742)
Specific provisions (83,981) (3,280) - (87,261)
Retirement benefit obligation (75,735) 19,803 (7,907) (63,839)

331,599 16,185 (7,907) 339,877 

2021

The balance of deferred tax is in respect of the 
following temporary differences:

Effect of taxable temporary differences
Accelerated depreciation allowance 534,882 (30,105) - 504,777 

Effect of deductible temporary differences
Specific provisions (48,087) (35,894) - (83,981)
Right of use assets net of lease liabilities 9,104 (22,566) - (13,462)
Retirement benefit obligation (56,904) (5,513) (13,318) (75,735)

438,995 (94,078) (13,318) 331,599 
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9.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities on temporary differences are measured at the rate of 33% 
(2021: 29%).

2022 2021
10 LEASE LIABILITIES (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of the year 384,043 398,798 
Additions during the year 347,365 111,877 
Interest expense 52,635 43,263 
Terminated during the period (2,460) - 
Payment during the year (172,702) (169,895)
Balance at end of the year 608,881 384,043 
Less: current portion 173,173 118,456 

435,708 265,587 

10.1 Lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Minimum lease 
payments

Interest 
Present value
of minimum 

lease payments
2022 (Rupees in '000')

Less than one year 195,041 21,868 173,173 
Between one and five years 406,123 135,160 270,963 
More than five years 309,920 145,175 164,745 

911,084 302,203 608,881 

2021

Less than one year 195,926 77,470 118,456 
Between one and five years 226,575 127,395 99,180 
More than five years 299,286 132,879 166,407 

721,787 337,744 384,043 
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2022 2021
11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note (Rupees in '000') 

Creditors 11.1 1,767,504 1,497,739 
Accrued liabilities 586,888 480,777 
Advances from customers 293,743 272,842 
Medical consultants' charges 511,357 493,854 
Security deposits 11.2 118,472 112,342 
Compensated absences 11.3 131,211 113,857 
Defined contribution plan 29,188 - 
Retention money 16,228 9,385 
Payable to Shifa International Hospitals Limited
(SIHL) Employees' Gratuity Fund (the Fund) 11.4 193,453 251,594 

3,648,044 3,232,390 

11.1 This include payables to related parties 
(unsecured) as detailed below:

Tameer -e- Millat Foundation (TMF) 11,660 13,073 
Shifa Tameer -e- Millat University (STMU) 6,458 5,041 

18,118 18,114 

11.2 This includes security deposits retained from employees Rs. 37,095 thousand (2021: Rs. 
33,219 thousand) which are held in separate bank account and obtained from customers 
Rs. 81,377 thousand (2021: Rs. 79,123 thousand) which are utilizable for the purpose of the 
business in accordance with agreements with customers.

2022 2021
11.3 Compensated absences Note (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of the year 113,857 108,324 
Provision made for the year 67,049 46,378 

180,906 154,702 
Payments made during the year (49,695) (40,845)
Balance at end of the year 131,211 113,857 

11.4 The amounts recognized in the consolidated 
statement of financial position:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 11.4.1 398,711 798,687 
Fair value of plan assets 11.4.2 (205,258) (547,093)

193,453 251,594 
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

11.4.1 Movement in the present value of defined 
benefit obligation:

Balance at beginning of the year 798,687 667,697 
Interest cost 47,760 53,470 
Current service cost 105,084 128,179 
Past service cost - 4,852 
Benefits paid / adjusted 3.8 (608,160) (77,096)
Benefits payable (1,725) (1,840)
Loss arrising on plan settlements 3.8 37,717 - 
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit 
obligation 19,348 23,425 
Balance at end of the year 398,711 798,687 

11.4.2 Movement in the fair value of plan assets:
Balance at beginning of the year 547,093 471,476 
Expected return on plan assets 31,445 42,584 
Contributions 241,218 134,468 
Benefits paid / adjusted (608,160) (77,096)
Benefits payable (1,725) (1,840)
Remeasurement loss on plan assets (4,613) (22,499)
Balance at end of the year 205,258 547,093 

11.4.3 Charge for the year:
Current service cost 105,084 128,179 
Interest cost 47,760 53,470 
Past service cost - 4,852 
Loss arrising on plan settlements 37,717 - 
Expected return on plan assets (31,445) (42,584)

159,116 143,917 

11.4.4 Remeasurements recognized in other 
comprehensive income (OCI):

Remeasurement loss on obligation 19,348 23,425 
Remeasurement loss on plan assets 4,613 22,499 
Remeasurement loss recognized in OCI 23,961 45,924 

11.4.5 Movement in liability recognized in 
consolidated statement of financial position:

Balance at beginning of the year 251,594 196,221 
Charge for the year 159,116 143,917 
Remeasurement recognized in OCI during the year 23,961 45,924 
Contributions during the year (241,218) (134,468)
Balance at end of the year 193,453 251,594 
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

11.4.6 Plan assets comprise of:

Term deposit receipts 133,892 388,947 
Ordinary shares of SIHL 11.4.6.1 14,056 16,858 
Cash and bank balances 68,619 143,128 
Payable to outgoing members (11,309) (1,840)

205,258 547,093 

11.4.6.1 Number of ordinary shares of SIHL held by the Fund at year end were 78,461 shares (2021: 
76,923 shares) with market value of Rs. 179.14 (2021: Rs. 219.15) per share.

2022 2021

11.4.7 The principal actuarial assumptions used in the 
actuarial valuation:

Discount rate used for interest cost in profit or loss 11.75% 8.50%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 13.25% 10.00%
Expected rate of salary growth 

Salary increase FY 2022 N/A 7.00%
Salary increase FY 2023-25 9.25% 9.00%
Salary increase FY 2026 onward 11.25% 9.00%

Mortality rate SLIC
2001-2005

set back 1 year 

SLIC
2001-2005

set back 1 year 

Withdrawal rates Age based Age based

Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

11.4.8 Sensitivity analysis 

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. 
The following table summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of 
the reporting period would have increased / decreased as a result of a change in respective 
assumptions by one percent.

2022 2021
Defined benefit obligation Defined benefit obligation
Effect of 1% 

increase
Effect of 1% 

decrease
Effect of 1% 

increase
Effect of 1% 

decrease
(Rupees in '000')

Discount rate 373,013 427,045 741,390 864,740 
Future salary increase 427,576 372,149 865,362 739,826 
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11.4.9 The average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2022 is 8.5 years (2021: 
8 years). 

11.4.10 Risk associated with the scheme

Final salary risk
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what is assumed. 
Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other 
macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

Demographic risks

a) Mortality risk
The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect 
is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

b) Withdrawal risk 
The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. 
The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of 
the beneficiary.

c) Investment risk
The risk of the investment under performing and being not sufficient to meet the liabilities.

2022 2021
12 MARKUP ACCRUED (Rupees in '000') 

Long term financing - secured 35,658 16,913 
13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1 Contingencies

13.1.1 Claims aggregating to Rs. 3 million (2021: Rs. 3 million) are pending before Peshawar and 
Islamabad High Courts by patients / others against the SIHL for alleged negligence on part 
of the consultants / doctors etc. The management of the SIHL is contesting these claims and 
believes that the contention of the claimants will not be successful and no material liability is 
likely to arise.

13.1.2 The penalty of Rs. 20 million (2021: Rs. 20 million) imposed on June 06, 2012 by Competition 
Commission of Pakistan (CCP) to each Gulf Cooperation Council's (GCC) Approved Medical 
Centers (GAMCs) including SIHL on account of alleged non- competitive practice of territorial 
division and equal allocation of GAMCs customers. Management of the SIHL and other 
GAMCs are jointly contesting the matter which is pending before the August Supreme Court 
of Pakistan for decision and management of the SIHL firmly believe that the case will be 
decided in favor of the GAMCs including SIHL.

13.1.3 The guarantees issued by banks in favor of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL), 
Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL) and Pakistan Telecommunication 
Company Limited (PTCL) of aggregate sum of Rs. 43.35 million (2021: Rs. 43.35 million) on 
behalf of the SIHL in its ordinary course of business.
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13.1.4 Contingencies related to income tax and sales tax are as follows:

13.1.4.1 Tax authorities has amended the assessments for tax years 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 
and 2019 under section 122(5A)/124 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) and 
raised tax demands of Rs. 6.4 million, Rs. 97 million, Rs. 85.5 million, Rs. 26.1 million, Rs. 85.4 
million and Rs. 37 million respectively. Being aggrieved the SIHL agitated the assessments in 
appeals before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)] who partly confirmed 
the assessments and partly allowed relief to the SIHL while confirmed the assessment for tax 
year 2015. The SIHL being aggrieved filed appeals against the appellate orders before the 
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue [ATIR] on various dates from September 2018 to November 
2021 which are pending adjudications. 

13.1.4.2 Tax authorities levied tax of Rs. 109.6 million, Rs. 178.4 million, Rs. 27.4 million and Rs. 29.2 
million under section 161/205 of the Ordinance for tax year 2016, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
respectively on account of alleged non deduction of tax on payments. Being aggrieved the 
SIHL agitated the assessments in appeals before the CIR(A) who in respect of tax year 2012 
has deleted the assessment, while set aside the assessment for tax year 2013, confirmed the 
assessment for tax year 2014 and appeal for tax year 2016 filed on July 27, 2022 is a pending 
adjudication. The SIHL being aggrieved filed appeals for tax years 2013 and 2014 before ATIR 
where appeal for tax year 2013 filed on November 26, 2019 is pending adjudication, while 
ATIR has set aside the assessment for tax year 2014 for denovo consideration.

13.1.4.3 Tax authorities amended the assessments for tax years 2012, 2013 and from 2015 to 2017 
u/s 122(5) of the Ordinance and raised aggregate tax demand of Rs. 1,350.9 million. Being 
aggrieved the SIHL agitated the assessments in appeals before the CIR(A) who annulled all 
the assessment orders and hence demand stand deleted. Being dissatisfied with order of the 
CIR(A), the tax department has filed appeals before ATIR on November 15, 2018, which is 
pending adjudication. 

13.1.4.4 The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has amended the SIHL’s assessment 
for tax year 2014 and 2015 u/s 221 of the Ordinance which has resulted in an aggregate 
tax demand of Rs. 11.8 million. Being aggrieved, the SIHL has filed appeals before CIR (A) 
who remanded back the said assessments to ACIR. The SIHL as well as the tax department 
have filed cross appeals against the CIR(A) order before the ATIR in January 2018, which is 
pending adjudication. 

13.1.4.5 Tax authorities amended the assessment for tax year 2014 u/s 177 of the Ordinance and raised 
a tax demand of Rs. 1,143.8 million. Being aggrieved the SIHL agitated the assessment in 
appeal before the CIR (A) who annulled the assessment order and hence tax demand stand 
deleted as of today. The tax department has filed an appeal before ATIR on November 27, 
2019, against the decision of CIR(A) which is pending adjudication. 
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13.1.4.6 Tax authorities raised a sales tax demand of Rs. 44.4 million, Rs. 56.2 million, Rs. 57.4 million, 
Rs. 55.9 million and Rs. 11.3 million under section 11 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 on account 
of alleged non-payment of sales tax for tax years 2016 to 2020 respectively. Being aggrieved 
the SIHL agitated the assessments in appeals before CIR(A). For tax year 2017 to 2020 CIR(A) 
partially confirmed the judgements of DCIR while deleted the assessment for tax year 2016. 
Being aggrieved SIHL has filed appeals before ATIR for tax years 2018 and 2020 who in 
respect of tax year 2018 partially confirmed the assessment and partly allowed relief to the 
SIHL whereas appeal for tax year 2020 filed on December 13, 2021 is pending adjudication.

Management is confident that the above disallowances and levies do not hold merit and 
the related amounts have been lawfully claimed in the income and sales tax returns as per 
the applicable tax laws and these matters will ultimately be decided in favor of the SIHL. 
Accordingly no provision has been made in respect of above in these consolidated financial 
statements.

2022 2021
13.2 Commitments (Rupees in '000') 

13.2.1 Capital expenditure contracted 135,129 45,109 

13.2.2 Letters of credit 138,470 79,116 

201Shifa International Hospitals Limited

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



14
. P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

, P
LA

N
T 

A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T

To
ta

l 

O
w

ne
d 

as
se

ts
R

ig
ht

 o
f u

se
 a

ss
et

s

P
ar

tic
ul

ar
s 

Fr
ee

ho
ld

 
la

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

d 
la

nd
 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 
fre

eh
ol

d 
la

nd
 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 
le

as
eh

ol
d 

la
nd

 

Le
as

eh
ol

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 B

io
m

ed
ic

al
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 

Ai
r 

co
nd

iti
on

in
g 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
an

d 
m

ac
hi

ne
ry

 

E
le

ct
ric

al
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

Fu
rn

itu
re

 
an

d 
fit

tin
gs

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
C

om
pu

te
r 

in
st

al
la

tio
ns

 
Ve

hi
cl

es
 

C
ap

ita
l 

w
or

k-
in

-
pr

og
re

ss
 

(n
ot

e 
14

.9
) 

O
ffi

ce
 

pr
em

is
es

 

E
le

ct
ric

al
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

(R
up

ee
s 

in
 '0

00
')

C
os

t /
 re

va
lu

ed
 a

m
ou

nt

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 J

ul
y 

01
, 2

02
0

98
7,

42
5 

2,
74

0,
10

2 
58

,8
98

 
3,

30
1,

69
6 

61
,6

10
 

4,
18

1,
79

7 
47

5,
85

2 
69

2,
59

0 
21

7,
89

5 
2,

78
8 

53
6,

20
0 

11
9,

49
8 

49
5,

99
3 

47
1,

79
0 

57
,0

00
 

14
,4

01
,1

34
 

A
dd

iti
on

s
29

3,
96

8 
- 

- 
- 

- 
59

,8
20

 
28

,8
67

 
27

,0
98

 
11

,6
45

 
- 

31
,8

23
 

8,
70

2 
59

6,
71

0 
11

2,
52

0 
- 

1,
17

1,
15

3 
R

ev
al

ua
tio

n
23

0,
57

9 
68

,3
35

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

29
8,

91
4 

D
is

po
sa

ls
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(4
,4

00
)

- 
- 

(4
19

)
(9

,7
41

)
- 

- 
- 

(1
4,

56
0)

W
rit

e 
of

fs
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(3
,5

35
)

(7
)

(3
,5

11
)

(1
82

)
- 

(2
,7

73
)

- 
- 

- 
- 

(1
0,

00
8)

Tr
an

sf
er

s
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

25
5,

71
9 

- 
11

,5
34

 
21

2 
- 

54
7 

2,
00

0 
(2

70
,0

12
)

- 
- 

- 
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ed
 a

s 
he

ld
 fo

r s
al

e 
(n

ot
e 

26
)

(2
92

,0
72

)
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(2

92
,0

72
)

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

02
1

1,
21

9,
90

0 
2,

80
8,

43
7 

58
,8

98
 

3,
30

1,
69

6 
61

,6
10

 
4,

49
3,

80
1 

50
4,

71
2 

72
3,

31
1 

22
9,

57
0 

2,
78

8 
56

5,
37

8 
12

0,
45

9 
82

2,
69

1 
58

4,
31

0 
57

,0
00

 
15

,5
54

,5
61

 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 J

ul
y 

01
, 2

02
1

1,
21

9,
90

0 
2,

80
8,

43
7 

58
,8

98
 

3,
30

1,
69

6 
61

,6
10

 
4,

49
3,

80
1 

50
4,

71
2 

72
3,

31
1 

22
9,

57
0 

2,
78

8 
56

5,
37

8 
12

0,
45

9 
82

2,
69

1 
58

4,
31

0 
57

,0
00

 
15

,5
54

,5
61

 
A

dd
iti

on
s

6,
03

0 
- 

- 
- 

22
,5

86
 

11
8,

41
8 

7,
43

8 
44

,9
63

 
10

,6
92

 
22

3 
65

,4
93

 
30

,5
80

 
1,

40
6,

90
8 

36
8,

18
7 

- 
2,

08
1,

51
8 

R
ev

al
ua

tio
n

66
,2

52
 

14
8,

60
9 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
21

4,
86

1 
D

is
po

sa
ls

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(1

2,
80

1)
- 

- 
- 

- 
(5

32
)

(2
,0

29
)

- 
- 

- 
(1

5,
36

2)
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 le
as

e
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(7
,2

41
)

- 
(7

,2
41

)
W

rit
e 

of
fs

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(1

3,
45

1)
(4

,0
32

)
(1

,2
13

)
(1

32
)

- 
(3

,4
23

)
- 

- 
- 

- 
(2

2,
25

1)
Tr

an
sf

er
s

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
35

,2
03

 
- 

4,
03

9 
1,

06
7 

- 
12

,2
05

 
- 

(5
2,

51
4)

- 
- 

- 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

02
2

1,
29

2,
18

2 
2,

95
7,

04
6 

58
,8

98
 

3,
30

1,
69

6 
84

,1
96

 
4,

62
1,

17
0 

50
8,

11
8 

77
1,

10
0 

24
1,

19
7 

3,
01

1 
63

9,
12

1 
14

9,
01

0 
2,

17
7,

08
5 

94
5,

25
6 

57
,0

00
 

17
,8

06
,0

85
 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
/ a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 J

ul
y 

01
, 2

02
0

- 
11

6,
25

3 
98

2 
73

4,
49

9 
27

,9
72

 
2,

17
9,

66
5 

25
3,

37
5 

46
6,

29
1 

12
5,

84
0 

1,
63

9 
37

6,
23

8 
94

,5
58

 
- 

12
2,

58
9 

11
,0

84
 

4,
51

0,
98

5 
C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
- 

36
,4

88
 

2,
94

5 
11

0,
35

4 
12

,3
22

 
33

0,
33

1 
49

,9
20

 
58

,6
34

 
17

,5
79

 
25

0 
68

,0
97

 
8,

58
9 

- 
12

6,
29

5 
19

,0
00

 
84

0,
80

4 
O

n 
di

sp
os

al
s

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(4

,4
00

)
- 

- 
(4

19
)

(9
,2

86
)

- 
- 

- 
(1

4,
10

5)
O

n 
w

rit
e 

of
fs

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(2

,8
92

)
(3

)
(3

,2
11

)
(1

58
)

- 
(2

,7
67

)
- 

- 
- 

- 
(9

,0
31

)
B

al
an

ce
 a

s 
at

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

1
- 

15
2,

74
1 

3,
92

7 
84

4,
85

3 
40

,2
94

 
2,

50
7,

10
4 

30
3,

29
2 

51
7,

31
4 

14
3,

26
1 

1,
88

9 
44

1,
14

9 
93

,8
61

 
- 

24
8,

88
4 

30
,0

84
 

5,
32

8,
65

3 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 J

ul
y 

01
, 2

02
1

- 
15

2,
74

1 
3,

92
7 

84
4,

85
3 

40
,2

94
 

2,
50

7,
10

4 
30

3,
29

2 
51

7,
31

4 
14

3,
26

1 
1,

88
9 

44
1,

14
9 

93
,8

61
 

- 
24

8,
88

4 
30

,0
84

 
5,

32
8,

65
3 

C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

- 
37

,7
52

 
2,

94
4 

10
9,

02
7 

12
,5

11
 

33
5,

15
1 

52
,0

83
 

58
,2

25
 

17
,7

10
 

27
2 

69
,5

44
 

11
,8

13
 

- 
15

1,
75

0 
19

,0
00

 
87

7,
78

2 
O

n 
di

sp
os

al
s

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(1

1,
86

6)
- 

- 
- 

- 
(3

16
)

(1
,5

23
)

- 
- 

- 
(1

3,
70

5)
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 le
as

e
(5

,4
31

)
(5

,4
31

)
O

n 
w

rit
e 

of
fs

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(1

1,
76

5)
(3

,5
96

)
(1

,1
69

)
(1

01
)

- 
(3

,3
86

)
- 

- 
- 

- 
(2

0,
01

7)
B

al
an

ce
 a

s 
at

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

2
- 

19
0,

49
3 

6,
87

1 
95

3,
88

0 
52

,8
05

 
2,

81
8,

62
4 

35
1,

77
9 

57
4,

37
0 

16
0,

87
0 

2,
16

1 
50

6,
99

1 
10

4,
15

1 
- 

39
5,

20
3 

49
,0

84
 

6,
16

7,
28

2 

C
ar

ry
in

g 
va

lu
e 

as
 a

t J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

1
1,

21
9,

90
0 

2,
65

5,
69

6 
54

,9
71

 
2,

45
6,

84
3 

21
,3

16
 

1,
98

6,
69

7 
20

1,
42

0 
20

5,
99

7 
86

,3
09

 
89

9 
12

4,
22

9 
26

,5
98

 
82

2,
69

1 
33

5,
42

6 
26

,9
16

 
10

,2
25

,9
08

 

C
ar

ry
in

g 
va

lu
e 

as
 a

t J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

2
1,

29
2,

18
2 

2,
76

6,
55

3 
52

,0
27

 
2,

34
7,

81
6 

31
,3

91
 

1,
80

2,
54

6 
15

6,
33

9 
19

6,
73

0 
80

,3
27

 
85

0 
13

2,
13

0 
44

,8
59

 
2,

17
7,

08
5 

55
0,

05
3 

7,
91

6 
11

,6
38

,8
03

 

A
nn

ua
l r

at
e 

of
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

%
- 

1.
34

-3
.0

3 
2.

5-
10

 
2.

5-
10

 
20

 
10

 
10

-1
5 

10
-1

5 
10

 
10

-2
0 

25
 

20
 

- 
- 

33
.3

 

202 ANNUAL  
REPORT 2022

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



14.1 The Group freehold and leasehold lands were revalued on June 30, 2022 by an independent 
professional valuer using the fair market value basis which resulted increases in surplus by Rs. 
66,252 thousand and Rs. 148,609 thousand respectively. Total unamortized surplus against 
the revaluation of freehold and leasehold lands as at June 30, 2022 stood at Rs. 1,874,929 
thousand (2021: Rs. 1,660,068 thousand).

14.2 Had there been no revaluation the carrying value would have been as under:

Cost Accumulated 
amortization 

Carrying 
value 

Freehold land (Rupees in '000') 

June 30, 2022 980,135 - 980,135 
June 30, 2021 974,105 - 974,105 

Leasehold land 

June 30, 2022 1,599,133 144,697 1,454,436 
June 30, 2021 1,599,133 121,984 1,477,149 

14.3 Particulars of Group's freehold and leasehold lands are as follow:

Location Nature 2022 2021
Area (kanal)

Shifa Cooperative Housing Society, 
Islamabad Expressway

Freehold land
2 2

Motorway, Mouza Noon, Islamabad. Freehold land 100 100
Faisalabad Motorway Freehold land 48.2 48.2
SNHF Hospital, Faisalabad 
Sheikhupura Road

Freehold land
49.6 49.6

SMCI Hospital, F-11, Islamabad Leasehold land 6.7 6.7
Neurosciences Institute, H-8/4, Islamabad Leasehold land* 11.7 11.7
SIHL H-8/4, Islamabad Leasehold land* 87.8 87.8

*The covered area includes multi-storey buildings.

14.4 Property, plant and equipment include items with aggregate cost of Rs. 2,370,718 thousand 
(2021: Rs. 2,055,773 thousand) representing fully depreciated assets that are still in use of 
the SIHL.

14.5 Property, plant and equipment of the Company are encumbered under an aggregate charge 
of Rs. 7,665.6 million (2021: Rs. 6,810.6 million) in favor of banking companies under various 
financing arrangements as disclosed in note 8.

14.6 The forced sale values (FSV) of the revalued leasehold and freehold lands have been 
assessed at Rs. 2,213,318 thousand (2021: Rs. 2,124,557 thousand) and Rs. 1,033,746 
thousand (2021: Rs. 1,023,848 thousand) respectively.
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14.7 The sale deed of the land and building of SNS Islamabad acquired and registered with the sub 
registrar Islamabad immediate after acquisition. After wards the SNS Islamabad has initiated 
the procedures for transfer of ownership of the property in its name with Capital Development 
Authority (CDA). However, the transfer process is pending as the same has been objected by 
CDA without any substance and therefore subject to rejection at initial stage of proceedings.

 14.8 Detail of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year, having carrying value of more than Rs. 500 
thousand:

Asset particulars / 
Location

Note
Cost / 

revalued 
amount

Carrying 
value

Sale 
proceeds

Gain on 
disposal

Purchaser
Mode of 
Disposal

( Rupees in '000' )
Islamabad Motorway 
Land

26.2 109,239 109,239 116,520 7,281 Various 
third parties 
through Soft 
Sys (Private) 

Limited 

Negotiation

Shifa Cooperative 
Housing Society

26.2 63,489 63,489 131,200 67,711 Various third 
parties

Negotiation

172,728 172,728 247,720 74,992 
Other assets having 
carrying value less than 
Rs. 500 thousand 14 15,362 1,657 3,486 1,829 
2022 188,090 174,385 251,206 76,821 

2021 203,554 189,449 231,424 41,975 

2022 2021
14.9 Capital work-in-progress Note (Rupees in '000') 

Construction work-in-progress 14.9.1 1,739,252 549,275 
Stores held for capital expenditure 14.9.2 976 976 
Installation of equipment in progress 436,857 272,440 

2,177,085 822,691 

14.9.1 Construction work-in-progress - at cost

This represents the cost of civil works mainly comprising of cost of materials, payments 
to contractors, salaries and benefits pertaining to construction works being carried out as 
detailed below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

SMCI Hospital, F-11, Islamabad 806,923 424,073 
SNHF Hospital, Faisalabad 638,747 - 
Other constructions 293,582 125,202 

1,739,252 549,275 
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

14.9.2 Stores held for capital expenditure
Stores held for capital expenditure 4,524 4,524 
Less: provision for slow moving items 14.9.2.1 3,548 3,548 

976 976 

14.9.2.1 Balance at beginning of the year 3,548 2,651 
Charged during the year - 897 
Balance at the end of the year 3,548 3,548 

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Softwares in use 15.1 12,582 32,052 
Software under development 39,375 - 

51,957 32,052 

15.1 Softwares in use

Cost
Balance at beginning of the year 106,216 105,973 
Addition during the year 1,826 243 
Balance at end of the year 108,042 106,216 

Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of the year 74,164 47,897 
Charged during the year 21,296 26,267 
Balance at end of the year 95,460 74,164 

Net book value 12,582 32,052 

15.2 Software under development
Balance at beginning of the year - - 
Addition during the year 15.2.1 39,375 - 
Balance at end of the year 39,375 - 

15.2.1 This represents the amount paid by SIHL to Shifa Care (Private) Limited for provision of Hospital 
Supply Chain Management system (HSCM). Out of total scope, three sub modules of HSCM 
have been developed and the integration of the aforesaid modules with existing Hospital 
Management Information System (HMIS) is in progress and expected to be functional during 
the next financial year. 

15.3 Amortization of softwares in use has been recorded at rate of 25 % (2021: 25%) per annum.

15.4 Intangible assets include items with aggregate cost of Rs. 39,132 thousand (2021: Rs. 10,810 
thousand) represeting fully amortized asset that are still in use of SIHL.
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2022 2021
16 LONG TERM INVESTMENT (Rupees in '000') 

Shifa Care (Private) Limited (SCPL) - 
Associated Company (unquoted)
Balance at the beginning of the year 35,961 22,472 
Addition during the year - 15,000 
Share in loss for the year (3,099) (1,511)
Balance at the end of the year 32,862 35,961 

This represents investment in 4,500,050 (2021: 4,500,050) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 
10 each of SCPL. The above investment in ordinary shares represents 50% (2021: 50%) 
shareholding in SCPL held by the SIHL Summary of results of SCPL are as under:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

Summarized statement of financial position
Non-current assets 58,322 49,641 
Current assets 52,787 24,767 
Current liabilities (45,385) (2,485)
Net assets 65,724 71,923 

Reconciliation to carrying amounts:
Opening net assets 71,923 44,944 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (6,199) (3,021)
Equity - 30,000 
Closing net assets 65,724 71,923 
Group’s share in carrying value of net assets 32,862 35,962 
Group's share in total comprehensive loss (3,099) (1,511)

Summarized statement of comprehensive income or loss
Revenue for the year – Gross - - 
Loss for the year (6,199) (3,021)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (6,199) (3,021)

16.1 The above information is based on audited financial statements of SCPL.

2022 2021
17 LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Ijarah key money deposits - 15,906 
Less: current portion of Ijarah key  
money deposits - 15,906 

- - 
Security deposits 17.1 89,093 74,007 

89,093 74,007 
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17.1 This represents security deposits given to various institutions / persons and are refundable on 
termination of relevant services / arrangements.

2022 2021

18
STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE 
TOOLS

Note (Rupees in '000') 

Stores 209,391 153,955 
Spare parts 26,654 33,893 
Loose tools 699 1,332 

236,744 189,180 
Less: provision for slow moving items 18.1 26,555 23,868 

210,189 165,312 

18.1 Balance at beginning of the year 23,868 18,604 
Charged during the year 2,687 5,264 
Balance at end of the year 26,555 23,868 

19 STOCK-IN-TRADE

This represents medicines being carried at moving average cost. 
2022 2021

20 TRADE DEBTS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Related party - Shifa Foundation 20.1 9,736 17,139 
Others 1,126,290 1,058,447 

1,136,026 1,075,586 
Less: allowance for expected credit  
  losses (ECL) 40.1.3 171,257 195,881 

964,769 879,705 

20.1 Maximum amount due from Shifa Foundation at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
20,694 thousand (2021: Rs. 21,265 thousand).

2022 2021
21 LOANS AND ADVANCES Note (Rupees in '000') 

Considered good - unsecured
Executives 21.1 4,199 3,291 
Other employees 18,101 16,523 

22,300 19,814 
Consultants - unsecured 3,661 2,825 
Suppliers / contractors - unsecured 621,266 326,280 

647,227 348,919 
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2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

21.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount of  
advances given to executives:

Balance at beginning of the year 3,291 2,726 
Disbursements during the year 19,783 19,341 

23,074 22,067 
Less: repayments during the year 18,875 18,776 

Balance at end of the year 4,199 3,291 

21.1.1 The above advances were given in accordance with the SIHL's service rules. The maximum 
amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 4,716 thousand 
(2021: Rs. 5,743 thousand).

2022 2021

22
DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 
RECEIVABLES

Note (Rupees in '000') 

Current portion of Ijarah key money deposits - 15,906 
Short term prepayments 37,046 29,389 
Other receivables 22.1 270,733 96,991 

307,779 142,286 
Less: allowance for expected credit losses  
  against other receivables 22.2 58,377 70,094 

249,402 72,192 

22.1 This includes Rs. 35,416 thousand (2021: Rs. 24,335 thousand) due from SIHT (Private) 
Limited and maximum amount due from SIHT (Private) Limited at the end of any month during 
the year was Rs. 72,695 thousand (2021: Rs. 70,322 thousand).

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

22.2 Allowance for expected credit losses 
against other receivables
Balance at beginning of the year 70,094 18,192 
Charge during the year 22.2.1 40,185 51,902 
Less: bad debts written off 22.2.2 (51,902) - 
Balance at end of the year 58,377 70,094 

22.2.1 This amount represent of advance paid against purchasse of land which the SIHL considered 
a bit doubtful. Though the SIHL actively pursuing for its recovery.

22.2.2 The balance due from Shifa Pan African Hospitals Limited – Tanzania (the Project) is written 
off as the Project has been abandoned due to multiple factors including substantial increase 
in project costs and the death of two out of three partners of Fatima Properties the sponsor 
of the Project based in Tanzania.
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2022 2021
23 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Investment-at amortized cost 23.1 71,824 343,788 
Investment in Mutual Funds - at fair value 
through profit or loss 23.2 837,801 758,414 

909,625 1,102,202 

23.1 This represent T- Bills purchased on June 02, 2022 to be matured on August 25, 2022 at a 
yield of 14.67% per annum (2021: T- Bill purchased on February 25, 2021 and matured on 
August 26, 2021 at a yield of 7.49% per annum) and two term deposit receipts (TDRs) having 
face value of Rs. 3 million (2021: Rs. 3 million) and Rs. 15 million (2021: Nil) with three months 
maturity with profit payable on monthly basis at the rate ranging from 5.50% to 12.25% per 
annum (2021: 5.00% to 6.60% per annum) and with one year maturity with profit payable on 
monthly basis at the rate ranging from 6.00% to 14.00% per annum (2021: Nil) respectively.

23.2 This represents investment in 5,059,495.1 units (2021: 6,157,748.3 units) and 3,223,094 units 
(2021:1,373,000 units) of UBL Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund and HBL Cash Fund respectively. 
Fair value of the investment was determined using quoted repurchase price at year end.

2022 2021

24
TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE 
GOVERNMENT (NET OF PROVISION)

Note (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at the beginning of the year 480,548 504,181 
Income tax paid / deducted at source 
during the year 465,990 370,962 

946,538 875,143 
Provision for taxation for the year 31 (476,362) (394,595)

Balance at the end of the year 470,176 480,548 
25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks in:
Current accounts

Local currency 463,875 436,512 
Foreign currency 1,374,994 1,663,510 

1,838,869 2,100,022 
Saving accounts:

Local currency 620,678 820,926 
Foreign currency 204 157 

25.1 620,882 821,083 

25.2 2,459,751 2,921,105 
Cash in hand 8,749 8,367 

2,468,500 2,929,472 
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25.1 Balance with saving account earned profit / markup at weighted average rate of 8.20% per 
annum (2021: 6.30% per annum).

25.2 Balances with banks include Rs. 118,472 thousand (2021: Rs. 112,342 thousand) in respect 
of security deposits (Note 11.2).

2022 2021

26
NON - CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR 
SALE

Note (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of the year 493,679 390,600 
Addition during the year 26.1 - 292,072 
Disposed off during the year 26.2 (172,726) (188,993)
Balance at end of the year 320,953 493,679 

26.1 This represents the carrying value of land measuring 25 kanals located at Shifa Cooperative 
Housing Society at Islamabad Expressway.

26.2 During the year the SIHL has sold lands measuring 48.5 kanals (2021: 72.5 kanals) located 
at Islamabad Motorway and six plots (2021: two plots) located at Shifa Cooperative Housing 
Society, Islamabad Expressway. 

26.3 Freehold lands held for sale at year end are 52.6 Kanal (2021: 101.1 Kanal) and 17 kanal 
(2021: 23 kanal) of Motorway, Mouza Noon, Islamabad and Shifa Cooperative Housing 
society, Islamabad respectively.

2022 2021
27 NET REVENUE Note (Rupees in '000') 

Inpatients 9,836,737 8,586,342 
Outpatients 5,509,053 4,952,787 
Other services 27.1 1,012,517 833,002 

16,358,307 14,372,131 
Less: discount 128,070 128,866 
Less: sales tax 38,069 19,592 
Net revenue 16,192,168 14,223,673 

27.1 This represents revenue from external pharmacy outlets, cafeteria sales, operating leases to 
related parties / other parties and corporate services to associate.

27.2 The net revenue is excluding physician share of Rs. 1,353,680 thousand (2021: Rs. 1,302,168 
thousand).
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2022 2021
28 OTHER INCOME Note (Rupees in '000') 

Income from financial assets:
Profit on bank deposits 16,579 8,493 
Dividend income from mutual fund - 
investments at fair value through profit or loss 67,940 36,243 
Un-realized gain on investments at fair 
value through profit or loss 1,446 1,353 
Interest income on treasury bills 18,993 25,137 

104,958 71,226 
Income from other than financial assets:
Gain on disposal of tangible assets 28.1 69,269 41,975 
Exchange gain on foreign currency translation 416,637 - 
Liabilities written back - 26,568 
Sale of scrap - net of sales tax 18,772 9,658 
Miscellaneous 30,692 22,497 

535,370 100,698 
640,328 171,924 

28.1 Gain on disposal of tangible assets is excluding of commission charges on sale of land of 
Rs. 7.6 million. 
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2022 2021
29 OPERATING COSTS Note (Rupees in '000') 

Salaries, wages and benefits 5,787,049 4,765,285 
Utilities 835,180 542,604 
Supplies consumed 1,727,652 1,623,965 
Medicines consumed 4,184,847 3,815,914 
Communication 49,507 41,402 
Traveling and conveyance 21,853 11,821 
Printing and stationery 133,611 104,626 
Repairs and maintenance 640,134 588,242 
Auditors' remuneration 29.2 7,712 6,236 
Legal and professional 18,077 28,717 
Rent 14,782 13,672 
Rates and taxes 15,177 18,585 
Advertising and sales promotion 66,512 48,347 
Fee, subscription and membership 82,213 59,289 
Vehicle and equipment rentals 29.3 12,447 8,874 
Cleaning and washing 137,585 120,870 
Project cost 217 12,033 
Insurance 18,998 15,724 
Property, plant and equipment written off 29.4 2,234 977 
Provision for slow moving stores 2,687 6,161 
Exchange loss of foreign currency exchange - 120,044 
Depreciation / amortization on tangible assets 14 877,782 840,804 
Amortization on intangible assets 15 21,296 26,267 
Donation 29.5 25,000 - 
Miscellaneous 65,266 43,510 

14,747,818 12,863,969 

29.1 This includes charge of employee gratuity of Rs. 159,116 thousand (2021: Rs. 143,917 
thousand), defined contribution plan (pension) of Rs. 53,655 thousand (2021: Nil), expense 
for compensated absences of Rs. 67,049 thousand (2021: Rs. 46,378 thousand) and bonus 
to employees of Rs. 125,814 thousand (2021: Rs. 190,931 thousand).

2022 2021
29.2 Auditors' remuneration (Rupees in '000') 

Annual audit fee 2,805 2,943 
Half yearly review fee 1,629 1,572 
Statutory certifications 3,278 1,721 

7,712 6,236 

29.2.1 The above fee is inclusive of sales tax amounting to Rs.1,061 thousand (2021: 767 thousand).
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29.3 This includes ujrah payments under an Ijarah. As required under Islamic Financial Accounting 
Standard (IFAS 2) "Ijarah" (notified through SRO 431 (I)/2007 by Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan) ujrah payments under an Ijarah are recognized as an expense in 
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over the Ijarah term.

The amounts of future ujrah payments and the periods in which these will be due are as 
follows:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

Within one year - 12,447 
After one year but not more than five years - - 
Total ujrah payments - 12,447 

29.4 This represents assets written off that were determined to be irreparable after carrying out 
detailed physical verification exercised by the management.

29.5 Donation
This represents donation given to Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University (STMU) which is related 
party of the SIHL due to common directorship as detailed below: 

Name of common directors Interest in donee Address of the donee
Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi Director H-8/4, Islamabad
Dr. Habib ur Rahman Director H-8/4, Islamabad
Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad Director H-8/4, Islamabad

The spouses of any directors of the SIHL have no interest in the donee.
2022 2021

30 FINANCE COSTS (Rupees in '000')

Markup on long term loans - secured 252,714 255,567 
Interest on lease liabilities 52,635 43,263 
Credit card payment collection and bank charges 41,896 31,881 

347,245 330,711 
31 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current
- for the period 480,702 394,595 
- prior year (4,340) - 

476,362 394,595 
Deferred 16,185 (94,077)

492,547 300,518 
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2022 2021

32
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND 
DILUTED

Note (Rupees in '000')

Profit for the year attributable to equity 
holders of SIHL 1,141,310 724,091 

(Numbers in '000')
(Restated)

Weighted average number of ordinary 
shares in issue during the year 32.1 63,214 63,214 

(Rupees)
(Restated)

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 18.05 11.45 

32.1 Weighted average number of ordinary shares has been calculated on the basis of time factor of 
shares outstanding during the year.

32.2 During the year, the SIHL has issued 2% bonus shares (i.e. one for every fifty ordinary shares held) 
which has resulted in restatement of basic and diluted earnings per share.

33 CAPACITY UTILIZATION

The actual inpatient available bed days, occupied bed days and room occupancy ratio of Shifa 
International Hospitals Limited (SIHL) are given below:

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Available bed days Occupied bed days Occupancy Ratio

SIHL H-8/4 Islamabad 184,269 184,023 108,277 102,702 58.76% 55.81%
SIHL Faisalabad 22,867 28,105 6,046 6,498 26.44% 23.12%

33.1 Reported utilisation is a result of pattern of patient turnover under different specialties and 
miscellaneous other factors.

2022 2021
34 UNAVAILED CREDIT FACILITIES (Rupees in '000') 

Unavailed credit facilities at year end other than those 
disclosed in note 8 of financial statements are as under: 

Letter of credit 60,348 100,000 
Ijarah financing 51,709 51,709 
Running Musharkah 500,000 500,000 
Letter of gurantee 23,666 23,666 

635,723 675,375 
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35 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group had 5,223 employees (2021: 5,097) at the year end and average number of 
employees during the year were 5,234 (2021: 4,962).

36 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The related parties comprise of associate, directors, key management personnel, SIHL 
Employees’ Gratuity Fund and the entities over which directors are able to exercise influence. 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Group. The Group considers its chief executive 
officer, chief financial officer, company secretary, directors and departmental heads to be its 
key management personnel. There are no transactions with key management personnel other 
than their terms of employment / entitlement.

The amounts due from and due to these undertakings are shown under trade debts, loans 
and advances and trade and other payables. Other transactions with the related parties are 
given below:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Shifa Foundation:
Opening balance - receivable  17,139  17,875 
Revenue from services earned by the SIHL 36.1  16,964  12,607 
Revenue from rent earned by the SIHL  819  600 
Expenses paid and reimbursed to the SIHL  48  23 
Other services provided to the SIHL  -    (3,424)
Revenue from COVID -19 clinical trial services  -    16,498 
Receipts / adjustments  (25,234)  (27,040)
Closing balance - receivable  9,736  17,139 

Tameer-e-Millat Foundation:
Opening balance - payable  (13,073)  (11,978)
Supplies provided to the SIHL 36.1  (88,543)  (79,335)
Other services provided to the SIHL 36.3  (35,278)  (22,320)
Rental services received / earned by the SIHL  (5,842)  (4,631)
Payments / adjustments  131,076  105,191 
Closing balance - payable  (11,660)  (13,073)
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University:
Opening balance - payable  (5,041)  (27,468)
Revenue from services earned by the SIHL 36.1  18,543  11,294 
Revenue from rent earned by the SIHL  3,197  2,907 
Other services provided to the SIHL 36.3  (61,817)  (53,780)
Expenses paid by and reimbursed to the SIHL  2,905  2,968 
Donation paid by the SIHL  (25,000)  -   
Payments / adjustments  60,755  59,038 
Closing balance - payable  (6,458)  (5,041)

SIHT (Private) Limited
Opening balance - receivable  24,335  25,783 
Revenue from services earned by the SIHL 36.1  325,112  351,638 
Expenses paid by and reimbursed to the SIHL  5,905  4,850 
Other services provided to the SIHL 36.3  (23,206)  (22,414)
Receipts / adjustments  (296,730)  (335,522)
Closing balance - receivable  35,416  24,335 

Shifa Cooperative Housing Society:
Opening balance  -    -   
Plot maintenance charges paid by the SIHL  5,573  1,801 
Payments  (5,573)  (1,801)
Closing balance  -    -   

Shifa Care (Private) Limited
Opening balance  -    -   
Investment made by the SIHL in Nil (2021: 1,500,000) 
ordinary shares  -    (15,000)
Other services provided by the SIHL 36.3  2,343  836 
Software development services provided  
to the SIHL  (39,375)  -   
Expenses paid by and reimbursed to the SIHL  -    50 
Payments - net  37,032  14,114 
Closing balance  -    -   
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

SIHL Employees' Gratuity Fund
Opening balance - payable  (251,594)  (196,221)
Provision / OCI charge  (183,077)  (189,841)
Payments made by the SIHL during the year 36.4  241,218  134,468 
Closing balance - payable  (193,453)  (251,594)

Remuneration including benefits and perquisites of 
key management personnel 36.5  390,331  366,679 

36.1 Revenue earned from related parties includes medical, surgical, clinical and lab services 
rendered to referred inpatients and outpatients, sale of medicines and provision of cafeteria 
services. These transactions are executed on arm's length basis between the parties.

36.2 The supplies mainly includes uniforms and dairy products etc. These transactions are executed 
on arm's length basis between the parties.

36.3 This represents services of nursing education/training, employees' children education, media 
and consultancy services. These transactions are executed on arm's length basis between the 
parties.

36.4 Transactions with the Fund are carried out based on the terms of employment of employees 
and according to actuarial advice.

36.5 This includes employee retirement benefits (gratuity) amounting to Rs. 3,866 thousand (2021: 
Rs. 20,342 thousand).

36.6 Basis of relationship with related parties with whom the Group had entered into transactions or 
had agreements and/or arrangements in place during the financial year are as follow:

Sr # Name of related party (RP)
Basis of 

relationship

Percentage of
SIHL's 

shareholding in RP
RP's shareholding 

in the SIHL
1 Shifa Foundation Common 

Directorship
N/A* 0.92%

2 Tameer-e-Millat Foundation Common 
Directorship

N/A 12.57%

3 SIHL Employees' Gratuity Fund Benefit plan N/A 0.12%
4 Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University Common 

Directorship
N/A 0.02%

5 Shifa CARE (Private) Limited Associate 
and Common 
Directorship

50% Nil

6 SIHT (Private) Limited Common 
Directorship

N/A Nil

7 Shifa Cooperative Housing Society Common 
Directorship

N/A Nil

8 International Finance Corporation (IFC) Associate Nil 12%

*N/A stands for not applicable.
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

Risk management framework
The Board meets frequently throughout the year for developing and monitoring the Group’s 
risk management policies. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify 
and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to 
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, 
through its standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

40.1 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if 
counter-parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Group does not have significant 
exposure to any individual counter-party. To reduce exposure to credit risk the Group has 
developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The 
management also regularly monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes 
allowance for ECLs for those credit exposure. Furthermore, the Group has credit control in 
place to ensure that services are rendered to customers with an appropriate credit history.

40.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

Deposits 89,093 74,007 
Trade debts 964,769 879,705 
Other receivables 212,356 26,897 
Markup accrued 2,129 677 
Other financial assets 909,625 1,102,202 
Bank balances 2,459,751 2,921,105 

4,637,723 5,004,593 

The Group is also exposed to credit risk from its operating and short term investing activities. 
The Group's credit risk exposures are categorized under the following headings:
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

Risk management framework
The Board meets frequently throughout the year for developing and monitoring the Group’s 
risk management policies. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify 
and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to 
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, 
through its standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

40.1 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if 
counter-parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Group does not have significant 
exposure to any individual counter-party. To reduce exposure to credit risk the Group has 
developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The 
management also regularly monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes 
allowance for ECLs for those credit exposure. Furthermore, the Group has credit control in 
place to ensure that services are rendered to customers with an appropriate credit history.

40.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

Deposits 89,093 74,007 
Trade debts 964,769 879,705 
Other receivables 212,356 26,897 
Markup accrued 2,129 677 
Other financial assets 909,625 1,102,202 
Bank balances 2,459,751 2,921,105 

4,637,723 5,004,593 

The Group is also exposed to credit risk from its operating and short term investing activities. 
The Group's credit risk exposures are categorized under the following headings:

40.1.2 Counterparties
The Group conducts transactions with the following major types of counterparties:

Trade debts 
Trade debts are essentially due from government companies / institutions, private companies 
(panel companies) and individuals to whom the Group is providing medical services. Normally 
the services are rendered to the panel companies on agreed rates and limits from whom the 
Group does not expect any inability to meet their obligations. The Group manages credit risk 
in trade debts by limiting significant exposure to the customers not having good credit history. 
Furthermore, the Group has credit control in place to ensure that services are rendered to 
customers with an appropriate credit history and makes allowance for ECLs against those 
balances considered doubtful of recovery.

Bank balances and investments
The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid securities and maintaining bank 
accounts only with counterparties that have a high credit ratings and therefore management 
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by type of customer 
was:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000') 

Government companies 606,483 632,053 
Private companies 277,452 286,035 
Individuals 242,355 140,359 
Related party 9,736 17,139 

1,136,026 1,075,586 

40.1.3 Impairment losses

The aging of trade debts at the reporting date was:

2022 2021

Gross debts
Allowance

for ECL
Gross debts

Allowance
for ECL

(Rupees in '000') 

Not past due 428,765 2,029 230,471 - 
1 - 2 months 298,404 14,109 147,364 - 
3 - 4 months 94,405 6,543 210,250 21,481 
5 - 7 months 88,393 12,486 155,994 27,545 
8 - 12 months 68,831 34,726 119,806 44,095 
Above 12 months 157,228 101,364 211,701 102,760 

1,136,026 171,257 1,075,586 195,881 
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The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade debts during the year was 
as follows:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000') 

Balance at beginning of the year 195,881 130,013 
Expected credit losses 72,433 106,189 
Less: bad debts written off 40.1.5 97,057 40,321 
Balance at end of the year 20 171,257 195,881 

40.1.4 The Group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of markup accrued, 
deposits, bank balances and investments as the recovery of such amounts is possible except 
in case of certain other receivables for which impairment loss has been recorded (Note 22.2).

40.1.5 This includes an amount of Rs. 84,620 thousand (2021: nil) due from SPAH is written off for the 
reason reflected in note 22.2.2.

The ageing of Shifa Foundation (SF), SIHT (Private) Limited and Shifa Pan African Hospitals 
Limited (SPAH) at the reporting date was:

2022 2021
Gross 
debts

Allowance
for ECL

Gross debts
Allowance

for ECL
Note (Rupees in '000') 

SF
1 - 2 months 20 9,736 - 17,139 - 

SIHT
1 - 2 months 20 35,416 - 24,335 - 

SPAH
5-7 months - - 4,513 - 
Above 12 months 22.2 - - 47,389 - 

40.1.6 Cash and investments are held only with reputable banks and their mutual funds with high quality 
external credit rating assessed by external rating agencies. Following are the credit ratings of 
banks with which balances are held or credit lines available:
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Bank Rating Agency Rating 
Short term Long term 

Habib Bank Limited (HBL) JCR - VIS A1+ AAA 
United Bank Limited (UBL) JCR - VIS A1+ AAA 
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA 
Dubai Islamic Bank JCR - VIS A1+ AA 
The Bank of Punjab PACRA A1+ AA+ 
Askari Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 
Faysal Bank Limited JCR - VIS A1+ AA 
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA A1+ AAA 
Silk Bank Limited JCR - VIS A2 A- 
Meezan Bank Limited JCR - VIS A1+ AAA 
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited JCR - VIS A1 A+ 
National Bank of Pakistan JCR - VIS A1+ AAA 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 
UBL - Al Ameen Islamic Cash Fund JCR - VIS - AA+(f) 
HBL Cash Fund JCR - VIS - AA+(f) 

40.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Group's approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. 
For this purpose the Group has credit facilities as mentioned in notes 8 and 34 to the financial 
statements. Further liquidity position of the Group is monitored by the board through budgets, 
cash flow projections and comparison with actual results.

Following is the maturity analysis of financial liabilities:

Carrying 
amount

Six 
months or 

less

Six to 
twelve 
months

One to 
two years

Two to five 
years

Above five 
years

(Rupees in '000')

2022
Long term financing- secured 2,607,637 770,466 564,070 950,306 322,795 - 
Trade and other payables 3,207,198 3,207,198 - - - - 
Unclaimed dividend 40,778 40,778 - - - - 
Mark up accrued 35,658 35,658 - - - - 

5,891,271 4,054,100 564,070 950,306 322,795 - 

2021
Long term financing-secured 3,766,130 665,362 740,360 1,284,106 1,076,302 - 
Trade and other payables 2,738,685 2,738,685 - - - - 
Unclaimed dividend 35,158 35,158 - - - - 
Mark up accrued 16,913 16,913 - - - - 

6,556,886 3,456,118 740,360 1,284,106 1,076,302 - 

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is given in note 10.
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40.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, markup 
rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk. The Group is 
exposed to currency, mark up rate and market price risk.

40.3.1 Foreign currency risk 

Exposure to foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions 
with foreign undertakings and cash in foreign currency bank account. The Group’s exposure to 
foreign currency risk is as follows:

2022 2021
(Amount in '000')

Euro USD AED Euro USD AED

Trade debts - - - - 538.54 - 
Creditors - - (12.90) - - - 
Bank balances - 6,736 364.71 - 10,673.07 351.09 
Letter of credit (12.50) (450.48) - (62.00) (285.65) - 

(12.50) 6,285.18 351.81 (62.00) 10,925.96 351.09 

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000')

Trade debts - - - - 84,620 - 
Creditors - - (718) - - - 
Bank balances - 1,375,199 20,286 - 1,677,047 15,032 
Letter of credit (2,675) (92,164) - (11,622) (44,988) - 

(2,675) 1,283,035 19,568 (11,622) 1,716,679 15,032 

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Closing rate
2022 2021 2022 2021

(Rupees)

USD 1 - Buying 177.80 160.10 204.17 157.13 
USD 1 - Selling 178.21 160.47 204.59 157.49 

AED 1 - Buying 48.44 43.59 55.62 42.82 
AED 1 - Selling 48.55 43.69 55.73 42.91 

Euro 1 - Buying 199.96 190.92 213.59 187.04 
Euro 1 - Selling 200.41 191.34 214.03 187.45 
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent variation of the PKR against the USD, AED and EURO at June 30 would have 
effected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all 
other variables, in particular markup rates, remain constant.

Change 
in Foreign 
Exchange 

Rates

Effect on Profit Effect on Equity

% (Rupees in '000')
2022

Foreign currencies +10% 129,993 129,993 
Foreign currencies -10% (129,993) (129,993)

2021

Foreign currencies +10% 172,009 172,009 
Foreign currencies -10% (172,009) (172,009)

40.3.2 Markup rate risk 
The markup rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure 
arises from long term financing, short term investments and deposits with banks. At the 
reporting date the markup rate profile of the Group’s markup-bearing financial instruments are:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000')

Financial assets

Investment - at amortized cost 23.1 71,824 343,788 
Bank balances 25 620,882 821,083 

692,706 1,164,871 
Financial liabilities
Long term financing - secured 8 (2,607,637) (3,766,130)

(1,914,931) (2,601,259)

The effective markup rates for the financial assets and liabilities are mentioned in respective 
notes to the financial statements.

Markup rate sensitivity analysis
If markup rates had been 50 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held 
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended June 30, 2022 would decrease / increase by Rs. 
8,092 thousand (2021: decrease / increase by Rs. 10,409 thousand). This is mainly attributable 
to the Group’s exposure to markup rates on its variable rate borrowings.
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Price risk
The Group’s price risk arises from investments in units as disclosed in - note 23.2 which are 
designated at fair value through profit or loss, however, in accordance with the investment 
strategy the performance of units is actively monitored and they are managed on a fair value 
basis.

Price risk sensitivity analysis
A change of Rs 1 in the value of investments at fair value through profit or loss would have 
increased or decreased profit or loss by Rs. 11,112 thousand (2021: Rs.10,694 thousand).

40.4 Financial instrument by category

Amortized cost
Fair value 
through 

profit or loss
Total

2022 (Rupees in '000')

Financial assets

Maturity upto one year
Trade debts 964,769 - 964,769 
Other receivables 212,356 - 212,356 
Markup accrued 2,129 - 2,129 
Other financial assets 71,824 837,801 909,625 
Cash and bank balances 2,468,500 - 2,468,500 

Maturing after one year
Long term deposits 89,093 - 89,093 

3,808,671 837,801 4,646,472 

Financial liabilities

Maturing upto one year
Trade and other payables 3,207,198 - 3,207,198 
Unclaimed dividend 40,778 - 40,778 
Markup accrued 35,658 - 35,658 
Current portion of long term financing 
- secured 1,334,536 - 1,334,536 
Current portion of lease liabilities 173,173 - 173,173 

Maturing after one year
Long term financing - secured 1,273,101 - 1,273,101 
Lease liabilities 435,708 - 435,708 

6,500,152 - 6,500,152 
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Amortized cost
Fair value 
through 

profit or loss
Total

2021 (Rupees in '000')

Financial assets

Maturity upto one year
Trade debts 879,705 - 879,705 
Other receivables 26,897 - 26,897 
Markup accrued 677 - 677 
Other financial assets 343,788 758,414 1,102,202 
Cash and bank balances 2,929,472 - 2,929,472 

Maturing after one year
Long term deposits 74,007 - 74,007 

4,254,546 758,414 5,012,960 

Financial liabilities

Maturing upto one year
Trade and other payables 2,738,685 - 2,738,685 
Unclaimed dividend 35,158 - 35,158 
Markup accrued 16,913 - 16,913 
Current portion of long term financing 
- secured 1,405,722 - 1,405,722 
Current portion of lease liabilities 118,456 - 118,456 

Maturing after one year
Long term financing - secured 2,360,408 - 2,360,408 
Lease liabilities 265,587 - 265,587 

6,940,929 - 6,940,929 
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40.5 Fair value 

Fair value versus carrying amounts
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in 
the consolidated statement of financial position, are as follows:

2022 2021
Carrying 

value
Fair value

Carrying 
value

Fair value

(Rupees in '000')

Assets carried at amortized cost
Long term deposits 89,093 89,093 74,007 74,007 
Trade debts 964,769 964,769 879,705 879,705 
Other receivables 212,356 212,356 26,897 26,897 
Markup accrued 2,129 2,129 677 677 
Other financial assets 71,824 71,824 343,788 343,788 
Cash and bank balances 2,468,500 2,468,500 2,929,472 2,929,472 

3,808,671 3,808,671 4,254,546 4,254,546 

Assets carried at fair value
Other financial assets 837,801 837,801 758,414 758,414 

Liabilities carried at amortized 
cost
Long term financing - secured 1,273,101 1,273,101 2,360,408 2,360,408 
Lease liabilities 435,708 435,708 265,587 265,587 
Trade and other payables 3,207,198 3,207,198 2,738,685 2,738,685 
Unclaimed dividend 40,778 40,778 35,158 35,158 
Markup accrued 35,658 35,658 16,913 16,913 
Current portion of long term 
financing - secured 1,334,536 1,334,536 1,405,722 1,405,722 
Current portion of lease 
liabilities 173,173 173,173 118,456 118,456 

6,500,152 6,500,152 6,940,929 6,940,929 

The basis for determining fair values is as follows:

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the 
government yield curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. For instruments 
carried at amortized cost, since the majority of the interest bearing investments are variable 
rate based instruments, there is no difference in carrying amount and the fair value. Further, 
for fixed rate instruments, since there is no significant difference in market rate and the rate of 
instrument and therefore most of the fixed rate instruments are short term in nature, fair value 
significantly approximates to carrying value.
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41 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Other financial assets
Fair value of investment in mutual funds (Note 23.2) has been determined using quoted 
repurchase price at reporting date and categorized under level 1 of fair value hierarchy.

Fair value of land
Lands owned by the Group are valued by independent valuers to determine the fair values of 
lands as at reporting date. The fair value of lands subject to revaluation model fall under level 
2 of fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfer amongst the levels during the year. Further, there were no changes in 
the valuation techniques during the year.

42 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure the Group’s ability not only to 
continue as a going concern but also to meet its requirements for expansion and enhancement 
of its business, maximize return of shareholders and optimize benefits for other stakeholders 
to maintain an optimal capital structure and to reduce the cost of capital

In order to achieve the above objectives, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid 
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares through bonus or right issue 
or sell assets to reduce debts or raise debts, if required.

43 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX

2022 2021
Description Explanation (Rupees in '000')

Bank balances Placed under interest 211,700 313,670 
Placed under sharia 
permissible arrangement 409,182 507,413 

620,882 821,083 

Return on bank deposit for 
the year

Placed under interest 6,121 3,997 
Placed under sharia 
permissible arrangement 10,230 4,337 

16,351 8,334 

Interest and dividend income 
on investment for the year

Placed under interest 19,221 25,296 
Placed under sharia 
permissible arrangement 69,386 36,243 

88,607 61,539 

Segment revenue Disclosed in note 27

Exchange gain earned 416,637 - 

Loans obtained as per Islamic mode 2,172,438 2,941,675 
Mark up paid on Islamic mode of financing 275,864 305,325 
Interest paid on any conventional loan 5,392 6,005 
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Relationship with sharia compliant banks
The SIHL has obtained long term loans and has maintained bank balances and term deposits 
with sharia compliant banks as given below:

- Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited
- Meezan Bank Limited
- Dubai Islamic Bank
- Habib Bank Limited
- Faysal Bank Limited
- Bank Alfalah Limited
- The Bank Of Punjab
- Askari Bank Limited

44 OPERATING SEGMENTS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable 
segment. All revenue of the Group is earned in Pakistan. All non-current assets of the Group 
at June 30, 2022 are located in Pakistan. There is no customer with more than 10% of total 
revenue of the Group for the year.

45 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the board 
of directors of the SIHL on September 28, 2022.

46 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

The board of directors of SIHL in its meeting held on September 28, 2022 has proposed a 
final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2022 @ Rs. 1.5 per share, amounting to Rs. 
94,822 thousand for approval of the members in the Annual General Meeting to be held on 
October 28, 2022. This dividend is in addition to interim dividend of Rs. 1.5 per share paid 
during the current year. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2022 do not include the effect of the final dividend which will be accounted for in the year in 
which it is approved.

47 GENERAL

- Figures have been rounded off to the nearest one thousand Pak Rupees unless otherwise stated.
- Immaterial reclassification has been made wherever necessary.
- Management of the Group will continue to monitor the situation with all possible measures to 

overcome the effects of COVID-19 pandemic. Moreover, based on the assessment of the Group's 
management there is no adverse effect of COVID - 19 on these consolidated financial statements.

CHAIRMAN CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF EXECUTIVE
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Number of shareholders
Size of holding of shares

Total shares held
From To

210 1 100 5,573
217 101 500 47,754

1,129 501 1,000 595,335
422 1,001 5,000 692,524

58 5,001 10,000 394,239
72 10,001 15,000 801,707
26 15,001 20,000 436,724
29 20,001 25,000 621,333
17 25,001 30,000 452,041
10 30,001 35,000 323,856

4 35,001 40,000 144,979
5 40,001 45,000 205,194
7 45,001 50,000 333,133

18 50,001 55,000 937,488
2 55,001 60,000 114,580
4 60,001 65,000 244,373
2 65,001 70,000 137,028
1 70,001 75,000 72,187
2 75,001 80,000 157,684
6 80,001 85,000 492,784
3 85,001 90,000 262,908
5 90,001 95,000 459,371
4 95,001 100,000 389,799

10 100,001 105,000 1,020,011
2 105,001 110,000 215,856
4 110,001 115,000 440,500
2 120,001 125,000 248,548
4 125,001 130,000 512,099
2 130,001 135,000 268,810
2 135,001 140,000 276,641
2 140,001 145,000 281,606
3 150,001 155,000 458,064
2 155,001 160,000 313,520
3 160,001 165,000 489,232
2 170,001 175,000 344,464
1 175,001 180,000 180,000
1 180,001 185,000 182,400

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As at June 30, 2022
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Number of shareholders
Size of holding of shares

Total shares held
From To

1 195,001 200,000 198,000
1 200,001 205,000 204,000
1 205,001 210,000 209,023
1 210,001 215,000 211,777
1 215,001 220,000 217,260
2 230,001 235,000 454,650
1 235,001 240,000 237,000
1 245,001 250,000 248,716
1 250,001 255,000 251,604
2 255,001 260,000 516,496
1 280,001 285,000 283,925
1 290,001 295,000 291,144
2 305,001 310,000 612,612
2 310,001 315,000 622,977
1 315,001 320,000 316,060
1 330,001 335,000 334,098
2 360,001 365,000 725,757
1 380,001 385,000 383,743
1 405,001 410,000 408,000
1 410,001 415,000 410,907
1 420,001 425,000 423,610
1 425,001 430,000 425,340
1 450,001 455,000 451,211
2 465,001 470,000 934,226
1 480,001 485,000 483,745
1 535,001 540,000 540,000
1 540,001 545,000 543,502
1 595,001 600,000 599,993
1 650,001 655,000 653,036
1 940,001 945,000 941,080
1 1,410,001 1,415,000 1,412,960
1 1,480,001 1,485,000 1,480,781
1 1,490,001 1,495,000 1,494,649
1 1,800,001 1,805,000 1,803,673
1 1,810,001 1,815,000 1,810,569
1 1,920,001 1,925,000 1,922,909
1 2,355,001 2,360,000 2,355,253

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As at June 30, 2022
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Number of shareholders
Size of holding of shares

Total shares held
From To

1 5,210,001 5,215,000 5,212,633
1 5,385,001 5,390,000 5,385,160
1 6,060,001 6,065,000 6,062,234
1 7,585,001 7,590,000 7,585,725

2,340 63,214,383

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As at June 30, 2022

Categories of shareholders
Number of 

shareholders
Number of shares 

held
Percentage

INDIVIDUALS 2271  35,591,931 56.30

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 2  7,596,333 12.02
JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 14  172,726 0.27
MUTUAL FUND 13  3,019,139 4.78
CHARITABLE TRUSTS 5  310,980 0.49
OTHERS 30  9,711,898 15.36
INSURANCE COMPANIES 5  6,811,376 10.78

Total 2340  63,214,383 100.00
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Categories of shareholders
Number of 

shareholders
Shares held Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
and their spouses and minor children * 11  7,848,362 12.415

Associated Companies, Undertakings
and related parties ** 5  16,200,148 25.627

Banks, Development Financial Institutions,
Non Banking Financial Institutions 2  7,596,333 12.017

Shareholders holding 10 % or more voting interest *** 2  15,530,138 24.567

Joint Stock Companies 14  172,726 0.273

Executives 3  16,318 0.026

* No. of Shares held by Directors, CEO and their spouses
Dr. Manzoor H. Qazi  1,494,649 2.364
Dr. Habib Ur Rahman  465,720 0.737
Mrs. Shahida Rahman W/o Dr. Habib Ur Rahman  13,379 0.021
Mr. Muhammad Zahid  885,134 1.400
Mr. Shafquat Ali Chaudhary  1,803,673 2.853
Mr. Qasim Farooq Ahmad  2,094,494 3.313
Dr. Samea Kauser Ahmad  1,051,205 1.663
Syed Ilyas Ahmed  11,562 0.018
Prof. Dr. Shoab Ahmed Khan  11,562 0.018
Dr. Mohammad Naseem Ansari  16,983 0.027
Mr. Javed K. Siddiqui  1 0.000

** Shares held by related parties
Tameer-e-Millat Foundation  7,944,413 12.57
Shifa Foundation  581,349 0.92
SIHL Employees' Gratuity Fund  78,461 0.12
Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University  10,200 0.02
International Finance Corporation  7,585,725 12.00

*** Shareholders with 10% or more voting interest
Tameer-e-Millat Foundation  7,944,413 12.57
International Finance Corporation  7,585,725 12.00

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
Additional Information
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FORM OF PROXY
36th Annual General Meeting

I/We________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

of________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

being a member of Shifa International Hospitals Ltd. Folio No./CDC A/c No.__________________

_________________________ No. of Shares ________________________________________________________  hereby 

appoint _________________________________________________________________________ of __________________________

________________________________________ Folio No./CDC A/c No. ____________________________________________ 

or failing him/her ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

of ________________________________________________________ Folio No./CDC A/c No. _________________________________ 
who is a member of the Company as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and 
on my/our behalf at the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 1030 hours on 28 
October, 2022, and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this ______________________ day of ______________________ 2022.

Signed by the said ______________________ ______________________

Revenue
Stamp

Witnesses:

1	 Signature 

Name 

Address 

CNIC/Passport No. 

2	 Signature 

Name 

Address 

CNIC/Passport No. 

(Signature must agree with 
the SPECIMEN signature 

registered with the Company)

Important:

1.	 This form of Proxy, duly completed, signed and stamped must be deposited at the Company’s 
Registered Office, Sector H-8/4 Islamabad, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the 
meeting.

2.	 If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited 
by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

3.	 CDC account holder, sub account holder/shareholder may appoint proxy and the proxy must produce 
attested copy of his/her CNIC or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.
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Shifa International Hospitals Limited
Pitras Bukhari Road,
Sector H-8/4, Islamabad - Pakistan
Email: info@shifa.com.pk
Website: www.shifa.com.pk
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